
1

Swyddog Cyswllt:
Sharon Thomas 01352 702324
sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

At: Cyng Clive Carver (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr: Haydn Bateman, Bob Connah, Paul Cunningham, Patrick Heesom, 
Andrew Holgate, Dave Hughes, Paul Johnson, Richard Jones, Mike Lowe, 
Hilary McGuill, Michelle Perfect, Vicky Perfect ac Arnold Woolley
+ 1 Swydd Wag

Dydd Gwener, 15 Medi 2017

Annwyl Gynghorydd,

Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Adnoddau 
Corfforaethol a fydd yn cael ei gynnal am 10.00 am Dydd Iau, 21ain Medi, 2017 yn 
Ystafell Bwyllgor Delyn, Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug CH7 6NA i ystyried yr eitemau 
canlynol

R H A G L E N

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU 
Pwrpas: I derbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau.

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD (GAN GYNNWYS DATGANIADAU CHWIPIO) 
Pwrpas: I derbyn unrhyw ddatganiad o gysylltiad a chynghori’r Aelodau yn 

unol a hynny.

3 COFNODION (Tudalennau 5 - 12)
Pwrpas: I gadarnhau, fel cofnod cywir gofnodion y cyfarfod ar 13 Gorffennaf 

2017.

4 ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL PARTNERIAETH DIOGELWCH CYMUNEDOL 
(MAE'R CYFARFOD HWN WEDI EI DDYNODI'N GYFARFOD PWYLLGOR 
CRAFFU TROSEDD AC ANHREFN STATUDOL) (Tudalennau 13 - 30)
Adroddiad Prif Weithredwr - Aelod Cabinet dros Gynllunio a Diogelu'r 
Cyhoedd

Pwrpas: Darparu sicrwydd a throsolwg i’r Aelodau o weithgareddau a 
chynnydd y Bartneriaeth yn 2016/17.

Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus



2

5 ADRODDIAD GWELLIANT BLYNYDDOL ARCHWILYDD CYFFREDINOL 
CYMRU (Tudalennau 31 - 60)
Adroddiad Prif Weithredwr - Aelod Cabinet dros Reolaeth Gorfforaethol ac 
Asedau

Pwrpas: I’w sicrhau drwy adroddiadau Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru a 
chefnogaeth yr ymateb gweithredol.

6 ADRODDIADAU ASTUDIAETH SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU 
(Tudalennau 61 - 94)
Adroddiad Prif Weithredwr - Arweinydd y Cyngor Aelod a'r Cabinet dros Gyllid

Pwrpas: I’w sicrhau drwy adroddiadau Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru a 
chefnogaeth yr ymateb gweithredol.

7 CYNLLUN Y CYNGOR 2017 - 23 (Tudalennau 95 - 184)
Adroddiad Prif Weithredwr - Arweinydd y Cyngor Aelod a'r Cabinet dros Gyllid

Pwrpas: Gofynnir i’r Pwyllgor gymeradwyo a chefnogi:
i) ystyriaethau’r Pwyllgorau Trosolwg a Chraffu i gyfrannu at 
ddatblygiad dogfen derfynol Cynllun y Cyngor 2017-23
ii) cynnwys cyffredinol Cynllun y Cyngor a dogfen ‘Sut ydym ni’n 
mesur llwyddiant’ ar gyfer blaenoriaeth y ‘Cyngor Presennol’
iii) y targedau arfaethedig ar gyfer y dangosyddion perfformiad 
cenedlaethol.

8 CYNLLUN GWEITHREDU STRATEGAETH GAFFAEL (Tudalennau 185 - 
200)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu) - Aelod Cabinet dros Reolaeth 
Gorfforaethol ac Asedau

Pwrpas: I ystyried Cynllun Gweithredu'r Strategaeth Gaffael.

9 MONITRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW 2017/18 (MIS 4) A RHAGLEN GYFALAF 
2017/18 (MIS 4) (Tudalennau 201 - 264)
Adroddiad Rheolwr Cyllid Corfforaethol - Arweinydd y Cyngor Aelod a'r 
Cabinet dros Gyllid

Pwrpas: Pwrpas yr adroddiad hwn yw darparu Monitro Cyllideb Refeniw 
2017/18 (Mis 4) a Darparu gwybodaeth diwedd Mis 4 (diwedd 
Gorffennaf) rhaglen gyfalaf 2017/18 i Aelodau.



3

10 ADRODDIAD GWYBODAETH AM Y GWEITHLU - CHWARTER 1 
(Tudalennau 265 - 298)
Adroddiad Uwch Reolwr, Adnoddau Dynol a Datblygu Sefydliadol - Aelod 
Cabinet dros Reolaeth Gorfforaethol ac Asedau

Pwrpas: Ystyried Adroddiad Gwybodaeth am y Gweithlu ar gyfer Chwarter 1 
2017/18.

11 RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL (Tudalennau 299 - 306)
Adroddiad Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Pwrpas: Ystyried y flaenraglen waith Pwyllgor Craffu & Trosolwg Adnoddau 
Corfforaethol.

Yn gywir

Robert Robins
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



1

PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU ADNODDAU CORFFORAETHOL
13 GORFFENNAF 2017

Cofnodion cyfarfod Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Adnoddau Corfforaethol 
Cyngor Sir y Fflint a gynhaliwyd yn Ystafell Bwyllgora Delyn, Neuadd Y Sir, Yr 
Wyddgrug, ddydd Iau 13 Gorffennaf 2017.

YN BRESENNOL: Cynghorydd Clive Carver (Cadeirydd)
Y Cynghorwyr: Haydn Bateman, Bob Connah, Paul Cunningham, 
Patrick Heesom, Andrew Holgate, Paul Johnson, Richard Jones, Mike Lowe, 
Michelle Perfect, Vicky Perfect ac Arnold Woolley

YMDDIHEURIAD: Cynghorydd Hilary McGuill

EILYDD: Cynghorydd David Wisinger (ar ran Ron Hampson)

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL: Cynghorydd Bernie Attridge

CYFRANWYR: Cynghorydd Aaron Shotton, Arweinydd ac Aelod Cabinet 
Cyllid; Cynghorydd Billy Mullin, Aelod Cabinet Rheoli Corfforaethol; Prif 
Weithredwr; Rheolwr Cyllid Corfforaethol; a Swyddog Gweithredol Cyfathrebu 
a Busnes Corfforaethol

ARSYLWYR: Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Swyddog y Pwyllgor

7. DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD

Ni ddatganwyd unrhyw gysylltiad.

8. COFNODION

Cyflwynwyd cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 15 Mehefin 2017.

PENDERFYNWYD:

Cymeradwyo’r cofnodion fel cofnod cywir a’u llofnodi gan y Cadeirydd.

9. CYNLLUN Y CYNGOR 2017-23

Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd Aaron Shotton Cynllun y Cyngor 2017-23 
drafft a oedd wedi’i adolygu a’i newid i adlewyrchu prif flaenoriaethu'r Cyngor 
ar gyfer y tymor pum mlynedd o'r weinyddiaeth newydd.  Roedd yn ddyletswydd 
statudol gan y Cyngor i fabwysiadu'r Cynllun (a oedd yn cymryd lle'r Cynllun 
Gwella blaenorol) a'i bwysigrwydd i adnabod blaenoriaethau ac amcanion, yn 
arbennig yn ystod adegau o galedi, yn cael eu hadnabod.

I gywiro'r pwrpas yr adroddiad ar yr agenda, gofynnodd y Prif Weithredwr 
am sylwadau i roi fel adborth i’r Cabinet fel bod pob Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu 
yn gallu ystyried eu meysydd penodol.  Bydd ymatebion yn cael eu dychwelyd 

Tudalen 5

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 3



2

i’r Pwyllgor hwn a’r Cabinet ym mis Medi 2017 i helpu i lywio'r Cynllun terfynol 
cyn cael cymeradwyaeth y Cyngor.  Mae’r themâu blaenorol wedi'i gydgrynhoi 
i chwe blaenoriaeth i’w cyflenwi yn y pum mlynedd nesaf, gyda ffocws penodol 
yn y flwyddyn gyntaf.

Dywedodd y Swyddog Gweithredol Cyfathrebu a Busnes Corfforaethol 
bod y strwythur cyffredin o’r cynllun blaenorol wedi’i gadw, ond ni fydd materion 
polisi cenedlaethol yn effeithio ar gyflenwi rhai canlyniadau.  Roedd y tabl o 
fewn y Cynllun yn nodi'r effaith dymunol i bob blaenoriaeth ac is-flaenoriaeth 
sydd wedi’i gysylltu â’r  Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig (MTFS) y Cyngor 
ac ymrwymiad i Ddeddf Lles Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015. Roedd 
rheoli risgiau wedi'u nodi ar gyfer pob adran.  Bydd manylion ar berfformiad 
targed a cherrig filltir yn cael eu rhannu yn yr ail ran o ddogfen “Sut ydym yn 
mesur llwyddiant’ sydd i’w rannu ar ddyddiad diweddarach.

Siaradodd y Cynghorydd Billy Mullin ynghylch cofnod y Cyngor ar 
berfformiad fel y nodwyd gan y Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru, a’r bwriad i adeiladu 
ar y llwyddiannau hynny.

Croesawodd y Cynghorydd Richard Jones y gwelliannau parhaus yn 
strwythur y Cynllun.  Roedd ei bryderon ynghylch y cynnwys,  dywedodd nad 
oedd manylion ar sut y bydd y blaenoriaethau yn cael eu mesur o ran eu 
llwyddiant.  Adlewyrchodd ar Gynlluniau blaenorol a oedd yn teimlo yr oeddynt 
yn canolbwyntio ar ardal Glannau Dyfrdwy, a gofynnodd am sicrwydd y byddai’r 
gwariant ar y blaenoriaethau cyfredol yn cael eu lledaenu’n deg ar draws y sir.

Dywedodd y Prif Weithredwr bod rhai materion drwy’r sir gyfan, ond 
rhoddodd enghreifftiau o eraill sydd wedi’u targedu’n benodol yn unol ag 
ardaloedd o angen neu sy’n ddibynnol ar gyllid.  Bydd cynlluniau ar sail 
ddaearyddol a’u buddion i ardaloedd ehangach yn cael eu cyfeirio yn yr ail ran 
o’r ddogfen.

Eglurodd y Cynghorydd Aaron Shotton bod cyfeiriad at Lannau Dyfrdwy 
oherwydd ffocws rhanbarthol a chenedlaethol ar bwysigrwydd economaidd o 
dwf Ardal Fenter Glannau Dyfrdwy y byddai Sir Y Fflint ar y cyfan yn manteisio 
ohono.    Hefyd cyfeiriodd at estyniad i’r rhaglen adeiladu tai'r Cyngor i rannau 
eraill o’r sir.

Er i'r Cynghorydd Jones gydnabod Glannau Dyfrdwy fel y ganolfan 
gyflogaeth yn y sir gyda buddiannau i'r ardaloedd ehangach, teimlodd ei fod yn 
bwysig bod cymunedau eraill yn cael cyllid cyfartal, yn arbennig i adfywio 
canolfannau tref.

Amlygwyd pwysigrwydd twristiaeth gan y Cynghorydd Vicky Perfect i 
helpu i roi hwb i’r economi leol.

Awgrymodd y Cynghorydd Arnold Woolley eiriau eraill yn lle'r gair 
'effaith' a oedd wedi cael ei adrodd drosodd a throsodd yn y Cynllun.   
Gofynnodd am y cyswllt rhwng tai cymdeithasol a’r Un Llwybr Mynediad at Dai 
(SARTH) a’r angen i ddiffinio tlodi i dargedu cymorth yn briodol.  Awgrymodd 

Tudalen 6



3

meysydd blaenoriaeth eraill megis diogelu pobl ifanc yn erbyn camddefnyddio 
cyffuriau; hyfforddiant addysg i ddiwallu sgiliau gofynnol; mynd i’r afael â 
throsedd amgylcheddol megis baw cŵn; a thai rhent sector preifat. 

Mewn ymateb, dywedodd y Cynghorydd Aaron Shotton y gellir gwneud 
cyfeiriad mwy penodol i dwristiaeth a oedd wedi'i nodi dan y flaenoriaeth 
'Cyngor Gwyrdd’.   Dywedodd bod meincnodau clir ar dlodi a bod angen barn 
gytbwys ar aelodau blaenoriaeth yn groes i fusnes dyddiol y Cyngor.  Roedd 
cefndir rhai o’r pynciau a awgrymwyd yn ffurfio rhan o fframwaith Llywodraeth 
Cymru, gan gynnwys materion eraill megis adolygu polisi Treth Y Cyngor ar Dai 
Amlfeddiannaeth (AMO).  Tra bo’r cam hwn o’r ddogfen yn nodi amcanion y 
blaenoriaethau, byddai’r ail ran ar fesur perfformiad yn cynnwys y lefel o 
fanylder y mae’r Aelodau eu hangen. 

Eglurodd y Prif Weithredwr bod y blaenoriaethau wedi seilio ar effeithiau 
hirdymor gyda strategaethau cefnogol a fyddai'n cael eu hystyried yn y ddogfen 
ddilynol gan bob Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu.   Mae llawer o’r meysydd 
blaenoriaeth eraill yn awgrymu yn faterion cymdeithas, a dim ond ychydig o 
ddylanwad y byddai gan y Cyngor.

Er ei fod yn cefnogi amcanion y blaenoriaethau, nid oedd y Cynghorydd 
Patrick Heesom yn teimlo na allai gefnogi’r Cynllun yn ei ffurf bresennol gan 
nad oedd yn dangos mecanwaith i gyflawni’r canlyniadau.

Ail-adroddodd y Swyddog Gweithredol Cyfathrebu a Busnes 
Corfforaethol y bydd yr ail ran o’r ddogfen yn cynnwys mesurau a cherrig milltir 
lle gallai datblygiad gael ei graffu, fodd bynnag nid oedd y Cynllun drafft yn 
cynnwys manylion ar sut y byddai llwyddiant yn cael ei fesur.

Mewn ymateb i bryderon y Cynghorydd Heesom ar yr angen am ragor o 
eglurder, atgoffodd y Prif Weithredwr yr Aelodau bod y Cynllun drafft wedi’i 
wneud ar sail y Cynllun Gwella blaenorol, lle’r oedd mecanweithiau wedi'u hen 
sefydlu, ac wedi’u cefnogi gan strategaethau, wedi helpu i yrru perfformiad. 

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Paul Johnson y dylai’r ddogfen gynnwys 
cyfeiriad at Brexit fel risg sylweddol posibl i ganlyniadau ar yr economi leol dros 
y pum mlynedd nesaf.  Awgrymodd y Prif Weithredwr bod elfennau ar yr 
economi leol yn y Cynllun yn gallu cael eu cryfhau a siaradodd am y 
trafodaethau rhanbarthol sy’n digwydd ar hyn o bryd.

Yn dilyn ymholiad gan y Cynghorydd Holgate ar Isafswm Darpariaeth 
Refeniw (MRP), cydnabuwyd y dylai gael ei gynnwys yn y geirfa ynghyd ag 
unrhyw dalfyriadau.  Pwysleisiodd yr Aelodau yr angen i'r ddogfen yn ystyrlon 
ac awgrymwyd y dylid cael dolenni i'w defnyddio i helpu egluro brawddegau.

Awgrymodd y Cynghorydd David Wisinger ymgynghoriad ag Iechyd 
Cyhoeddus Cymru ar geisiadau cynllunio ar gyfer addasiadau atic fflat un 
ystafell i atal gorlenwi a thrafod hyn gyda Chynllunio.  Cytunodd â’r pwynt a 
wnaethpwyd ynghylch Treth Y Cyngor mewn Tai Amlfeddianaeth.

Tudalen 7



4

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Woolley y dylai blaen y ddogfen gyfeirio at 
waith ar flaenoriaethau ‘yn unol â phartneriaid hanfodol neu statudol.’  
Dywedodd y Prif Weithredwr y gellir cadarnhau hyn yn ychwanegol â’r symbol 
ysgwyd llaw.

 Ailadroddodd y Cynghorydd Jones ei bryderon ar gynnwys y ddogfen 
gyfredol ac nid oedd yn gallu cefnogi argymhellion llawn ar y sail hynny.

Cadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr bod sylwadau’r Aelodau ar gynnwys y 
cynllun drafft yn cael eu hystyried gan y Cabinet.

PENDERFYNWYD:

(a) Bod y Pwyllgor yn hysbysu'r Cabinet ei fod yn cefnogi'r strwythur, fformat 
a chynnwys y fersiwn 'cyhoeddus' y cynllun (Gwella) y Cyngor 2017-23 
a fydd yn cael ei gyflwyno i’r Cyngor i’w gymeradwyo maes o law; a

(b) Lle bo Aelodau wedi mynegi pryderon, bydd y rhain yn cael eu hystyried 
gan y swyddogion.

10. MONITRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW 2016/17 (ALLDRO) A MONITRO 
RHAGLEN GYFALAF (ALLDRO)

 Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Cyllid Corfforaethol adroddiad ar fonitro cyllideb 
refeniw 2016/17 (alldro) ar gyfer y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai  a Chyllid y Cyngor a'r 
Rhaglen Gyfalaf 2016/17 (alldro), cyn i’r Cabinet ei ystyried.

Monitro Cyllideb Refeniw

Roedd y sefyllfa terfynol (yn amodol ar archwiliad) wedi nodi diffyg 
gweithredol £0.846m.  Roedd yr alldro cyffredinol yn cynnwys effaith 
gadarnhaol gan y newid ym mholisi Cyfrifo Isafswm Darpariaeth Refeniw (MRP) 
a oedd yn weithredol yn dileu'r diffyg gweithredu gyda'r gwariant net yn 
£2.039m yn is na’r gyllideb.  Roedd yr adroddiad yn disodli’r sefyllfa mis 12 a 
nodwyd yn flaenorol i'r Cabinet (wedi'i atodi fel dolen i'r dogfennau).  Rhoddwyd 
trosolwg byr ar y prif symudiadau ar gyfer y flwyddyn gyda manylion y 
symudiadau sylweddol ers mis 12. Hefyd rhoddwyd ddiweddariad ar gyllid wrth 
gefn at raid a’r rhaglen o effeithlonrwydd y byddai gwelliant yn cael ei ddangos 
ar y flwyddyn flaenorol.  Roedd y prif newidiadau o fewn y cronfeydd wrth gefn 
a glustnodwyd yn cynnwys lleihad sylweddol yn y Cronfeydd Statws Sengl 
oherwydd tynnu i lawr o gyllid i fodloni costau cymeradwy.

Ar y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai, mae’r gwariant net yn ystod y flwyddyn yn 
£0.018m yn is na'r gyllideb, gyda balans cau yn £1.116m sy’n cynrychioli 3.5% 
i gyfanswm gwariant (yn uwch na'r isafswm lefel a argymellir o 3%).

Yn ystod eglurhad ar y newid polisi cyfrifo Isafswm Darpariaeth Refeniw, 
tynnwyd sylw at adroddiad y Cyngor ar 6 Rhagfyr 2016.

Tudalen 8



5

Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Richard Jones gwestiwn ynghylch y 
dehongliad o’r geiriau ar ganlyniad sefyllfa’r cyllid Grant Cynnal Refeniw.   
Cadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr safle cryf gan Sir y Fflint fel rhan o lywodraeth 
leol ar y cyd yn lobio Llywodraeth Cymru am setliad cyllid tecach sydd wedi 
arwain at ganlyniad mwy ffafrio na ddisgwyliwyd.

Mewn ymateb i ymholiad gan y Cynghorydd Haydn Bateman, eglurodd 
swyddogion ynghylch y dull o adeiladu cronfeydd Cynhaliaeth y Gaeaf a’r 
defnydd o gronfeydd Statws Sengl.

Yn dilyn cais gan y Cynghorydd Patrick Heesom, cytunodd y Rheolwr 
Cyllid Corfforaethol i ddarparu dadansoddiad o gyfran cronfeydd 
hapddigwyddiad a ddefnyddir i fodloni effaith trosglwyddiadau ased cymunedol.

Rhaglen Gyfalaf

 Mae tabl yn dangos newidiadau i’r rhaglen yn ystod 2016/17 yn nodi 
cyllideb ddiwygiedig o £65.968m.   Ers y chwarter diwethaf, roedd cynnydd net 
yng nghyfanswm y rhaglen o £5.918m fel y nodwyd yn adrannau 1.06-1.08. 
Roedd cyfanswm y swm i’w barhau i 2017/18 yn £3.589m a oedd yn lleihad 
sylweddol ar y flwyddyn flaenorol.  Roedd diweddariad ar gyllid cynlluniau 
cymeradwy 2016/17 yn nodi argaeledd o £5.066m a glustnodwyd i ariannu 
cynlluniau cyfalaf yn y dyfodol. 

PENDERFYNWYD:

(a) Bod yr adroddiad Monitro Cyllideb Refeniw (alldro) ar gyfer 2016/17 yn 
cael ei dderbyn;

(b) Bod yr adroddiad Rhaglen Gyfalaf (alldro) ar gyfer 2016/17 yn cael ei 
dderbyn; a

(c) Cadarnhaodd y Pwyllgor nad oedd unrhyw faterion penodol i dynnu at 
sylw'r Cabinet.

11. MONITRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW 2017/18 (DROS DRO)

Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Cyllid Corfforaethol adroddiad ar y sefyllfa dros 
dro monitro cyllideb refeniw ar gyfer 2017/18 cyn cael ei ystyried gan y Cabinet.   
Atgoffodd yn ystod cyfnod cynnar yn flwyddyn, cafodd adnoddau eu cyflwyno i 
gau’r cyfrifon ar gyfer 2016/17 i gydymffurfio â’r dyddiad cau statudol.    Yr 
asesiad cychwynnol yn y cam cynnar hwn oedd bod gwariant a ragwelwyd i fod 
yn £0.978m yn uwch na’r gyllideb, fodd bynnag nid oedd hyn yn adlewyrchu 
sefyllfa alldro cyfan a ragwelwyd a ddylai gael ei adrodd ym mis Medi.   Yn 
ystod diweddariad ar fonitro risgiau a risgiau eraill sy’n ymddangos, 
gwnaethpwyd cyfeiriad at ddyraniadau cyllid ychwanegol gan Llywodraeth 
Cymru ar ofal cymdeithasol.  Nid oedd amrywiadau sylweddol wedi’u nodi ar y 
Cyfrif Refeniw Tai.

Tudalen 9



6

Cytunodd y Rheolwr Cyllid Corfforaethol i rannu gwybodaeth ar y 
pwysau sy’n codi o’r incwm injan nwy, yn ôl cais gan y Cynghorydd Haydn 
Bateman.

Mewn ymateb i sylwadau gan y Cynghorydd Richard Jones, darparodd 
y Prif Weithredwr gadarnhad ar y grant Cronfa Gofal Canolraddol a’r enciliad o 
daliadau tanysgrifiadau porth meddalwedd.

Gofynnodd y Cadeirydd am fwy o fanylion ar y diffyg effeithlonrwydd 
mewn trwyddedau maes parcio yn Neuadd Y Sir a dywedwyd y bydd y ffigurau 
yn cael eu rhannu.  Awgrymodd y Cynghorydd Jones y dylid cynnig cost 
gostyngedig o drwyddedau maes parcio i fasnachwyr canol tref.  Dywedodd y 
Prif Weithredwr bod system reoledig mewn lle ar gyfer parcio yn Neuadd y Sir 
a byddai’r trefniadau yn amodol i adolygiad pellach.

PENDERFYNWYD:

(a) Bod yr adroddiad Monitro Cyllideb Refeniw (alldro) ar gyfer 2017/18 yn 
cael ei dderbyn; a

(b) Cadarnhaodd y Pwyllgor nad oedd unrhyw faterion penodol i dynnu at 
sylw'r Cabinet.

12. DIWEDDARIAD STRATEGAETH ARIANNOL TYMOR CANOLIG

Cyflwynodd y Prif Weithredwr a’r Rheolwr Cyllid Corfforaethol yr 
adroddiad ar y rhagolwg ariannol diwygiedig ar gyfer 2018/19 fel rhan o 
adnewyddu’r Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig (MTFS).

Rhoddwyd gyflwyniad a oedd yn trafod y meysydd canlynol: 

 Rhagolygon Ariannol 2018/19
 Prif bwysau
 Risgiau ac Effeithiau Posibl o 2017/18
 Sefyllfa Genedlaethol
 Gwneud Achos Cenedlaethol
 Camau Nesaf

Roedd y rhagolwg diwygiedig yn dangos bwlch a ragwelir o £11.7m ar 
gyfer 2017/18 cyn unrhyw fodelu ar lefelau Treth Y Cyngor cynyddol.  Roedd y 
rhagolygon wedi seilio ar ystod o wybodaeth gan gynnwys pwysau 
cenedlaethol, lleol a gweithlu.  Er y gellir rhagweld rhai materion yn sicr, roedd 
rhai y tu allan i reolaeth y Cyngor.   Y ddau ffactor mwyaf sylweddol oedd setliad 
ariannol llywodraeth leol ar gyfer 2017/18 a lefelau Treth Y Cyngor.

Amlygodd y Cynghorydd Aaron Shotton y pwysigrwydd o gynghorau yng 
Nghymru yn parhau i lobio Llywodraeth Cymru ar y cyd i gael cyllid tecach ac i 
Sir Y Fflint i wneud yr achos ymysg y rheiny gyda safle a ariennir yn isel.  Roedd 
tybiaethau rhesymol wedi cael eu gwneud ar gyllid grant a gwnaethpwyd 

Tudalen 10



7

gyfeiriad at bosibilrwydd toriadau cyllid ‘cudd’ gan Llywodraeth DU a fyddai’n 
effeithio Cymru.  

Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn gan y Cynghorydd Richard Jones, dywedodd 
y Prif Weithredwr y byddai’r gwaith yn parhau ar ddatblygu’r MTFS, fodd 
bynnag roedd yn anochel na fyddai’r bwlch cyllideb a ragwelwyd yn cael ei 
ddiwallu heb effeithio ar wasanaethau rheng flaen.   Roedd hyn wedi ei 
adnabod yn eang yn ystod y broses ymgynghori cyllideb lle'r oedd y Pwyllgorau 
Trosolwg a Chraffu wedi ystyried yr opsiynau ar gyfer eu meysydd penodol.

PENDERFYNWYD:

Gan ystyried yr adroddiad, bod y Pwyllgor yn hysbysu’r Cabinet ei fod yn 
cefnogi’r fframwaith ar gyfer diwygio’r Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig.

13. ADRODDIAD CANLYNIAD CYNLLUN GWELLA 2016/17

Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog yr adroddiad diweddariad i ystyried cynnydd 
ar gyfer cyflawni’r effeithiau yn y Cynllun Gwella 2016/17, gan ganolbwyntio ar 
y meysydd tan berfformiad sy’n berthnasol i’r Pwyllgor ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn.  

Dywedodd y Swyddog Gweithredol Cyfathrebu a Busnes Corfforaethol 
bod cynnydd da ar gamau gweithredu a pherfformiad yn erbyn y targedau, 
gydag eglurhad ar yr unig faes coch ar ganran trosiant gweithwyr.   Roedd y 
mwyafrif o risgiau a nodwyd yn ganolog neu’n fychan, a’r unig faes risg coch ar 
y raddfa oedd yr her ariannol.

Cododd y Cynghorydd Richard Jones fater ar gysondeb y graddfeydd 
canlyniad wrth gymharu’r ddau gam gweithredu.  Eglurwyd bod y cam 
gweithredu cyntaf yn cynnwys Rheolau'r Weithdrefn Gontractau newydd a 
gyflwynwyd lle’r oedd buddion cymunedol yn cael eu cyflawni dros dymor 
hirach.  Er bod cynnydd wedi’i wneud ar y Cyfamod y Lluoedd Arfog. Nid oedd 
y canlyniadau wedi cyflawni 100% ar y cam hwn.  Hefyd amlygodd y 
Cynghorydd Jones nad oedd y Gorchymyn Diogelu Mannau Cyhoeddus ym 
Mwcle wedi'u nodi o fewn y Dangosydd Perfformiad Allweddol.   Ar gais am 
sylwadau ar ganran trosiant gweithwyr, rhoddwyd diweddariad byr a bydd yn 
cael ei egluro ymhellach yn y diweddariad Gwybodaeth Gweithlu nesaf.  Ar 
ganran dioddefwyr ailadroddus risg uchel o gamdriniaeth domestig a gyfeiriwyd 
at y Gynhadledd Asesiad Risg Amlasiantaeth Sir y Fflint, byddai swyddogion 
yn sefydlu a fyddai'r targed o 28 a osodwyd yn lleol neu'n genedlaethol, gan ei 
fod yn uwch na'r flwyddyn flaenorol.

PENDERFYNWYD:

Bod yr adroddiad canlyniad Cynllun Gwella 2016/17 yn cael ei dderbyn. 

14. RHAGLEN GWAITH I’R DYFODOL

Cytunwyd ar y camau gweithredu canlynol:

Tudalen 11



8

 Cynllun y Cyngor 2017-23 i’w gynnwys ar gyfer mis Medi 2017.
 Ymgynghoriad ar y Papur Gwyn Diwygio Etholiadol (wedi’i drefnu ar 

gyfer mis Medi 2017) i fod i ddechrau ar ddiwedd y mis.
 Y Rheolwr Cynllunio At Argyfwng Rhanbarthol i’w wahodd ym mis 

Medi 2017 i gyflwyno ei adroddiad blynyddol.
 Roedd cynrychiolydd o'r Awdurdod Tân ac Achub wedi'i wahodd i 

ddod ym mis Tachwedd 2017 ar gyfer yr eitem ymgynghori ar 
gyllideb. 

 Er nad oedd ar gael ar gyfer y cyfarfod ym mis Rhagfyr 2017, bydd 
y Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throsedd yn cael ei wahodd ar ddyddiad 
arall fel rhan o'r trefniant blynyddol gyda'r Pwyllgor.

 Anogwyd aelodau o’r Pwyllgor i fynychu’r gweithdy ‘Cysoni Dulliau o 
Gyflawni Newid'.

PENDERFYNWYD:

(a) Bod y Rhaglen Waith i’r Dyfodol fel y cyflwynwyd, yn cael ei 
chymeradwyo gyda newidiadau; a

(b) Bod y Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd, mewn ymgynghoriad â’r 
Cadeirydd yn cael amrywio’r Rhaglen Waith i’r Dyfodol rhwng 
cyfarfodydd, os bydd angen.  

15. AELODAU O’R CYHOEDD A'R WASG YN BRESENNOL

Nid oedd unrhyw aelod o’r cyhoedd na’r wasg yn bresennol.

(Dechreuodd y cyfarfod am 10am a daeth i ben am 12.25pm)

…………………………
Cadeirydd

Tudalen 12



CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Thursday, 21 September 2017

Report Subject Community Safety Partnership Annual Report

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Planning and Public Protection

Report Author Chief Executive

Type of Report Strategic

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To provide Members with an overview of the Community Safety Partnership’s 
activities and progress. The Committee fulfils the role of the Statutory Crime & 
Disorder Scrutiny Committee for Flintshire so is the recipient of this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To note and support the contents of the report.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 BACKGROUND OF THE FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFEY 
PARTNERSHIP

1.01 The Flintshire Community Safety Partnership is required to formally report 
to this Committee on an annual basis to provide an overview of activities 
undertaken over the previous twelve months.  This ensures that the 
Partnership meets its obligations under sections 19 and 20 of the Police & 
Criminal Justice Act 2006. 

1.02 Flintshire County Council has a statutory duty under the Crime and Disorder 
Tudalen 13

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 4



Act 1998, and the subsequent amendments by the Police and Justice Act 
2006, to work in partnership with the police, health service, probation and 
fire service as a community safety agenda partnership.

1.03 There has been a partnership in existence in Flintshire since 1999. To 
support the partnership, the County is served by a small team of local 
authority and police officers who work on shared priorities including 
domestic abuse, substance misuse and anti-social behaviour, along with the 
Neighbourhood Wardens.  

1.04 In recent years the drive to rationalise the cost and bureaucracy of 
partnerships has led to significant changes in the Flintshire Community 
Safety Partnership’s governance structure. In April 2013 the Partnership 
merged with the Local Service Board (which has since become the Public 
Service Board). This has had minimal impact on the operational delivery 
structure; however at a strategic level it has meant a greater consistency of 
approach. The statutory duties of the Community Safety Partnership 
continue to be fulfilled. 

1.05 Considerable progress has also been made in the way community safety 
partnerships across the region have worked together. The establishment of 
the North Wales Safer Communities Board (SCB) in July 2012 has been the 
most significant development. This Board represents a partnership between 
all the statutory authorities across the region (as defined by the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998), along with the voluntary sector. The overall aim of the 
Board is to introduce greater consistency in this area of work, whilst allowing 
opportunities to share expertise and work more effectively and efficiently.

1.06 The Flintshire Community Safety Partnership has set up a more specialist 
and operational People Are Safe Board to oversee partnership work. The 
Board has a detailed Plan with priorities and outcomes supported by 
performance measures with regular reporting. 

1.07 The Plan reflects the recommendations contained within the regional 
Strategic Assessment, and also takes into account the Police and Crime 
Plan and the work of the Substance Misuse Area Planning Board. The SCB 
at a regional level concentrates on common regional issues such as counter 
terrorism, re-offending, and hidden crimes (as identified in the Strategic 
Assessment). A copy of the latest SCB Plan accompanies this report. 

1.08 The Flintshire People are Safe Board has the following priorities outlined 
below, and reports to both the PSB and SCB at regular intervals.

1. Prevent Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour

 Reduce victim based  crime
 Reduce ASB
 Increase the reporting of Hate Crime
 Support vulnerable people to prevent them  becoming victims of crime
 Reduce repeat incidents of victim based crime and ASB for victims and 

perpetrators
 Work with MARAC to reduce the levels of repeat high risk victims of 

Domestic Abuse
 Deal effectively with high risk cases of Domestic Abuse.  

Tudalen 14



 Increase the confidence in reporting  Domestic Abuse and Sexual 
Violence

 Increase awareness amongst young people of domestic abuse and 
sexual violence

2. Reduce harm and the risk of harm

 Reduce substance misuse
 Reduce drug and alcohol use
 Community Tension Monitoring 

3. Deliver an Effective Response

 Reduce reoffending
 Understand and address migration impacts on the community safety 

agenda.

1.09 Some of the key activities that have been identified to support these 
priorities are as follows.

 Work with the PCC’s ‘victim hub’ to ensure an enhanced service to 
victims of crime.

 Maintain the multi-agency intelligence led approach to tackle ASB 
through monthly tasking and ad hoc professionals meetings.

 Raise awareness of violence against women by supporting the 
International White Ribbon Campaign on a local and regional level.

 Implementation of the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse 
and Sexual Violence (Wales) National Training Framework.

 Establish a virtual network to disseminate information and advice on 
substance misuse appropriately. 

 Look at how OWL can use other forms of social media to reach the 
wider community.

 Implementation of recommendations emerging from the Harm 
Reduction and Drug Poisoning Review Group.

 Implementation of alcohol brief intervention training as per the 
alcohol demand reduction work stream.

 Target repeat offenders (adults) via an Integrated Offender 
Management (IOM) process. Identifying those who cause the most 
harm (prolific offenders) and addressing their re-offending behaviour.

 Targeting young offenders to reduce offending and re-offending by 
implementing the Flintshire Youth Justice Service Plan.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 None as a result of this report.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

Tudalen 15



3.01 None as a result of this report.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 None as a result of this report.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 North Wales Safer Communities Board Plan, 2017-2021.

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01
Contact Officer: Sian Jones, Community and Business Protection Manager
Telephone: 01352 702132
E-mail: sian-jones@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 MARAC (Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference)
A MARAC, or multi-agency risk assessment conference, is a meeting where 
information is shared on the highest risk domestic abuse cases between 
representatives of local police, probation, health, child protection, housing 
practitioners, Independent Domestic Violence Advisors (IDVAs) and other 
specialists from the statutory and voluntary sectors.
After sharing all relevant information about a victim, representatives discuss 
options for increasing safety for the victim and turn these options into a co-
ordinated action plan. The primary focus of the MARAC is to safeguard the 
adult victim.

7.02 National Training Framework
The National Training Framework for violence against women, domestic 
abuse and sexual violence outlines the Welsh Government's requirements 
for training on these subjects across the public service and specialist third 
sector. 
The Framework is made up of six levels. Officers employed by the 
‘responsible authorities’ (as defined by statute) will be required to undertake 
training in relation to domestic abuse and sexual violence.

7.03 Public Services Board (PSB)
The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 established 
statutory PSBs, which replaces the voluntary Local Service Boards in each 
local authority area. The role of the board is to:

Tudalen 16



 assess the state of economic, social, environmental and cultural well-
being in its area 

 set objectives that are designed to maximise the PSBs contribution 
to the well-being goals.

Each PSB must prepare and publish a plan setting out its objectives and the 
steps it will take to meet them. This is called a Local Well-being Plan. It must 
state:

 why the PSB feels their objectives will contribute within their local 
area to achieving the well-being goals 

 how it has had regard to the assessment of Local Well-being in 
setting its objectives and steps to take.

7.04 Safer Communities Board (SCB)

The aim of the Safer Communities Board (SCB) is to provide strategic 
direction for the exercise of the Community Safety and Youth Justice 
functions across the region. The SCB promotes consistency of policy 
objectives, and the shared use of expertise and resources across the region. 
The objectives of the SCB include:-

 Reducing bureaucracy and formality through streamlining strategic 
and operational functions. 

 Identifying shared and/or common priorities 
 Acting as a lobbying group to influence the Welsh Government, 

Home Office and Local Policing Body. 
 Establishing a common and consistent framework for strategic, 

tactical and operational delivery at regional, sub-regional and local 
levels. 

 Facilitating and encouraging regional working in the interests of 
public value.

Providing a more efficient and consistent service in contributing to reducing 
crime and disorder and improving the criminal justice services in North 
Wales.

Tudalen 17



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



1

North Wales Safer 
Communities Board 

(NWSCB) Plan,
 2017 - 2021

T
udalen 19

http://www.north-wales.police.uk/
http://www.wcva.org.uk/members-partners/county-voluntary-councils


2

Foreword

The aim of the North Wales Safer Communities Board is to make North Wales a safe place.  

The role of the Safer Communities Board members is to work in partnership to achieve that aim.

In developing this plan, we have worked alongside the Police and Crime Commissioner to ensure that the Police and Crime Commissioner’s 
strategic outcomes are embedded within the plan.

Our plan has clear priorities which have been informed by a North Wales strategic assessment undertaken in November 2016 and the local 
community safety partnerships across the 6 counties of North Wales. It is vital that we maintain the links with local communities to enable us 
to understand and respond differently to crime and anti-social behaviour, which is often not confined to administrative boundaries. By learning 
from each other’s experiences, identifying good practice and understanding what works and doesn’t work we are better able to deliver 
successful outcomes and remove obstacles.

Cllr Hugh Jones JP
Chair, North Wales Safer Communities Board
 

T
udalen 20



3

Contents

What is the North Wales Safer Communities Board? 4

Introduction to our plan 5

Our shared values 5

The statutory framework 5

What does the evidence tell us? 6

The North Wales strategic assessment 7

The North Wales Safer Communities Board focus 8

The six North Wales Community Safety Partnership’s (CSP) focus 12

T
udalen 21



4

What is the North Wales Safer Communities Board?

The North Wales Safer Communities Board was established in July 2012 and our work is already influencing how the region’s public 
organisations strategically tackle crime and disorder.

We are a partnership of senior leaders and elected members from North Wales’ public organisations, established to tackle crime and disorder1.  
The following organisations are represented:

 Anglesey County Council
 Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board
 Community Rehabilitation Company
 Conwy County Borough Council
 Cyngor Gwynedd 
 Denbighshire County Council
 Flintshire County Council
 Medrwn Mon (on behalf of Welsh Council for Voluntary Action) 
 National Probation Service 
 North Wales Fire and Rescue Service
 North Wales Police
 Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
 Welsh Government
 Wrexham County Borough Council

1 As defined by the Crime and Disorder Act 1998

T
udalen 22



5

Introduction to our North Wales Safer Communities Board Plan

This North Wales Safer Communities Board Plan outlines how we will focus our work over the next 4 years, and specifically the next 12 months, 
by working in partnership to prevent and tackle crime and disorder. It sets out how the Board has prioritised its areas of work, and summarises 
the main outcomes, priorities, and indicators.  

This is the delivery document for the Police and Crime Plan and sets out: (1) what the Board will do and; (2) what the Board expects local 
Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs) to focus on. These are all based on the need identified in the ‘strategic assessment’, which is the 
evidence base for the Police and Crime Plan. However it should be noted that the statutory responsibilities to discharge the relevant sections of 
the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 continue to sit with local CSPs.

Our shared values
1. Working together to keep people safe by enabling the best services we can
2. Working collectively to put our communities first
3. Supporting the most vulnerable in our communities
4. Seeking to minimise the effects of reducing resources on front line services
5. Developing new ways of working in partnership
6. Delivering on our promises

The Statutory Framework
Section 6 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 as amended by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, requires responsible 
authorities to work in partnership to implement strategies that:

 Reduce crime and disorder in the area

 Combat substance misuse in the area; and 

 Reduce reoffending

In drawing up those strategies, responsible authorities are required by the 2011 Act to have regard to the police and crime objectives of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner for North Wales.  

T
udalen 23



6

The Police and Crime Commissioner’s objectives are:

 Domestic abuse

 Modern slavery

 Organised crime

 Sexual abuse (including Child Sexual Exploitation, CSE)

 Delivering safer neighbourhoods

What does the evidence tell us?
In working together we use evidence from “strategic needs assessments” to provide a needs basis in order to determine where we should 
focus our finite resources.  The same strategic needs assessments provide the evidential basis for the Police and Crime Plan.

Strategic 
Needs
Assessments

Police 
and 

Crime 
Plan

NWSCB 
Plan

Enablers

NWSCB 
will 

Deliver

Evidence Delivery

Two 
Strands

Key
Plan

T
udalen 24



7

The Strategic Needs Assessment

A strategic needs assessment was undertaken by North Wales Police in November 2016 and refreshed in April 2017 with the objective of 
evaluating crime and disorder issues impacting on the communities of North Wales. 

A national risk assessment matrix was used to assess areas of crime and disorder and inform priority setting. 

The matrix assesses each area by identifying:

 The nature and degree of the harm. 
 The Likelihood of the Impact occurring.
 The level of Risk posed after mitigation has been considered (mitigation is the capacity and capability of organisations to manage the 

issue).

The areas that were identified as high risk priorities for North Wales were:

 Child Sexual Exploitation
 Domestic Abuse
 Modern Day Slavery
 Organised Crime and the supply of illegal drugs

T
udalen 25



8

The North Wales Safer Communities Board focus
Based on the information in the North Wales strategic assessment, the Police and Crime Commissioners Plan and the local Community Safety 
Partnership knowledge the table below outlines the work that the NW SCB will oversee:

NWSCB 
Focus

Actions Milestones Success Lead Officer

1 PCC Objective: Domestic Violence

1.1 Regionalised DA service 
established and 
embedded across North 
Wales

 Work with Welsh 
Government  and the 
North Wales regional DAC 
Manager  to implement 
the Violence Against 
Women, Domestic Abuse 
and Sexual Violence 
(Wales) Act 2015

 Regional Domestic 
Abuse service (strategic 
and operational)in place 
for April 2018 agreed by 
all partners.

 Clarity of local and 
regional roles agreed 
and communicated

 Increase the confidence 
of victims to report 
domestic abuse and 
sexual violence

Colin Everett

2 PCC Objective: Modern Slavery
2.1 Develop our services to 

better understand and 
act against Modern 
Slavery

 Develop a multi-agency 
approach to  awareness 
raising, victim care, 
prevention and 
investigation 

 Increased number of 
referrals are received by 
the relevant agencies

 Increased awareness of 
modern slavery

 Protection of high risk 
victims of modern 
slavery

Annwen Morgan 

3 PCC Objective: Organised Crime

3.1 Technology enabled 
crime

 Guidance to safeguard 
against technology 
enabled crime is produced 

 Providing education and 
information on the 
prevention of cyber 
crime

 NWSCB partners have a 
safe environment to 
share information

 Protect the most 
vulnerable from cyber 
crime 

 An increased awareness 
of technology enabled 
crime

Mark Polin

T
udalen 26



9

NWSCB 
Focus

Actions Milestones Success Lead Officer

3.2 Drugs and Alcohol  Support and hold to 
account the APB to 
implement the WG 
substance misuse strategy

 Delivering on the APB’s 
commissioning priorities

 Reduce the impact of 
substance misuse on 
our communities

Lee Robinson

3.3 Counter Terrorism  Agree guidance on how 
the Counter Terrorism and 
Security Act 2015 will be 
delivered

 CONTEST Board and 
Channel Panels 
operating effectively

 An increase in the 
number of front line 
staff in NWSCB partners  
agencies who have been 
appropriately trained in 
Prevent

 Reduce the risk of a 
terrorist attack in the 
region

 Vulnerable people are 
safeguarded from the 
involvement in violent 
extremism

Iwan Davies

3.4 Drug supply  Tackle the OCGs that 
supply Class A drugs

 Develop our 
understanding of NPS

 Set up multi agency 
OCG panels 

 Share experiences of 
Wrexham town centre 
via the town centre 
action plan.

 Better sharing of 
intelligence re OCGs 
across NWSCB partners.

 A reduction in the 
number of NSP users 
and a better public 
understanding of the 
dangers of NPS.

Mark Polin

Lee Robinson / Vicky 
Jones

4 PCC Objective: Sexual Abuse (including Child Sexual Exploitation, CSE)
4.1 Child Sexual Exploitation  Share intelligence 

amongst partners to 
understand the risks 

 Implementation of a 
prevention strategy 
monitored through NW  
Safeguarding Board

 Protection of young 
people from CSE

 To deter and breakup 
perpetrator networks

Mark Polin

T
udalen 27



10

NWSCB 
Focus

Actions Milestones Success Lead Officer

5 PCC Objective: Delivering Safer Neighbourhoods
5.1 Community Tension 

Monitoring
 Embed effective 

partnership community 
tension monitoring 
processes

 Local partnerships agree 
arrangements for 
community tension 
monitoring

 Local Authorities 
maintain a strategic 
overview of potential 
community tensions to 
inform local decision 
making

 Community tensions are 
identified and 
addressed at an early 
stage 

Annwen Morgan

5.2 Hate Crime  Embed “Tackling Hate 
Crimes and Incidents: A 
framework for action”2

 Front line services 
increase their 
understanding of Hate 
crime and support an 
increase in reporting

 An increase in Hate 
Crime reporting

 Victims of Hate Crime 
receive appropriate 
support

Annwen Morgan

5.3 Supporting families and 
children at risk of ACE’s

 Identify and support 
vulnerable families who 
exhibit challenging 
behaviours

 Using an ACE informed 
lens for early 
intervention and root 
cause prevention

 Reduction in demand on 
frontline services

 Reduction in crime and 
disorder rates

Lee Robinson

5.4 Reduce Reoffending  Minimise gaps in service 
provision for those at risk 
of offending 

 Support the delivery of 
the All Wales Reducing 
Reoffending Strategy

 Reduction in re-
offending rates 

Andy Jones

5.5 Youth Justice  Improve collaborative 
working across the region

 Review the Youth Justice 

 Adopt regional YJ plan  Reduction in young 
people entering the 
criminal justice system

Colin Everett / Youth 
Justice Board Chairs

2 Welsh Government Tackling Hate Crimes and Incidents: A Framework for Action [2014]

T
udalen 28



11

NWSCB 
Focus

Actions Milestones Success Lead Officer

structures in light of 
reduced funding

 Prevent those in the 
criminal system from 
custodial sentencing

 For young offenders to 
have fulfilling life plans 
which help them avoid 
re-offending in the 
future

5.6 Migration changes  The migration toolkit 
identifies migration 
patterns and the 
implications for 
community safety 

 Relevant information is 
shared in a timely and 
appropriate way 

 The impacts of 
demographic change on 
the community safety 
agenda are understood 
and addressed

Annwen Morgan

6 Governance of the NWSCB

6.1 Ensure our work is 
evidence based

 Enhance the research and 
analysis processes across 
partners. 

 The NW SCB and each 
CSP will sign off a data 
sharing protocol

 Consolidate Needs 
Assessments to support 
resource allocation and 
collaboration.

 Information is shared in 
a timely and 
appropriate way

 A proposal and 
timetable for 
consolidating the needs 
assessments in 2018 is 
drafted.

Mark Polin

6.2 Commissioning Review  Review of Commissioning 
of  OPPC and APB

 More efficient and more 
focussed regional, sub 
regional and local 
community safety 
activity

 Best use is made of 
resources and expertise

Lee Robinson

T
udalen 29



12

NWSCB 
Focus

Actions Milestones Success Lead Officer

6.3 Reporting mechanism  NW SCB hold local CSPs, 
the Channel Panel and 
Modern Slavery delivery 
group  to account 

 Share good practice and 
expertise to improve 
performance

 Reduction in levels of 
crime and disorder 

Cllr Hugh Jones

6.4 External audit  Implement the relevant 
findings from the WAO 
review of community 
safety

 Participate in the Welsh 
Government review of 
community safety

 Ensure that the NWSCB 
reflects good practice

 Partners participate in 
the NWSCB 
appropriately

Cllr Hugh Jones

The 4 North Wales local Community Safety Partnership’s (CSPs) focus
 
This document outlines the plans to ensure we are working together to make North Wales a safe place.

The document should also act as a framework for the individual CSPs across North Wales to develop a local delivery plan that meets the 
objectives of the PCC, supports the evidence in the North Wales Police strategic assessment and meets the needs of the CSP at a local level.

T
udalen 30



CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Thursday, 21 September 2017 

Report Subject Annual Improvement Report of the Auditor General for 
Wales

Report Author Chief Executive

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This Annual Improvement Report (AIR) summarises the audit and regulatory work 
undertaken at the Council by the Wales Audit Office since the last report was 
published in July 2016.

Overall the Auditor General for Wales has reached a positive conclusion. “The 
Council is meeting its statutory requirements in relation to continuous 
improvement”.

No formal recommendations have been made during the year.  

There are four new voluntary proposals for improvement.

An executive response to the reviews is set out.  

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. To be assured by the Auditor General for Wales’ Annual Improvement 
Plan for 2016/17 and support the executive response to the Annual 
Improvement Report.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 The Annual Improvement Report
1.01 The Auditor General under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 

(Measure) undertakes and publishes an annual improvement report for all 
Welsh Councils, Fire and Rescue Authorities and National Park 
Authorities.

Tudalen 31

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 5



1.02 This is the seventh Annual Improvement Report for Flintshire. However, 
the format is different from previous years in that it is a summary of the 
audit, regulatory and inspection work carried out in 2016/17.

1.03 Overall the Auditor General has concluded that:
“The Council is meeting its statutory requirements in relation to continuous 
improvement”.

1.04 The Auditor General has not made any statutory recommendations with 
which the Council must comply.  There are 4 new voluntary proposals for 
improvement.

1.05 The Council’s response to the four proposals for improvement is attached 
as Appendix 2.

2.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 Resource implications have been considered during preparation of the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and will continue to be monitored during 
the regular budget monitoring and financial planning arrangements.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Audit 
Committee will be considering this report as part of their Forward Work 
programme.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 Findings from the Wales Audit Office are risk managed as part of regular 
monitoring.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1:  Annual Improvement Report September 2017

Appendix 2:  Flintshire’s executive response

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 Contact Officer: Karen Armstrong, Corporate Business and 
Communications Executive Officer
Telephone: 01352 702740
E-mail: karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 32

mailto:karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk


7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

Annual Improvement Report:  The Annual Improvement Report is 
publicised by the Wales Audit Office (WAO) on behalf of the Auditor General 
for Wales.  It brings together, with the input of other inspectorates such as 
Estyn and the Care and Social Services Inspectorate for Wales (CSSIW), a 
summary of the regulatory work of the past year.

Corporate Assessment: In 2013/14 the Wales Audit Office (WAO) began a 
new four year cycle of Corporate Assessments of improvement authorities in 
Wales. An in-depth Corporate Assessment reports on the Council’s track 
record of performance and outcomes as well as the key arrangements 
necessary to underpin improvements in services and functions. Flintshire’s 
first Corporate Assessment was conducted in late 2014 and the report on its 
outcomes was included in the Annual Improvement Report published in 
March 2015.

Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of the
Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009
to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Wales Audit Office: works to support the Auditor General as the public 
sector watchdog for Wales.  They aim to ensure that the people of Wales 
know whether public money is being managed wisely and that public bodies 
in Wales understand how to improve outcomes.

Tudalen 33



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



 

Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 
– Flintshire County Council 

Audit year: 2016-17 

Date issued: September 2017 

Document reference: 425A2017 

 

Tudalen 35



 

 

The Auditor General is independent of government, and is appointed by Her Majesty the Queen. The 

Auditor General undertakes his work using staff and other resources provided by the Wales Audit 

Office Board, which is a statutory board established for that purpose and to monitor and advise the 

Auditor General. The Wales Audit Office is held to account by the National Assembly. 

The Auditor General audits local government bodies in Wales, including unitary authorities, police, 

probation, fire and rescue authorities, national parks and community councils. He also conducts local 

government value for money studies and assesses compliance with the requirements of the Local 

Government (Wales) Measure 2009. 

Beyond local government, the Auditor General is the external auditor of the Welsh Government and 

its sponsored and related public bodies, the Assembly Commission and National Health Service 

bodies in Wales. 

The Auditor General and staff of the Wales Audit Office aim to provide public-focused and 

proportionate reporting on the stewardship of public resources and in the process provide insight and 

promote improvement. 

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will 

not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg. This document is also available in Welsh.  

This Annual Improvement Report has been prepared on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales by 

Paul Goodlad and Jeremy Evans under the direction of Huw Rees. 

 

 

Tudalen 36



Contents 

Page 3 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

Summary report  

2016-17 performance audit work 4 

The Council is meeting its statutory requirements in relation to  

continuous improvement 4 

Recommendations 4 

Audit, regulatory and inspection work reported during 2016-17 6 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Status of this report 12 

Appendix 2 – Annual Audit Letter 13 

Appendix 3 – National report recommendations 2016-17 16 

 

Tudalen 37



Summary report 

Page 4 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

2016-17 performance audit work 

1 In determining the breadth of work undertaken during the year, we considered the 

extent of accumulated audit and inspection knowledge as well as other available 

sources of information including Flintshire County Council’s (the Council) own 

mechanisms for review and evaluation. For 2016-17, we undertook improvement 

assessment work at all councils under three themes: governance, use of 

resources, and improvement planning and reporting. At some councils, we 

supplemented this work with local risk-based audits, identified in the Audit Plan for 

2016-17.  

2 The work carried out since the last Annual Improvement Report (AIR), including 

that of the relevant regulators, is set out in Exhibit 1.  

The Council is meeting its statutory requirements 
in relation to continuous improvement 

3 Based on, and limited to, the work carried out by the Wales Audit Office and 

relevant regulators, the Auditor General believes that the Council is likely to comply 

with the requirements of the Local Government Measure (2009) during 2017-18. 

Recommendations and proposals for 
improvement 

4 Given the wide range of services provided by the Council and the challenges it is 

facing, it would be unusual if we did not find things that can be improved. The 

Auditor General is able to: 

 make proposals for improvement – if proposals are made to the Council, we 

would expect it to do something about them and we will follow up what 

happens; 

 make formal recommendations for improvement – if a formal 

recommendation is made, the Council must prepare a response to that 

recommendation within 30 working days; 

 conduct a special inspection, and publish a report and make 

recommendations; and 

 recommend to ministers of the Welsh Government that they intervene in 

some way. 

  

Tudalen 38



 

Page 5 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

5 During the course of the year, the Auditor General did not make any formal 

recommendations. However, a number of proposals for improvement have been 

made and these are repeated in this report. We will monitor progress against them 

and relevant recommendations made in our national reports (Appendix 3) as part 

of our improvement assessment work. 

 

 

Tudalen 39



 

Page 6 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

Audit, regulatory and inspection work reported during 2016-17 

Exhibit 1: audit, regulatory and inspection work reported during 2016-17 

Description of the work carried out since the last AIR, including that of the relevant regulators, where relevant. 

Issue date Brief description Conclusions Proposals for improvement 

Governance 

May 2017 Good governance when 

determining service 

changes  

Review of the Council’s 

governance arrangements 

for determining service 

changes. 

The Council’s governance arrangements for 

determining significant service change are 

generally effective with some opportunities to 

further strengthen its approach. 

 

We came to this conclusion because: 

 the Council has a clear vision and strategic 

approach for determining  service change; 

 governance and accountability arrangements 

for service change  decision-making processes 

are clear, comprehensive and well-understood; 

 options appraisals relating to service change 

are robust, transparent and  wide-ranging; 

 the Council has effective arrangements to 

engage with, and inform,  stakeholders about 

The Council’s governance 

arrangements could be strengthened 

by: 

P1    Clearly defining the role of 

Scrutiny Committees in 

reviewing the impact of 

individual service changes, and 

by encouraging committees to 

reflect this role in their Forward 

Work Plans  

P2    Ensuring that Equality Impact 

Assessments associated with 

service change are of a 

consistently high quality. 

T
udalen 40



 

Page 7 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

Issue date Brief description Conclusions Proposals for improvement 

service change proposals, their potential 

implications  and the processes involved in 

reaching a decision; 

 corporate arrangements for monitoring the 

impact of service change are generally clear, 

but there is scope to clarify the role of scrutiny; 

and 

 the Council continues to review and refine its 

governance and decision-making 

arrangements and responds positively to 

external audit feedback. 

P3   Ensuring that internal reviews of 

its governance arrangements – 

such as the Annual Governance 

Statement – explicitly consider 

governance in relation to 

decisions about service change. 

Use of resources 

November 

2016 

Annual audit letter 2015-

16 

Letter summarising the key 

messages arising from the 

Auditor General’s statutory 

responsibilities under the 

Public Audit (Wales) Act 

2004 and his reporting 

responsibilities under the 

Code of Audit Practice. The 

Annual Audit Letter is in 

Appendix 2 of this report. 

The Council complied with its responsibilities 

relating to financial reporting and use of resources 

 the Council has appropriate arrangements in 

place to secure economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources; and 

 work to date on certification of grant claims 

and returns has not identified significant 

issues that would impact on the 2015-16 

accounts or key financial systems. 

None 

T
udalen 41



 

Page 8 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

Issue date Brief description Conclusions Proposals for improvement 

January 2017 Savings planning 

Review of the Council’s 

financial savings 

arrangements, including 

how well it is delivering the 

required savings and 

whether it has robust 

approaches to plan, 

manage and deliver budget 

savings, at a pace that 

supports financial 

resilience. 

The Council has a sound financial planning 

framework and it continues to strengthen its 

financial planning to better support future financial 

resilience. 

We came to this conclusion because: 

Savings achievement 2015-16  

 the Council has reported achievement of 83% 

of its planned 2015-16 savings in year and 

can demonstrate that individual savings have 

been delivered. 

Financial planning arrangements  

 the Council has an effective corporate 

framework for financial planning and plans to 

lengthen the term of the MTFS to five years to 

address the current lack of indicative plans for 

future years. 

Savings Plan 2016-17 

 the Council forecasts that it is will achieve 

90% of its 2016-17 revised planned savings 

but some of its savings proposals are not 

sufficiently well developed when the budget is 

approved. 

P1    Strengthen financial planning 

arrangements by ensuring that 

all savings proposals are 

sufficiently developed before the 

start of the financial year in 

which they are to be 

implemented. 

Local risk-based performance audit 

T
udalen 42



 

Page 9 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

Issue date Brief description Conclusions Proposals for improvement 

August 2017 Corporate Assessment 

Follow-up  

Review of the actions taken 

by the Council in response 

to proposals for 

improvement in the 2015 

corporate assessment 

report  

The Council continues to make progress in 
addressing the 2015 corporate assessment 
proposals for improvement: 

 the Council is promoting staff ownership of 

key objectives which will be supported  

by a new integrated approach to business 

planning in 2017-18; 

 corporate strategies are well aligned and the 

Council has implemented its revised asset 

management strategy, but progress on the 

new people and digital strategies has been 

slower than planned; 

 the Council is improving its risk management 
processes but work to align project and 
savings plan risks to the Council’s revised risk 
matrix has been delayed; and 

 workforce planning is a key element of the 
Council’s new people strategy and although 
work is underway to develop workforce plans, 
it is too early to assess their impact. 

There are no additional proposals for 

improvement resulting from the 

follow-up audit. However, we expect 

the Council to continue making 

progress against the original 

proposals. 

August 2017 Review of the 

effectiveness of the 

Council’s efficiency 

savings programme 

Arrangements for planning and monitoring 
efficiency savings are effective, but arrangements 
for evaluating non-financial impact and for sharing 
post-project learning are under-developed: 

There are no additional proposals for 

improvement resulting from the 

follow-up audit. However, we expect 

the Council to continue making 

T
udalen 43



 

Page 10 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

Issue date Brief description Conclusions Proposals for improvement 

An analysis of the Council’s 

arrangements for planning, 

monitoring, evaluating and 

reporting outcomes from its 

efficiency savings 

programme. 

 the Council has effective arrangements for 

planning and monitoring the financial  

impact of its efficiency savings programme; 

 Arrangements for evaluating the non-financial 

impact of efficiency initiatives  

are not systematic, but are being 

strengthened; and 

 Arrangements for capturing and sharing post-

project learning are under-developed. 

progress against the original 

proposals 

Improvement planning and reporting 

July 2016 Wales Audit Office annual 

improvement plan audit 

Review of the Council’s 

published plans for 

delivering on improvement 

objectives. 

The Council has complied with its statutory 

improvement planning duties. 

None 

November 

2016 

Wales Audit Office annual 

assessment of 

performance audit  

Review of the Council’s 

published performance 

assessment.  

The Council has complied with its statutory 

improvement reporting duties. 

None 

Reviews by inspection and regulation bodies 

T
udalen 44



 

Page 11 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

Issue date Brief description Conclusions Proposals for improvement 

No reviews by inspection and regulation bodies have taken place during the time period covered by this report.  

 

T
udalen 45



Appendix 1 

Page 12 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

Status of this report 

The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (the Measure) requires the Auditor 

General to undertake a forward-looking annual improvement assessment, and to publish 

an annual improvement report, for each improvement authority in Wales. Improvement 

authorities (defined as local councils, national parks, and fire and rescue authorities) have 

a general duty to ‘make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the exercise 

of [their] functions’. 

The annual improvement assessment considers the likelihood that an authority will 

comply with its duty to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement. The 

assessment is also the main piece of work that enables the Auditor General to fulfil his 

duties. Staff of the Wales Audit Office, on behalf of the Auditor General, produce the 

annual improvement report. The report discharges the Auditor General’s duties under 

section 24 of the Measure, by summarising his audit and assessment work in a published 

annual improvement report for each authority. The report also discharges his duties 

under section 19 to issue a report certifying that he has carried out an improvement 

assessment under section 18 and stating whether (as a result of his improvement plan 

audit under section 17) he believes that the authority has discharged its improvement 

planning duties under section 15. 

The Auditor General may also, in some circumstances, carry out special inspections 

(under section 21), which will be reported to the authority and Ministers, and which he 

may publish (under section 22). An important ancillary activity for the Auditor General is 

the co-ordination of assessment and regulatory work (required by section 23), which 

takes into consideration the overall programme of work of all relevant regulators at an 

improvement authority. The Auditor General may also take account of information shared 

by relevant regulators (under section 33) in his assessments. 

Tudalen 46



Appendix 2 

Page 13 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

Annual Audit Letter 
24 Cathedral Road / 24 Heol y Gadeirlan 

Cardiff / Caerdydd 

CF11 9LJ 

Tel / Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 

Fax / Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 

Textphone / Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

info@audit.wales / post@archwilio.cymru 

www.audit.wales / www.archwilio.cymru 

Councillor Aaron Shotton – Leader  
Colin Everett – Chief Executive  

Flintshire County Council  

County Hall  

Mold  

Flintshire  

CH7 6NB 

Reference: 644A2016 

Date issued: 29 November 2016 

Dear Aaron and Colin 

Annual Audit Letter – Flintshire County Council 2015-16 

This letter summarises the key messages arising from my statutory responsibilities under 

the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and my reporting responsibilities under the Code of 

Audit Practice. 

The Council complied with its responsibilities relating to financial reporting 
and use of resources  

It is the Council’s responsibility to: 

 put systems of internal control in place to ensure the regularity and lawfulness of 

transactions and to ensure that its assets are secure;  

 maintain proper accounting records; 

 prepare a Statement of Accounts in accordance with relevant requirements; and 

 establish and keep under review appropriate arrangements to secure economy,  

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

The Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 requires me to: 

 provide an audit opinion on the accounting statements; 

Tudalen 47

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/


 

Page 14 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

 review the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness 

in its use of resources; and 

 issue a certificate confirming that I have completed the audit of the accounts. 

Local authorities in Wales prepare their accounting statements in accordance with the 

requirements of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 

the United Kingdom. This Code is based on International Financial Reporting Standards.  

I issued an unqualified audit opinion on the financial statements confirming they present a 

true and fair view of the Council’s financial position and transactions on 29 September 

2016. My report is contained within the Statement of Accounts. The key matters arising 

from the accounts audit were: 

 It was pleasing to note that the Council had been proactive in addressing the issues 

identified during the 2014-15 audit. The improvements were overseen by a newly 

established Accounts Governance Group. We would encourage this Group to 

continue to support the Finance team in future challenges such as changes in 

accounting for Highway Network assets and the requirement for financial statements 

to be produced earlier in future years. 

 The valuation method adopted in revaluing the Council’s housing stock was flawed 

and resulted in restatement. 

 The Council needs to accelerate its investigations into the potential liabilities arising 

from a number of former waste disposal sites to ensure that it can appropriately 

recognise any financial liabilities as an accounting provision in its financial 

statements and address any funding issues from a budgetary perspective. 

These were reported in detail to members of the Council in my Audit of Financial 

Statements report on 26 September 2016. 

In the near future, we will be holding a joint Post Project Learning exercise with Council 

finance officers to identify areas where we can both learn from this year, and make 

improvements for the future. We will hold regular meetings to take any issues forward 

and to start preparations for future challenges as referred to above. 

It is also worth noting, the Council lead on the preparation of the accounts for the North 

Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee. On 29 September 2016, I confirmed that the 

information contained in its annual return was in accordance with proper practices.  

I issued a certificate confirming that both the audits of the accounts have been completed 

on 29 September 2016. 

I am satisfied that the Council has appropriate arrangements in place to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

My consideration of the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness has been based on the audit work undertaken on the accounts as well as 

placing reliance on the work completed under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 

2009. The Auditor General will highlight areas where the effectiveness of these 

arrangements has yet to be demonstrated or where improvements could be made when 

he publishes his Annual Improvement Report.  

Tudalen 48



 

Page 15 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

We will also shortly be issuing a report on the council’s financial resilience which will 

consider whether the council’s financial savings planning arrangements support financial 

resilience. 

My work to date on certification of grant claims and returns has not 
identified significant issues that would impact on the 2015-16 accounts or 
key financial systems.   

My ongoing work on the certification of grants claims and returns has not identified any 

significant issues to date in relation to the accounts or the Council’s key financial 

systems. A more detailed report on my grant certification work will follow in the spring 

2017 once this year’s programme of certification work is complete.  

The financial audit fee for 2015-16 is currently expected to be in line with the agreed fee 

set out in the Annual Audit Plan.  

Yours sincerely 

 

 

 

 

John Herniman 

Engagement Director 

For and on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales 

 

 

 

Tudalen 49



Appendix 3 

Page 16 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

National report recommendations 2016-17 

Exhibit 2: national report recommendations 2016-17 

Summary text for Appendix 2 ‘Summary of proposals for improvement relevant to local government, included in national reports published by 

the Wales Audit Office, since publication of the last AIR’ 

Date of report Title of review Recommendation 

August 2016 

 

Financial Resilience of Local 

Authorities in Wales 2015-16 

In our report of 2014-15 (The Financial Resilience of Councils in 

Wales, April 2015) we made a number of recommendations for 

local authorities. Many of these recommendations remained 

relevant and required further work from authorities to address them 

during 2016-17. In addition, we also made the following 

recommendations based on our more recent review: 

R1 Local authorities should strengthen their financial-planning 

arrangements by: 

 developing more explicit links between the Medium Term 

Financial Plan (MTFP) and its corporate priorities and 

service plans; 

 aligning other key strategies such as workforce and asset 

management plans with the MTFP; 

T
udalen 50

http://www.audit.wales/publication/financial-resilience-local-authorities-wales-2015-16
http://www.audit.wales/publication/financial-resilience-local-authorities-wales-2015-16


 

Page 17 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

Date of report Title of review Recommendation 

 developing comprehensive multi-year fully costed savings 

plans which underpin and cover the period of the MTFP, 

not just the forthcoming annual budget; 

 categorising savings proposals so that the shift from 

traditional-type savings to transformational savings can be 

monitored over the period of the MTFP; and  

 ensuring timescales for the delivery of specific savings 

proposals are realistic and accountability for delivery is 

properly assigned. 

R2 Local authorities should develop corporate income generation 

and charging policies. 

R3 Local authorities should ensure that they have a 

comprehensive reserves strategy, which outlines the specific 

purpose of accumulated useable reserves and the impact and 

use of these in the MTFP.  

R4 Local authorities should develop key performance indicators 

to monitor the MTFP. 

R5 Local authorities should ensure that savings plans are 

sufficiently detailed to ensure that members are clear as to 

what the plans are intended to deliver and that the delivery of 

those plans can be scrutinised appropriately throughout the 

year. 

T
udalen 51



 

Page 18 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

Date of report Title of review Recommendation 

R6 Local authorities should ensure that corporate capacity and 

capability are at a level that can effectively support the 

delivery of savings plans in the MTFP at the pace required. 

October 2016 

 

Community Safety in Wales The seven recommendations within this report required individual 

and collective action from a range of stakeholders – the Welsh 

Government, Home Office Wales Team, police and crime 

commissioners, public service board members and local 

authorities: 

R1  Improve strategic planning to better coordinate activity for 

community safety by replacing the existing planning 

framework with a national strategy supported by regional and 

local plans that are focused on delivering the agreed national 

community-safety priorities. 

R2  Improve strategic partnership working by formally creating 

effective community-safety boards that replace existing 

community-safety structures that formalise and draw together 

the work of the Welsh Government, police forces, local 

authorities, health boards, fire and rescue authorities, 

WACSO and other key stakeholders. 

R3  Improve planning through the creation of comprehensive 

action plans that cover the work of all partners and clearly 

identify the regional and local contribution in meeting the 

national priorities for community safety. 

T
udalen 52

http://www.audit.wales/publication/community-safety-wales


 

Page 19 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

Date of report Title of review Recommendation 

R4  Review current grant-funding arrangements and move to 

pooled budgets with longer-term funding commitments to 

support delivery bodies to improve project and workforce 

planning that focuses on delivering the priorities of the 

national community-safety strategy. 

R5  Ensure effective management of performance of community 

safety by: 

 setting appropriate measures at each level to enable 

members, officers and the public to judge progress in 

delivering actions for community-safety services; 

 ensuring performance information covers the work of all 

relevant agencies; and 

 establishing measures to judge inputs, outputs and impact 

to be able to understand the effect of investment decisions 

and support oversight and scrutiny.  

R6  Revise the systems for managing community-safety risks and 

introduce monitoring and review arrangements that focus on 

assuring the public that money spent on community safety is 

resulting in better outcomes for people in Wales. 

R7  Improve engagement and communication with citizens 

through public service boards in: 

 developing plans and priorities for community safety; 

T
udalen 53



 

Page 20 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

Date of report Title of review Recommendation 

 agreeing priorities for action; and 

 reporting performance and evaluating impact. 

November 2016 

 

Charging for Services and 

Generating Income by Local 

Authorities 

This report made eight recommendations, of which six required 

action from local authorities. Recommendations R4 and R6 

required action from the Welsh Government and Welsh Local 

Government Association: 

R1  Develop strategic frameworks for introducing and reviewing 

charges, linking them firmly with the Medium Term Financial 

Plan and the Corporate Plan. 

R2  Review the unit and total costs of providing discretionary 

services to clearly identify any deficits and, where needed, set 

targets to improve the current operating position. 

R3  Use the impact assessment checklist whenever changes to 

charges are considered. 

R5  Identify opportunities to procure private sector companies to 

collect charges to improve efficiency and economy in 

collecting income. 

R7  Improve management of performance, governance and 

accountability by: 

 regularly reporting any changes to charges to scrutiny 

committee(s); 

T
udalen 54

http://www.audit.wales/publication/charging-services-and-generating-income-local-authorities
http://www.audit.wales/publication/charging-services-and-generating-income-local-authorities
http://www.audit.wales/publication/charging-services-and-generating-income-local-authorities


 

Page 21 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

Date of report Title of review Recommendation 

 improving monitoring to better understand the impact of 

changes to fees and charges on demand, and the 

achievement of objectives; 

 benchmarking and comparing performance with others 

more rigorously; and 

 providing elected members with more comprehensive 

information to facilitate robust decision making. 

R8 Improve the forecasting of income from charges through the 

use of scenario planning and sensitivity analysis. 

January 2017 Local Authority Funding of 

Third Sector Services 

This report made three recommendations, of which two required 

action from local authorities. Recommendation R3 required action 

from the Welsh Government: 

R1  To get the best from funding decisions, local authorities and 

third sector bodies need to ensure they have the right 

arrangements and systems in place to support their work with 

the third sector. To assist local authorities and third sector 

bodies in developing their working practices, we recommend 

that local authority and third sector officers use the Checklist 

for local authorities effectively engaging and working with the 

third sector to:  

 self-evaluate current third sector engagement, 

management, performance and practice; 

T
udalen 55

http://www.audit.wales/publication/local-authority-funding-third-sector-services
http://www.audit.wales/publication/local-authority-funding-third-sector-services
http://www.audit.wales/publication/checklist-local-authorities-effectively-engaging-and-working-third-sector
http://www.audit.wales/publication/checklist-local-authorities-effectively-engaging-and-working-third-sector
http://www.audit.wales/publication/checklist-local-authorities-effectively-engaging-and-working-third-sector


 

Page 22 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 – Flintshire County Council 

Date of report Title of review Recommendation 

 identify where improvements in joint working is required; 

and 

 jointly draft and implement an action plan to address the 

gaps and weaknesses identified through the self-

evaluation. 

R2  Poor performance management arrangements are weakening 

accountability and limiting effective scrutiny of third sector 

activity and performance. To strengthen oversight of the third 

sector, we recommend that elected members scrutinise the 

review checklist completed by officers, and regularly 

challenge performance by officers and the local authority in 

addressing gaps and weaknesses.  

 

 

T
udalen 56



Tudalen 57



 

 

Wales Audit Office 

24 Cathedral Road 

Cardiff CF11 9LJ 

Tel: 029 2032 0500 

Fax: 029 2032 0600 

Textphone.: 029 2032 0660 

E-mail: info@audit.wales 

Website: www.audit.wales 

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru 

24 Heol y Gadeirlan 

Caerdydd CF11 9LJ 

Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 

Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 

Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru 

Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru 

 

Tudalen 58

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
mailto:post@archwilio.cymru
http://www.archwilio.cymru/


Appendix 2

1

Wales Audit Office 

Annual Improvement Report

September 2017

Executive Response

The Auditor General for Wales provided a summary of the inspection and regulatory 
work undertaken by the Wales Audit Office during 2016/17. 

The report is generally positive with four new voluntary Proposals for Improvement

There are no new statutory recommendations.

In our response we set out how we will make improvements to ensure full compliance 
with the spirit and detail of the report.  

Listed below are the Proposals for Improvement along with our response and current 
status of progress.

Proposal for Improvement Response Progress 
Status

Good Governance report

P1.  Clearly defining the arrangements 
for scrutinising the impact of individual 
service changes

Pre-implementation

- Integrated impact assessment ‘tool’ 
developed and being used by 
portfolios 

- Tool provides end to end process of 
defining service change, impact of 
service change, risks and mitigation, 
and transition planning and 
evaluation.

- Gateway approval processes built 
into Integrated Impact Assessment 
for all service changes prior to 
consideration by members.

Post-implementation

- Efficiency monitoring (monthly)
- Quarterly report as narrative of all 

significant service changes to 
Cabinet and Corporate Resources 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

- Include selective reviews in Overview 
and Scrutiny forward work 
programmes

G

A

P2.  Ensuring that Equality Impact 
Assessments (EIS) that are produced 

Integrated Impact Assessment tool and 
Gateway approval processes specifically 
including Equality Impact Assessments 

A

Tudalen 59



Appendix 2

2

are of a consistently high quality will improve consistency and quality of all 
impact assessments and their 
interdependencies.

P3.  Reviewing, and where necessary 
improving, the effectiveness of its 
decision-making arrangements 
explicitly in relation to service change.

Further refining to improve:

- Consistently high quality business 
cases

- Incorporation of evaluation post 
implementation within business 
planning methodology 

- Evaluation of key changes post 
implementation considered by 
Programme Boards, Cabinet and 
Overview and Scrutiny

- Annual review of the quality of the 
budget-led service change decision-
making process

G

Proposal for Improvement Response Progress 
Status

Council’s Effectiveness of the Efficiency Savings Programme

Introduce a more robust and systematic approach to post-project evaluation, suitable for: 
- evaluating the non-financial impact 

of efficiency / change initiatives
- Integrated impact assessment tool 

developed and being used by 
portfolios 

- Tool provides end to end process of 
defining service change, impact of 
service change, risks and mitigation 
plus transition plans and evaluation.

- Gateway approval processes built 
into Integrated Impact Assessment 
for all service changes prior to 
consideration by members.

G

G

G

- capturing, sharing and promoting 
learning and good practice.

Further refining to improve:
- Consistently high quality business 

cases
- Incorporation of evaluation post 

implementation within business 
planning methodology 

- Evaluation of proposals post 
implementation considered by 
Programme Boards and Cabinet

- Overall effectiveness of decision-
making reviewed by Corporate 
Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

A

A

A

A

Tudalen 60



CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Thursday 21 September 2017

Report Subject Wales Audit Office study reports

Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance

Report Author Chief Executive 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Wales Audit Office (WAO) have recently completed a number of reviews:

i) Corporate Assessment Follow-up; ii) Good Governance when determining 
service changes; and (iii) Effectiveness of the Council’s efficiency savings 
programme.   

The reviews are a fair reflection on the Council’s practices and arrangements.

None of the reviews carry any new statutory recommendations.

There are four new proposals for improvement: three in the “Good Governance 
when determining service changes” and; one in the “review of Effectiveness of the 
Council’s efficiency savings programme”.

The Council has made an Executive response to each of the reviews.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To be assured by the review reports of the Wales Audit Office and support 
the Council’s executive response.

Tudalen 61

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 6



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE WALES AUDIT OFFICE REVIEWS
1.01 During 2016-17 the Wales Audit Office undertook work on three different 

topics and presented their findings to the Council.  The Good Governance 
review was held across all 22 councils.  The other two reviews were local 
to Flintshire and either complemented or followed up previous reviews.

1.02 The Corporate Assessment follow-up reviewed progress against the seven 
Proposals for Improvement issued in the 2015 Corporate Assessment 
report.  It focused on actions which were incomplete at an earlier follow-up 
in 2016.  These latter actions included the Council’s approach to Business 
planning, progress with Corporate strategies (People, ICT and Asset 
management strategies), consistency of risk management approaches and 
workforce planning.  
The overall conclusion was:
“The Council continues to make progress in addressing the 2015 corporate 
assessment proposals for improvement.”

No further proposals for improvement were included.  The final report is 
attached at Appendix 1, along with the Council’s response at Appendix 4.

1.03 The Good Governance review focused on governance arrangements 
where there have been significant service changes. The overall conclusion 
was: 
“The Council’s governance arrangements for determining significant 
service change are generally effective, with some opportunities to further 
strengthen its approach.” 

WAO identified three proposals for improvement:

The Council’s governance arrangements could be strengthened by:
P1. Clearly defining the arrangements for scrutinising the impact of 
individual service changes.
P2.  Ensuring that Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) that are produced 
are of a consistently high quality.
P3.  Reviewing, and where necessary improving, the effectiveness of its 
decision-making arrangements explicitly in relation to service change.

The final report is attached at Appendix 2, along with the Council’s 
response at Appendix 4.

1.04 The review of the Council’s effectiveness of the efficiency savings 
programme complements an earlier Financial Resilience review.  The 
overall conclusion was:
“Arrangements for planning and monitoring efficiency savings are effective, 
but arrangements for evaluating non-financial impact and for sharing post-
project learning are under-developed.”

WAO identified one proposal for improvement:

“Introduce a more robust and systematic approach to post-project 

Tudalen 62



evaluation, suitable for: 
 evaluating the non-financial impact of efficiency / change 

initiatives; 
 capturing, sharing and promoting learning and good practice.”

The final report along with the Council’s response is attached at 
Appendix 3 along with the Council’s response at Appendix 4.

1.05 Proposals for improvement, where agreed with the Wales Audit Office 
reviews, are actioned and monitored.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 There are no specific resource implications regarding this report; as the 
reports are a view of the Council’s general governance arrangements, 
efficiency savings planning and follow-up to a previous WAO corporate 
review.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 Wales Audit Office sought views from Chief Officers and finance 
colleagues to inform their reviews.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 The Council consistently reviews risks in relation to financial planning and 
the resilience of its plans.  The Medium Term Financial Strategy and in-
year business plans are monitored monthly.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 – Corporate Assessment follow-up (July 2017)
Appendix 2 - Good Governance when determining significant service 
changes (June 2017)
Appendix 3 – Review of the effectiveness of the Council’s efficiency 
savings programme ( August 2017)
Appendix 4 – Council Executive response.

Tudalen 63

https://www.wao.gov.uk/system/files/publications/flintshire_council_good_governance_significant_service_changes_english.pdf
https://www.wao.gov.uk/system/files/publications/flintshire_council_good_governance_significant_service_changes_english.pdf


6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 Wales Audit Office: Annual Improvement Report incorporating the 
Corporate Assessment report (March 2015)

Contact Officer: Karen Armstrong, Corporate Business and 
Communications Executive Officer
Telephone: 01352 702740
E-mail: karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Wales Audit Office (WAO)
Works to support the Auditor General as the public sector watchdog for 
Wales.  They aim to ensure that the people of Wales know whether public 
money is being managed wisely and that public bodies in Wales 
understand how to improve outcomes.

Tudalen 64

https://www.wao.gov.uk/system/files/publications/Flintshire_County_Council_AIR_CA_English_2014.pdf
https://www.wao.gov.uk/system/files/publications/Flintshire_County_Council_AIR_CA_English_2014.pdf


 

Corporate Assessment Follow-up – 
Flintshire County Council 

Audit year: 2016/17 

Date issued: July 2017 

Document reference:  

 

Purpose of this document 

This document is a draft supplied in confidence solely for the purpose of verifying the accuracy and 

completeness of the information contained in it and to obtain views on the conclusions reached.  

Handling prior to publication 

This document and the copyright comprised therein is and remains the property of the Auditor General 

for Wales. It contains information which has been obtained by the Auditor General and the Wales Audit 

Office under statutory functions solely to discharge statutory functions and has been prepared as the 

basis for an official document that may be issued or published in due course. It may also contain 

information the unauthorised disclosure of which may be an offence under section 54 of the Public Audit 

(Wales) Act 2004. Except as expressly permitted by law, neither the document nor any of its content may 

be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system and/or transmitted in any form or by any means, or disclosed 

to any person other than the original recipient without the prior written permission of the Wales Audit 

Office. It must be safeguarded at all times to prevent publication or other improper use of its content. 

Unauthorised use or disclosure may result in legal proceedings. Any enquiries regarding disclosure or  

re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at info.officer@audit.wales.  

 

Tudalen 65

mailto:info.officer@audit.wales


 

 

This document has been prepared as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions. 

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention  

is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  

The section 45 code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public 

authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor 

General for Wales and the Wales Audit Office are relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding 

disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at 

info.officer@audit.wales. 

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will 

not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 

This document is also available in Welsh. 

The team who delivered the work comprised Charlotte Owen, Paul Goodlad and Jeremy Evans, 

under the direction of Huw Rees 

 

 

Tudalen 66

mailto:info.officer@audit.wales


Contents 

Page 3 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up – Flintshire County Council 

The Council continues to make progress in addressing the 2015 corporate assessment 

proposals for improvement 

 

Summary report 

Summary x 

Proposals for improvement x 

 

Detailed report 

The Council is promoting staff ownership of key objectives which will be supported by a 

new integrated approach to business planning in 2017-18 x 

Corporate strategies are well aligned and the Council has implemented its revised asset 

management strategy, but progress on the new people and digital strategies has been 

slower than planned x 

The Council is improving its risk management processes but work to align project and 

savings plan risks to the Council’s revised risk matrix has been delayed x 

Workforce planning is a key element of the Council’s new people strategy and although 

work is underway to develop workforce plans, it is too early to assess their impact x 

Tudalen 67



Summary report 

Page 4 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up – Flintshire County Council 

Summary 

1 In March 2015, the Auditor General published his Annual Improvement Report 

(AIR)1 for Flintshire County Council (the Council). The report, which included 

findings from the September 2014 Corporate Assessment (CA), concluded that the 

Council had made significant progress in a number of difficult areas, but needed to 

strengthen some aspects of its arrangements. Although the Council was 

reasonably well placed to continue to deliver its priorities in the face of further 

financial challenges, the report made seven proposals for improvement (PFIs).  

Action to address four of the seven PFIs was still underway at the start of 2016-17.   

2 In early 2016 we reviewed the Council’s progress against the PFIs and reported 

our findings in the AIR published in June 20162; Overall, we found the Council: 

 had made good progress in addressing the governance-related PFIs; 

 was  strengthening its management of financial resources, but had made 

less consistent progress revising other resource management strategies; 

and 

 had made some progress to improve the consistency of its approach to 

workforce planning, but further work was required to complete the 

arrangements. 

3 During early 2017, we revisited the actions which were incomplete at the time of 

our earlier follow-up. This second follow-up found that the Council continues to 

make progress in addressing the 2015 corporate assessment proposals for 

improvement. 

4 We came to this conclusion because: 

 the Council is promoting staff ownership of key objectives which will be 

supported by a new integrated approach to business planning in 2017-18; 

 corporate strategies are well aligned and the Council has implemented its 

revised asset management strategy, but progress on the new people and 

digital strategies has been slower than planned; 

 the Council is improving its risk management processes, but work to align 

project and savings plan risks to the Council’s revised risk matrix has been 

delayed; and 

 workforce planning is a key element of the Council’s new people strategy 

and although work is underway to develop workforce plans, it is too early to 

assess their impact. 

 

1 Flintshire County Council – Annual Improvement Report 2014-15  Published March 

2015  Source: Wales Audit Office 

2 Flintshire County Council  - Annual Improvement Report 2015-16  Published June 2016 

Source:  Wales Audit Office 

Tudalen 68

http://www.audit.wales/publication/flintshire-county-council-annual-improvement-report-including-corporate-assessment-2014
http://www.audit.wales/publication/flintshire-county-council-%E2%80%93-annual-improvement-report-2015-16


 

Page 5 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up – Flintshire County Council 

Proposals for improvement 

The Council has made significant progress against many of the proposals for 

improvement arising from the 2015 corporate assessment report. However, some actions 

have only recently been implemented and some are scheduled for completion during 

2017. So, it is too soon to assess their overall impact. Our Audit Plan for 20017-18 

includes further follow-up work during late 2017-18, to review the impact of recent and 

imminent changes. 

There are no additional proposals for improvement arising from this follow-up audit. 

However, we expect the Council to continue making progress against the original 

proposals. 

 

 

Tudalen 69



 

Page 6 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up – Flintshire County Council 

The Council continues to make progress in 
addressing the 2015 corporate assessment 
proposals for improvement 

The Council is promoting staff ownership of key objectives 

which will be supported by a new integrated approach to 

business planning in 2017-18 

Summary text ‘Description of the Proposal for Improvement included in the original 2015 

corporate assessment report’ 

Corporate Assessment Proposal for Improvement P1 (from the 2015 CA report) 

The Council should develop and implement a consistent approach to business 

planning that promotes the ownership by staff of key objectives and targets. 

5 The Council continues to improve its business planning arrangements and intends 

to implement a new approach during 2017-18:  
 Each portfolio will produce a comprehensive five-year business plan to 

support service planning and performance management; and 
 The business plans will incorporate corporate initiatives and strategies and 

demonstrate fit with the Medium Term Financial Strategy.  

6 The Council anticipates that the new business plans will support workforce 

engagement and staff ownership of key objectives by clarifying how corporate 

objectives relate to individual service areas. A standard business plan format 

intended to promote consistency across portfolios and plans will be formally 

reviewed and updated twice a year. 

7 The Council’s integrated performance management system places greater 

responsibility on chief officers and service managers for data input and promotes 

ownership of the objectives. The system, and the reports it generates, identifies the 

officers responsible for meeting objectives and specific targets. As always, the 

quality of the reports produced is dependent on the data input into the system; the 

Council reports that data quality is variable, but is improving. The system’s 

automated reporting function provides the Policy and Performance Team with more 

opportunity to monitor the quality and consistency of data.  

8 The Council has rolled out an updated staff appraisal model. The model now 

includes the option of a ‘light touch’ approach, more appropriate for staff on low-

hour contracts, who do not require a full appraisal. Appraisal completion figures for 

2016-17 were not available at the time of our review, but the Council expects this 

dual approach to increase the number of appraisals completed. The full appraisal 

model encourages staff to consider how their role contributes to the Council’s 

corporate and service-level priorities and objectives. The Council expects this to 

promote greater awareness and ownership of the priorities and objectives. 

Tudalen 70



 

Page 7 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up – Flintshire County Council 

9 The new business plans are intended to complement this approach by including 

more explicit links to corporate objectives. The Council has also taken steps to 

ensure that new corporate strategies, such as the People Strategy 2016-2019, are 

accessible, to encourage buy-in from staff at all levels of the organisation. 

10 We will revisit the actions being taken to address this PFI during late 2017-18 to 

assess whether their intended impact has been achieved.  

Corporate strategies are well aligned and the Council has 
implemented its revised asset management strategy, but 
progress on the new people and digital strategies has been 
slower than planned 

Summary text ‘Description of the Proposal for Improvement included in the original 2015 

corporate assessment report’ 

Corporate Assessment Proposal for Improvement P3 (from the 2015 CA report) 

The Council should ensure that, in implementing its revised strategies for People, ICT 

and Asset Management: 

 their financial implications feed into the medium-term financial plan; and  

 the links between the strategies are fully considered so that specialist staff are 

available when required. 

11 Progress on revising and implementing the people and digital strategies has been 

slower than planned. The Capital Strategy and Asset Management Plan 2016-2020 

(CS&AMP) was approved in February 2016 and implemented during 2016-17. The 

Council’s Capital Programme for the period 2017-18 to 2019-20 follows the 

framework set out in the capital strategy. The Council has evaluated proposals for 

capital expenditure against the asset management plan to ensure they support 

delivery of its priorities.  

12 Our previous follow-up review acknowledged that an ICT service restructure and 

reduced capacity in the Human Resources and Organisational Development (HR & 

OD) team had delayed progress of the new digital and people strategies. The 

Council originally expected to finalise its digital strategy during summer 2016. 

However, further delays meant the Council did not approve its Digital Flintshire 

2017-2022 strategy until February 2017; and the People Strategy 2016-2019 was 

approved in November 2016. The Council is now developing action plans to 

support implementation of both strategies. Until the action plans are completed, the 

scale of actions and timescales associated with the implementation is unclear. 

13 The financial implications of the Digital Flintshire strategy are not yet clear. Capital 

investment in IT equipment, necessary to maintain the current infrastructure’s 

functionality, was approved as part of the Council’s Capital Programme. The 

capital investment required to realise the strategy will become clearer once the 

Council has determined the extent of its programme of changes. The Council 

intends to run each potential project through a cost-benefit assessment before 

Tudalen 71



 

Page 8 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up – Flintshire County Council 

taking a decision to proceed. The Council expects to deliver its People Strategy 

within current resource levels.  

14 There are clear links between the Council’s key corporate strategies. Both the 

people and digital strategies provide a clear vision of how the workforce and digital 

information and technology will contribute towards improvement priorities and 

strategic plans. Enabler strategies are also better integrated and the Council has 

taken a collaborative approach to developing the revised people and digital 

strategies; corporate services staff liaise closely and consult with officers at a 

portfolio level. The Council also expects supporting action plans to take account of 

relevant departments’ capacity when scheduling projects, with relevant actions 

embedded within portfolio business plans.  

15 The Council originally planned to produce a corporate resourcing strategy that 

would provide an overarching strategic focus on capability, capacity and risks. We 

agreed that this approach could provide an effective way to link the Council’s 

enabler strategies. However, the Council subsequently decided not to proceed. 

Instead, the Council’s new business plans, which are being introduced during 

2017-18, will link to the suite of corporate strategies. The Council expects this 

approach to provide improved connectivity between its strategies and planning 

arrangements.  

16 We will follow up these arrangements during late 2017-18 to assess the extent to 

which the intended linkages are working in practice. 

 

The Council is improving its risk management processes but 
work to align project and savings plan risks to the Council’s 
revised risk matrix has been delayed 

Summary text ‘Description of the Proposal for Improvement included in the original 2015 

corporate assessment report’ 

Corporate Assessment Proposal for Improvement P6 (from the 2015 CA report) 

The Council should: 

 adopt a consistent approach to managing risk, ensuring that all staff involved use a 

similar approach to record impact, likelihood and mitigating actions; and apply this 

approach to its future savings plans. 

17 In May 2016, Internal Audit (IA) provided reasonable assurance3 of the Council’s 

risk management processes. The IA review focussed on the Council’s use of its 

integrated performance management system to provide a more consistent 

approach to risk management. During 2016-17, a number of the planned 

improvements arising from the IA review were completed. Although the Council 

originally anticipated completing all actions during 2016, some were delayed and 

 

3 The Council’s Internal Auditor defines reasonable assurance as “Key Controls in place 

but some fine tuning required; key controls generally operating effectively” Source: 

Internal Audit routine reports to Audit Committee 

Tudalen 72



 

Page 9 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up – Flintshire County Council 

now have revised completion dates between March and September 2017. The 

Council’s IA team continues to track progress against the action plan. 

18 The Council reports that the integrated performance management system is 

supporting a more consistent and sophisticated approach to risk. All operational 

risks have been added to the system, promoting consistent use of the revised risk 

matrix. However, less progress has been made in adding project risks to the 

system due to capacity issues and the need for further work to build and develop 

the Council's risk framework for projects. The Council now expects to complete this 

work by the end of March 2017.  

19 Portfolio business plans have integrated risk management into service planning 

and monitoring processes. For example, Programme Board meetings routinely 

discuss both existing and emerging risks. The Council also delivered risk 

management training during 2016-17 to support a consistent approach to risk 

escalation across portfolios, and is updating its risk management guidance. 

20 Savings plans do not currently use the risk matrix. Instead, efficiencies are risk- 

assessed in terms of their deliverability and acceptability. The Council also 

assesses the financial robustness of planned efficiencies. This provides further 

assurance on likely deliverability; better-developed costings increase the likelihood 

of achieving the planned efficiency. Once planned work to support project-level 

risks within the integrated performance management system is complete, the 

Council intends to add new portfolio business plans and efficiencies to the system. 

The Council expects these changes to align efficiency plans to the risk matrix and 

integrate risk management with efficiency reporting.   

21 The Council provided a mid-year update on the strategic risks contained in its 

2016-17 Improvement Plan to Audit Committee in January 2017. The Council’s 

report concluded that the Council’s approach to management of risk was effective; 

there was a significant reduction in the proportion of major risks and an increase in 

the number of risks classified as minor or insignificant. 

22 We will assess the effectiveness of the updated risk management arrangements 

during a follow-up review in late 2017-18. 

 

Workforce planning is a key element of the Council’s new 
people strategy and although work is underway to develop 
workforce plans, it is too early to assess their impact 

Summary text ‘Description of the Proposal for Improvement included in the original 2015 

corporate assessment report’ 

Corporate Assessment Proposal for Improvement P7 (from the 2015 CA report) 

The Council should ensure a consistent approach to workforce planning and use the 

results to inform future reductions in staff. 

23 The Council’s approach to workforce planning is set out in its new People Strategy 

2016-2019. Effective workforce planning is a Council priority and work has recently 

Tudalen 73



 

Page 10 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up – Flintshire County Council 

begun to implement this part of the strategy; the Human Resources (HR) team are 

working with managers to develop service level workforce plans. The Council 

considers that its approach to engaging with senior managers on implementation of 

the strategy has been effective.  An outline template ensures consistency of 

approach across services and HR have provided service managers with the 

management information they require to develop the plans. A key planned 

outcome of the Council’s people strategy is a single consolidated workforce plan 

and supporting action plans. The Council expects this to promote a consistent 

approach to workforce planning.  

24 Although it is too early to assess the workforce plans and their impact on future 

reductions in staff, the People Strategy is clear about their intended purpose. The 

Council expects its workforce plans to set out and address the gap between 

current workforce arrangements and those required to deliver future service plans. 

Workforce plans will inform Council decisions around future workforce numbers 

and help it to develop job roles and flexible working patterns that support future 

service delivery models. The plans will form an integral part of the Council’s 

business planning approach and portfolio business plans will be required to 

demonstrate how workforce requirements are being addressed. 

25 We will review the effectiveness of the actions taken to improve the consistency of 

workforce planning arrangements during a follow-up review in late 2017-18. 

 

 

 

 

         

Tudalen 74



Tudalen 75



 

 

Wales Audit Office 

24 Cathedral Road 

Cardiff CF11 9LJ 

Tel: 029 2032 0500 

Fax: 029 2032 0600 

Textphone.: 029 2032 0660 

E-mail: info@audit.wales 

Website: www.audit.wales 

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru 

24 Heol y Gadeirlan 

Caerdydd CF11 9LJ 

Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 

Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 

Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru 

Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru 

 

Tudalen 76

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
mailto:post@archwilio.cymru
http://www.archwilio.cymru/


 

Review of the Effectiveness of the 
Council’s Efficiency Savings 
Programme – Flintshire County 
Council 
Audit year: 2016/17 

Date issued: August 2017 

Document reference: 453A2017  

 

Tudalen 77



 

 

This document has been prepared as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions. 

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention  
is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  

The section 45 code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public 
authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor 

General for Wales and the Wales Audit Office are relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding 
disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at 

info.officer@audit.wales. 

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will 
not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 

This document is also available in Welsh. 

The team who delivered the work comprised Charlotte Owen, Paul Goodlad and Jeremy Evans, 
under the direction of Huw Rees. 

 
 

Tudalen 78

mailto:info.officer@audit.wales


Contents 

Page 3 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme – 
Flintshire County Council 

Arrangements for planning and monitoring efficiency savings are effective, but 
arrangements for evaluating non-financial impact and for sharing post-project learning are 
under-developed  

Summary report 

Summary 4 

Proposals for improvement 4 

Detailed report 

Arrangements for planning and monitoring efficiency savings are effective, but 
arrangements for evaluating non-financial impact and for sharing post-project  
learning are under-developed  6  

The Council has effective arrangements for planning and monitoring the  
financial impact of its efficiency savings programme 6 

Arrangements for evaluating the non-financial impact of efficiency initiatives  
are not systematic, but are being strengthened 8 

Arrangements for capturing and sharing post-project learning are  
under-developed 9 

 

Tudalen 79



Summary report 

Page 4 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme – 
Flintshire County Council 

Summary 
1 Flintshire County Council (the Council) has reported significant efficiency savings 

over the last 10 years; its Medium Term Financial Strategy notes how the need to 
achieve savings has accelerated in response to increasing budget pressures. 
Since 2008-09, the Council has reported efficiency savings of almost £60 million, 
including nearly £25 million for 2014-15 and 2015-16 alone – over 40% of the total 
savings reported since 2008-09.  

2 In 2016-17, the Wales Audit Office reported on the extent to which the Council’s 
financial and savings planning arrangements supported financial resilience. In this 
review, we look more closely at the Council’s arrangements for planning, 
monitoring, evaluating and reporting outcomes from its efficiency savings 
programme. We also assess whether the Council’s post-project evaluation 
effectively identifies and replicates good practice, helping it to avoid repeating 
potentially costly mistakes. 

3 Between February and May 2017, we sampled four recently-completed ‘change’ 
projects, including projects that benefitted from initial pump-priming, to assess the 
Council’s arrangements. The efficiency projects we sampled were:  
• corporate operating model; 
• changes to the library network; 
• in-house enforcement agent service; and 
• review of fleet arrangements. 

4 We found that arrangements for planning and monitoring efficiency savings are 
effective, but arrangements for evaluating non-financial impact and for sharing 
post-project learning are under-developed. 

5 We came to this conclusion because: 
• the Council has effective arrangements for planning and monitoring the 

financial impact of its efficiency savings programme; 
• arrangements for evaluating the non-financial impact of efficiency initiatives 

are not systematic, but are being strengthened; and 
• arrangements for capturing and sharing good practice are under-developed. 

  

Tudalen 80



 

Page 5 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme – 
Flintshire County Council 

Proposals for improvement 
6 It would be unusual if we did not find things that can be improved and, where we 

do, the Auditor General can take a variety of steps. In this case, we have made a 
proposal for improvement that we expect the Council to respond to in an 
appropriate way. 

Exhibit 1: Proposals for improvement 

Proposals for improvement 

P1 Introduce a more robust and systematic approach to post-project evaluation, 
suitable for: 
• evaluating the non-financial impact of efficiency/change initiatives; and 
• capturing, sharing and promoting learning and good practice. 

 

Tudalen 81



Detailed report 

Page 6 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme – 
Flintshire County Council 

Arrangements for planning and monitoring 
efficiency savings are effective, but arrangements 
for evaluating non-financial impact and for 
sharing post-project learning are under-
developed  

The Council has effective arrangements for planning and 
monitoring the financial impact of its efficiency savings 
programme  
7 Our review found that the Council has effective and transparent planning 

arrangements. The savings we reviewed were well considered and supported by 
robust business cases and costings. Expected benefits were clearly set out and 
approved by Cabinet. External consultants provided independent advice on the 
corporate operating model and fleet review efficiencies; the Council investigated 
the arrangements in place at other local authorities when assessing whether to 
establish an in-house enforcement service. 

8 We noted in our 2016-17 report on Financial Resilience at Flintshire that the 
Council continues to refine its approach to stakeholder engagement. The savings 
proposals reviewed as part of this review were supported by appropriate 
consultation processes with a range of relevant stakeholders, including residents, 
staff, trade unions and external regulatory bodies. 

9 The Council adjusts its efficiency proposals in response to consultation feedback. 
For example, corporate customer services was moved to a more customer-focused 
portfolio following feedback on the proposed corporate operating model. Similarly, 
the Council incorporated public feedback into the design of Deeside Library, and 
public consultation on rural library closures led to expressions of interest from 
community groups to take over operation of the libraries. 

10 The Council’s budget monitoring processes enable it to track the savings achieved. 
Savings are monitored monthly and variances against target are reported in regular 
budget monitoring updates to Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. Programme Boards monitor each portfolio’s progress against 
savings and budgetary targets. Boards meet regularly and provide senior officers 
and councillors with the opportunity to review performance against savings targets 
and to provide challenge. 

11 Budget monitoring documents confirm that most planned savings were achieved 
for the sample plans we reviewed. Some savings were lower than planned in the 
first year due to later-than-anticipated project starts, but were achieved in full, or 
expected to be, in subsequent years. Up-front investments by the Council have 
either been recouped already or are expected from the cumulative effect of 

Tudalen 82



 

Page 7 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme – 
Flintshire County Council 

recurring savings. Further detail on the financial impact of each of the efficiencies 
is set out below. 

12 In 2014-15, the Council included £3.1m of workforce efficiencies in its savings plan. 
We reviewed the senior management efficiencies related to the new, leaner 
corporate operating model, which was expected to contribute £460,000 to the 
planned savings total. Invest to save funding of £440,000 supported the upfront 
costs of these changes, such as exit costs. The revised Chief Officer structure 
successfully delivered savings, achieving £605,000 in 2014-15. The Council 
expects the annual savings against the previous operating model to rise to 
£668,000 once all Chief Officers reach the top of the new salary scale. The new 
operating model also led to a review of senior management support staff as part of 
a wider review of administration staff; this generated further savings of £116,000.  

13 Despite these achievements, the planned changes alone did not generate savings 
of £3.1 million. But the target of £3.1 million was met by supplementary savings 
arising from unfilled vacancies and additional one-off efficiencies within portfolios.  

14 Council plans to relocate three libraries to a new library hub in Deeside were 
expected to generate savings on running costs1 of £30,000 in 2016-17. The 
Council received Welsh Government capital grant funding to co-locate the hub 
library within the Deeside leisure centre building. Fit out costs of £40,000 were 
funded from the existing library service budget in 2015-16. Efficiency savings 
should exceed this investment in less than two years; a saving of £30,000 was 
achieved in 2016-17, which the Council expects to rise to £50,000 in 2017-18.  

15 The Council also funded the co-location of a library within Holywell leisure centre 
using £120,000 from its Community Asset Transfer Capital Grant Fund to match 
Welsh Government grant funding. The leisure centre was transferred to a 
community group by Community Asset Transfer (CAT) and the Council now rents 
library space from the community group. This arrangement provided a part-year 
saving of £4,000 in 2016-17, which the Council expects to increase to £16,000 a 
year from 2017-18 onwards.  

16 The Council initially expected savings from these particular initiatives of around 
£142,000 in 2016-17. Delays to some CATs reduced the actual savings to 
£105,000. The savings shortfall in 2016-17 was covered from reserves2 and from 
additional savings generated within the library service.   

17 In 2015-16, the Council created an in-house enforcement agent team which was 
expected to generate net income of £100,000 each year. The Council reported 
savings of £70,000 from this initiative during 2015-16, attributing the shortfall to 
delays in establishing the new arrangements. In 2016-17, the service was 
expected to generate a further £60,000 of net income by undertaking enforcement 

 
1 Running costs include staffing, rates, utilities, cleaning costs etc. 
2 In September 2016, Cabinet approved the use of £200,000 of reserves to offset lost 
savings caused by a three month delay to the timescales set for the CATs of two leisure 
centres. £22,000 of this was used to offset library CAT savings.  

Tudalen 83



 

Page 8 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme – 
Flintshire County Council 

work for a neighbouring council. Monitoring documents show that after costs of 
£210,000, the initiative generated net income of £179,000 – some £19,000 more 
than originally anticipated. 

18 Following an external review of its fleet services in 2013, the Council began 
implementing recommendations to change the ownership model and operational 
management and maintenance arrangements for its vehicle fleet. Planned savings 
of £350,000 were achieved in 2014-15, with a further £175,000 of savings 
anticipated during 2015-16.  Delays with the procurement process meant that 
changes were not introduced until October 2016, but the service identified 
alternative savings to plug the gap. The fleet savings are generated through fixed 
price contracts for vehicle hire and maintenance. This provides the Council with 
confidence in the level of annual savings it can expect.  

Arrangements for evaluating the non-financial impact of 
efficiency initiatives are not systematic, but are being 
strengthened  
19 The Council’s arrangements for monitoring and evaluating the impact of efficiency 

initiatives on stakeholders are not consistent. However, the Council is taking action 
to ensure that non-financial impact is evaluated more systematically. For example, 
the chief officer team has established a culture of conversational learning, where 
chief officers routinely discuss hot issues, share information and work 
collaboratively. The Council intends to formally review the corporate operating 
model with the new Administration, to ensure that it remains valid.  

20 The Council continues to monitor and support community-run libraries. However, it 
expects to better understand the impact of recent changes when the first annual 
community benefit report is produced by the community groups involved, later in 
2017-18. Existing evidence3 suggests that the changes have had a minimal impact 
on the number of library users. Anecdotal evidence also suggests that the changes 
have attracted some new library users. For example, the co-located library in 
Deeside appears to be attracting visits from leisure centre users who did not 
previously use their local library. The Council intends to carry out a user impact 
survey during 2017 to formally evaluate the impact of the changes on stakeholders. 
The next annual assessment against Welsh Public Library Standards will 
demonstrate the impact of the changes on library performance. The Council also 
intends to formally review the CAT savings, including library-related transfers, at 
the end of 2017-18 when the current business plans end.  

 
3 Visitor numbers to enclosed areas of Deeside library are approximately 9% lower than 
combined visits to the three relocated libraries in the prior year. Although visits to the 
open area of the library are not recorded, the Council conservatively estimates the total 
number of visits to both the open and enclosed areas of the library as 5% higher than 
before. Source: Flintshire County Council 

Tudalen 84



 

Page 9 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme – 
Flintshire County Council 

21 The Council measures the success of its enforcement service by monitoring 
collection rates for council tax and business rates. In 2015-16, following the 
introduction of an in-house service, collection rates increased to 98%. This was the 
highest collection rate in Wales that year and the highest rate ever achieved at the 
Council. The Council believes that the in-house service also provides it with greater 
control of the revenues recovery process, such as the ability to take a 
proportionate response to sensitive cases. 

22 A fleet project board manages the contracts and oversees progress in relation to 
this efficiency. Services’ fleet requirements are regularly reviewed to ensure their 
needs are met and that there is no detrimental effect on services or the public from 
the changes to fleet hire and maintenance arrangements.   

Arrangements for capturing and sharing post-project learning 
are under-developed 
23 Our discussions with officers confirm that informal reflection and evaluation takes 

place during and after efficiency-related changes are made. For example, the 
corporate operating model, with its portfolio approach to grouping services under a 
single chief officer, supports shared learning across service areas. There are also 
opportunities for managers to share learning and good practice at the Council’s 
regular Change Exchange and Academi4 meetings. However, post-project learning 
does not routinely happen and the arrangements for capturing and sharing the 
learning are not always robust. 

24 The evidence we gathered about the way prior learning informs future efficiency 
projects has generally been anecdotal. For example, officers told us that: 
• implementation of the corporate operating model has supported 

development opportunities and raised corporate awareness of lean 
management thinking. This, in turn, led to a corporate administrative staff 
review and encouraged chief officers to adopt a lean approach when 
applying workforce efficiencies within their portfolios; 

• officers we spoke to acknowledged the importance of stakeholder 
engagement to the success of a project and confirmed their intention to 
continue refining the engagement process when planning future efficiencies; 

• changes to the library network have provided the Council with valuable 
experience of alternative delivery models. The success of co-locating 
libraries within leisure centres has demonstrated the potential synergies 

 
4 The Change Exchange is an informal senior officer forum for sharing local, regional and 
national updates and case studies which have the potential to impact the way the Council 
works. 
The Academi is a senior management developmental network that provides opportunities 
for senior officers to assist, analyse and challenge key projects. It enables collective 
working on major strategies and internal practice sharing. 

Tudalen 85



 

Page 10 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme – 
Flintshire County Council 

between related services - an approach the Council intends to revisit in 
future business plans; and 

• delays to planned CATs timescales have prompted the Council to create a 
specific reserve to mitigate against future transfer slippages.  

25 It is encouraging to see examples of the Council using post-project learning to 
influence future initiatives. Nevertheless, an over-reliance on informal 
arrangements is unlikely to maximise knowledge transfer - particularly between 
portfolios. A systematic process of evaluating efficiencies and of sharing good 
practice is more likely to help the Council replicate its successes and avoid 
repeating any mistakes. 

       

Tudalen 86



Tudalen 87



 

 

Wales Audit Office 
24 Cathedral Road 
Cardiff CF11 9LJ 

Tel: 029 2032 0500 
Fax: 029 2032 0600 

Textphone: 029 2032 0660 

E-mail: info@audit.wales 
Website: www.audit.wales 

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru 
24 Heol y Gadeirlan 
Caerdydd CF11 9LJ 

Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 
Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 

Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru 
Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru 

 

Tudalen 88

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
mailto:post@archwilio.cymru
http://www.archwilio.cymru/


Appendix 4

1

Wales Audit Office 

Good Governance report

July 2017

Executive Response

The Auditor General for Wales undertook a review of the Council’s Governance 
arrangements specifically about how the Council determines significant service 
change.

The report is generally positive with three Proposals for Improvement

There are no new statutory recommendations.

In our response we set out how we will make improvements to ensure full compliance 
with the spirit and detail of the report.  

Listed below are the Proposals for Improvement along with our response and current 
status of progress.

Proposal for Improvement Response Progress 
Status

The Council’s governance arrangements could be strengthened by:

P1.  Clearly defining the arrangements 
for scrutinising the impact of individual 
service changes

Pre-implementation

- Integrated impact assessment 
‘tool’ developed and being used by 
portfolios 

- Tool provides end to end process 
of defining service change, impact 
of service change, risks and 
mitigation, and transition planning 
and evaluation.

- Gateway approval processes built 
into Integrated Impact 
Assessment for all service 
changes prior to consideration by 
members.

Post-implementation

- Efficiency monitoring (monthly)
- Quarterly report as narrative of all 

significant service changes to 
Cabinet and Corporate Resources 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

- Include selective reviews in 
Overview and Scrutiny forward 
work programmes

G

A

Tudalen 89



Appendix 4

2

P2.  Ensuring that Equality Impact 
Assessments (EIS) that are produced 
are of a consistently high quality

Integrated Impact Assessment tool 
and Gateway approval processes 
specifically including Equality Impact 
Assessments will improve 
consistency and quality of all impact 
assessments and their 
interdependencies.

A

P3.  Reviewing, and where necessary 
improving, the effectiveness of its 
decision-making arrangements 
explicitly in relation to service change.

Further refining to improve:

- Consistently high quality business 
cases

- Incorporation of evaluation post 
implementation within business 
planning methodology 

- Evaluation of key changes post 
implementation considered by 
Programme Boards, Cabinet and 
Overview and Scrutiny

- Annual review of the quality of the 
budget-led service change 
decision-making process

G

Tudalen 90



Appendix 4

3

Wales Audit Office 

Corporate Assessment Follow-up

July 2017

Executive Response

The Auditor General for Wales undertook a second follow-up of the Council’s 
Corporate Assessment completed in 2015.   This review focused on Business 
planning, Corporate strategies, risk management and workforce planning.

The report is positive with no further proposals for improvement.

There are no new statutory recommendations.

Listed below are the original Proposals for Improvement of the Corporate Assessment 
along with our response and current status of progress.

Proposal for Improvement 
(P1-7)
Including overall lead1.

Action Update RAG 
Status

P1
The Council should develop and 
implement a (more) consistent 
approach to business planning 
that promotes the ownership by 
staff of key objectives and targets.

Lead: Chief Executive

P1.1 Mapping of current service planning and 
strategies etc. to show strength and gaps 
(complete). Further analysis to show intentions to 
strengthen arrangements  (complete) with a full set 
of operational plans being in place (for mid-
2017/18) 

P1.2 Plans using the new performance 
management solution (CAMMS) to be piloted 
(09.15) with full roll out (04.18)  

P1.3    Personal appraisal model is being extended 
to build in service/ team service plan objectives 
(from 04.16). Evaluation and implementation of the 
new appraisal model (ongoing)

G

G

G

P2
The Council should improve the 
quality of its reports to 
committees and Cabinet to ensure 
that:
 where necessary, reports 

enable councillors to refer 
easily to relevant policies and 
previous decisions and 
discussions 

 key messages and 

P2.1 A review of report format, style and quality of 
presentation (complete). 
Improved format used for Cabinet and Overview 
and Scrutiny reports (complete). The improved 
format includes use of executive summaries and 
fuller exploration of risk in assessing options for 
decisions. Fuller use of hyperlinks are made 
avoiding publishing extensive appendices where 
this can be avoided. 

G

Tudalen 91



Appendix 4

4

recommendations are clear and 
succinct; and

 reports to scrutiny committees 
include recommendations or 
options that committees might 
endorse.

Lead: Chief Officer (Governance)

P2.2  Updated report writing guidelines have been 
produced and issued. Refresher report writing 
training is being organised (complete)

P2.3 Quality assurance systems for report 
approval have been implemented (complete and 
being monitored)

G

G

P3
The Council should ensure that, in 
implementing its revised 
strategies for People, ICT, 
Finance and Asset Management:
 their financial implications feed 

into the medium-term financial 
plan; and

 the links between the 
strategies are fully considered 
so that specialist staff are 
available when required.

Lead: Chief Executive

As P1 above noting:-
P3.1  A single corporate resourcing plan is being 
developed (by summer 2016) as part of the suite 
of key corporate documents. This plan will prioritise 
the allocation of corporate resources for change 
projects (replaced by changes to corporate 
business planning arrangements and review of 
core strategies). 

P3.2 Set of 7 Programme Boards (for officer 
portfolios where significant change needs to be 
led, co-ordinated and managed) all now meeting 
and settled with good evidence of impact. 
(complete).

P3.3    A comprehensive and more usable Medium 
Term Financial Strategy in a new graphic format 
has been published for 2015 and 2016 in 2 parts. 
(complete) This is being updated for 2017.

G

G

G

P4
Group Leaders should strongly 
encourage members to take 
advantage of the Member 
Development Scheme.

Lead: Chief Officer (Governance)

P4.1    A review of the member development 
programme is ongoing with the aim of having a 
broader offer for members in partnership with the 
Welsh Local Government Association. (ongoing)

P4.2   Group Leaders have been requested to 
take-up training opportunities amongst their 
respective groups (ongoing)

G

A

P5
The Council should take the 
opportunity of its review of scrutiny 
structures to ensure that Overview 
and Scrutiny committees can 
add real value to Council decision-
making by aligning agendas more 
explicitly to Council priorities and 
risks.

Lead: Chief Officer (Governance)

P5.1  A Task and Finish Group set up by the 
Constitution Committee has reviewed the number 
and terms of reference of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees. The Group reported to the Annual 
General Meeting of the Council and the new 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees are in place 
(complete).

P5.2 Forward work programmes are being 
developed to include major and higher risk annual 
budget proposals which require monitoring and 
assessment of impact, major service reviews 
included in the budget, and periodic review of the 
achievement of improvement priorities. Report 
formats are being reviewed as P2 above to make 

G

G

Tudalen 92



Appendix 4

5

reports more purposeful (ongoing)

P5.3  More purposeful Forward Work 
Programmes; reports with 4 typologies 
(information, assurance, policy development or 
options consultation) and improved report format; 
clearer protocol on pre-decision scrutiny for policy 
development and options consultation type items); 
purposeful recommendations and more managed 
chairing and debate of meetings, including precise 
summing up, geared toward the report purpose; 
training and information support programme for 
scrutiny; periodic committee self-assessments with 
feedback to chair and reporting officers on areas 
for improvement.  A special meeting of the six new 
chairs was convened to plan immediately post-
AGM (05.15). A Member workshop was held to 
develop Forward Work Programmes (07.15). 
Ongoing liaison with Overview and Scrutiny Chairs 
(ongoing)

G

P6
The Council should:
 adopt a consistent approach to 

managing risk, ensuring that 
all staff involved use a similar 
approach to record impact, 
likelihood and mitigating 
actions; and

 apply this approach to its future 
savings plans

Lead: Chief Executive

P6.1    Following an earlier internal review of risk 
management led by Internal Audit a number of 
actions are in train to implement the 
recommendations for the organisation to be more 
consistent and effective in the identification and 
reporting of risk at strategic, operational, project 
and partnership levels. P1 and P3 above will 
contribute. The most recent Internal Audit review 
provides a “reasonable” level of assurance 
(ongoing).

G

P7
The Council should ensure a 
consistent approach to workforce 
planning and use the results to 
inform future reductions in staff

Lead: Chief Executive

P7.1    The new appraisal model (as P1.3) has 
been run for all senior managers and has worked 
through the rest of the organisation. Intelligence 
from this renewed appraisal programme will inform 
the training and development programme, talent 
recognition, retention and progression. Evaluation 
of the appraisal model and further development 
has taken place (ongoing).

P7.2   Workforce planning risks have been 
assessed in each Chief Officer portfolio area as 
part of the revised People Strategy (ongoing)

G

G

Tudalen 93



Appendix 4

6

Wales Audit Office 

Council’s effectiveness of the efficiency savings programme

August 2017

Executive Response

The Auditor General for Wales undertook a review of the Council’s Governance 
arrangements specifically about how the Council determines significant service 
change.

The report is generally positive one new Proposals for Improvement.

There are no new statutory recommendations.

In our response we set out how we will make improvements to ensure full compliance 
with the spirit and detail of the report.  

Listed below is the Proposal for Improvement along with our response and current 
status of progress.

Proposal for Improvement Response Progress 
Status

Introduce a more robust and systematic approach to post-project evaluation, suitable for: 
- evaluating the non-financial impact 

of efficiency / change initiatives
- Integrated impact assessment tool 

developed and being used by 
portfolios 

- Tool provides end to end process of 
defining service change, impact of 
service change, risks and mitigation 
plus transition plans and evaluation.

- Gateway approval processes built 
into Integrated Impact Assessment 
for all service changes prior to 
consideration by members.

G

G

G

- capturing, sharing and promoting 
learning and good practice.

Further refining to improve:
- Consistently high quality business 

cases
- Incorporation of evaluation post 

implementation within business 
planning methodology 

- Evaluation of proposals post 
implementation considered by 
Programme Boards and Cabinet

- Overall effectiveness of decision-
making reviewed by Corporate 
Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

A

A

A

A

Tudalen 94



CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Thursday 21st September, 2017

Report Subject Council Plan 2017 - 23 

Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance  
Cabinet Member for Corporate Management and Assets

Report Author Chief Executive

Type of Report Strategic

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Council Plan for 2017-23 (formerly the Improvement Plan) for 2017-23 has 
been reviewed and updated to reflect the key priorities of the Council for the 5 year 
term under the newly elected administration.  

The super-structure of the Plan remains the same as previous plans. The Plan 
now has six priorities with sub-priorities.  The six priorities take a long term view of 
our aims for the next five years.

The Council Plan is published in a similar format to previous years: highlighting 
objectives and actions and referencing national issues which could impact upon 
achievement of the priorities.  The Plan fits alongside the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy for 2017-2020. 

The Council Plan is in two parts.  Part 1 is the statement of our aims and 
intentions. Part 2 describes the targets and milestones by which the achievements 
will be measured (This will follow when complete)

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the Committee consider the structure, format and content of the  
“public” version of the Council (Improvement) Plan 2017-23 and feed back 
to Cabinet prior to adoption by the County Council for final publication.

2 That the Committee consider the targets and milestones in the Measures
and Milestones document (appendix 2) the Council (Improvement) Plan
2017-23 and provide feedback to Cabinet prior to adoption by the County
Council for final publication.

Tudalen 95

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 7



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 Council Plan 2017-23

1.01 It is a statutory requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 
2009 (the Measure) to set objectives and to publish a form of Council Plan, 
and for the full County Council to adopt the Plan.

1.02 The title of ‘Improvement’ Plan has been changed to ‘Council’ Plan as a 
more fitting term.

1.03 Improvement Objectives and an accompanying Improvement Plan were 
first set and adopted by the Council in 2011.  For the 2013-14 Plan the 
Council thoroughly reviewed the priorities. The Council re-set its aims with 
clearer outcome-based measures. This approach continued through to 
2016-17.  The objectives have again been reviewed given that it is a newly 
elected Council and the Well-being for Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 is in being. 

This review has resulted in a revised set of six priorities supported by a 
structure of sub-priorities as endorsed by Cabinet:-

Priority: Supportive Council

Sub-Priorities: 
Appropriate and Affordable Homes
Modern, Efficient and Adapted Homes
Protecting people from Poverty
Independent Living
Integrated Community Social & Health Services
Safeguarding

Priority: Ambitious Council

Sub-Priority: 
Business Sector Growth and Regeneration

Priority: Learning Council

Sub-Priority: 
High Performing Education

Priority: Green Council

Sub-Priorities: 
Sustainable Development & Environmental Management
Safe and Sustainable Travel Services

Priority: Connected Council

Sub-Priority: 
Resilient Communities

Tudalen 96



Priority: Serving Council

Sub-Priority: 
Effective Resource Management

1.04 The Plan format remains largely unchanged, as it has been well received 
and commented upon favourably.  The main change has been the 
amalgamation of priorities from eight to six.  National policy issues have 
been updated and listed within each sub-priority.  These are issues over 
which we have little control and which may restrict enable or successful 
and or timely delivery of our priorities. The Plan is linked to the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy for 2017-2020. 

1.05 For 2017-18 a review of the current priorities and sub-priorities has been 
undertaken with the aim of setting: -

• priorities that continue for sustained attention e.g. “New social and 
affordable homes”;

• priorities which could be broadened e.g. “Regional Economic 
Growth Deal”;

• priorities which could be merged e.g. “Housing” and Living Well”
• emerging priorities e.g. Food poverty, Early Help Hub and Youth 

Council establishment. 

Sub-priorities have also been set to take into account Cabinet and 
Overview and Scrutiny priorities, priorities of partners, public views, service 
demands, and national legislation and policy.

1.06 For each sub-priority for 2017-18 there has been a review based on:-

• the reasoning for the priority status;
• what we will do and how we will measure achievement; and
• the risks that will need to be managed.

1.07 The Council Plan in totality is presented as two documents; firstly the 
public version of our statements of intent and, secondly, the targets and 
milestones on which achievement will be measured (Appendix 2).

These targets and milestones in the “How we Measure” document are 
being considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committees prior to final 
agreement by Cabinet.  This will be the document that is used by Cabinet 
and Overview and Scrutiny Committees to monitor progress during the 
year.  

1.08 The final Council Plan will be available as a web-based document 
published on the website before the end of September following adoption 
by the County Council.

Tudalen 97



2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 Resource implications have been considered during preparation of the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and will continue to be monitored during 
the regular budget monitoring and financial planning arrangements.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 All Overview and Scrutiny Committees will have had the opportunity to 
consider and review the content of the draft Plan priorities including the 
opportunity to scrutinise measures and targets set for 2017-18.  A 
summary of the considerations will be appended in the September Cabinet 
and County Council reports.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 Delivery of the Plan objectives is risk managed within each of the sub 
priorities of the Council Plan and monitored and reported against quarterly 
by the Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

The risks to the statutory requirements of the Plan include: not publishing 
the plan within statutory timescales and, not adhering to the prerequisite 
content.

Both these risks are managed through adherence to well established 
procedures for publishing the Plan and ensuring that the content of the 
Plan reflects the requirements of the Measure.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1: Council Plan 2017-18.
Appendix 2: How achievements will be measured

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None.

Contact Officer: Karen Armstrong, Corporate Business and 
Communications Executive Officer
Telephone: 01352 702740
E-mail: Karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 98

mailto:Karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk


7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

7.02

Council Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of the 
Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 
2009 to set Objectives and publish a Plan.

Medium Term Financial Strategy: a written strategy which gives a 
forecast of the financial resources which will be available to a Council for a 
given period, and sets out plans for how best to deploy those resources to 
meet its priorities, duties and obligations. 

Tudalen 99



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Flintshire County Council

Council Plan 2017 to 2023

Tudalen 101



Contents
Welcome to Flintshire County Council’s Plan for 2017 to 2023 ............................................................................3

Setting Our Priorities and Judging our Performance .........................................................................................4

Priorities for the 2017/18 Council Plan..............................................................................................................5

Following the Plan – An Easy Guide...................................................................................................................6

What’s changed for 2017/18? ...........................................................................................................................6

Regulation, Audit and Inspection ......................................................................................................................7

Other Audit / Regulatory Activity ......................................................................................................................7

How Consultation Informs our Plan...................................................................................................................7

Council Plan and ‘How we measure achievement’............................................................................................8

Priority: Supportive Council..................................................................................................................................9

Sub-Priority: Appropriate and Affordable Homes ...........................................................................................9

Sub-Priority: Modern, Efficient and Adapted Homes ....................................................................................11

Sub-Priority: Protecting people from poverty................................................................................................13

Sub-Priority: Independent Living ....................................................................................................................16

Sub-Priority: Integrated Community Social & Health Services ......................................................................18

Sub-Priority: Safeguarding ..............................................................................................................................20

Priority: Ambitious Council .................................................................................................................................22

Sub-Priority: Business Sector Growth and Regeneration ..............................................................................22

Priority: Learning Council....................................................................................................................................25

Sub-Priority: High Performing Education .........................................................................................................25

Priority: Green Council........................................................................................................................................29

Sub-Priority: Sustainable Development & Environmental Management .....................................................29

Sub-Priority: Safe and sustainable travel services .........................................................................................31

Priority: Connected Council ................................................................................................................................33

Sub-Priority: Resilient Communities ..............................................................................................................33

Priority: Serving Council......................................................................................................................................36

Sub-Priority: Effective Resource Management ..............................................................................................36

Statement of Responsibility.................................................................................................................................39

Tudalen 102



Welcome to Flintshire County Council’s Plan for 2017 to 2023
The new version of our Council Plan sets out our priorities for the forthcoming five years of the Council and 
what we aim to achieve. It does however focus on the objectives we intend to deliver during 2017/18.  Flintshire 
prides itself on being a council which performs highly for its local communities and one which is motivated by 
a set of strong social values.

Flintshire is a well-governed and progressive council. We continue to perform well as a direct provider and 
commissioner of public services, and as a partner to others. Our recent track record in key services such as 
education, social care, housing, anti-poverty and environment show that we do deliver on what we say we will 
do.

Everything we do is important to someone, so selecting a set of priorities for the year is never an easy task. We 
have set six new priorities for the Council itself.  The Council’s new themed framework of six priorities has been 
developed to reflect the impact of the medium term financial strategy and protection of core services. Through 
our priorities we aim to make a real and noticeable impact.

We are under huge financial pressure during this period of unprecedented austerity.  Despite this we still aim 
high on our priorities.  If we fall short against our priorities it will be because of under-funding and not because 
we are not committed or are not capable.  For this reason we have changed the name of the plan from the 
Improvement Plan to Council Plan.

The plan sets out the Council’s six priorities and detailed sub-priorities for action, where we aim to achieve 
impact this year, page by page. An explanation for the choice of each one is given.  In addition we have also 
taken into consideration the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act by linking the impact statements to 
the Council’s well-being objectives. 

For 2017/18 a review of previous priorities and sub-priorities has been undertaken to set: -
 priorities that continue into 2017/18 for sustained attention;
 activities that can now be removed as completion of a time-limited piece of work which are now 

embedded;
 priorities which could be broadened to include more strategic issues e.g. ‘growing the local economy’, 

and sustainability of the social care market;
 emerging priority activities for 2017/18 e.g. managing local impact of the full service Universal Credit 

(UC) roll out .

Over the five year life of the Council, 2017/18 being the first year, the full set of priorities will be underpinned 
by the development of strategies.  As these are developed new measures and actions will emerge in future 
years.  

We hope that you find the Plan both informative and uplifting. Your feedback on the Plan itself, and on what 
we aim to achieve, would be very welcome.

 
Colin Everett Aaron Shotton
Chief Executive Leader of the Council

Tudalen 103



Setting Our Priorities and Judging our Performance

The priorities for Flintshire as a County are set by the Council and its local public sector partners. We work 
together as a Public Services Board (PSB) combining our resources for the benefit of Flintshire.

The sub-priorities shown with a (shaking hands symbol) symbol denote those we share with our partners. These 
have been selected for special attention where we believe that concentrated effort by the partners working 
together will make a big difference to the communities of Flintshire. These sub-priorities currently1 are: 

 Independent Living
 Integrated Community Social and Health Services
 Developing and Inspiring Resilient Communities 
 Safeguarding

Our Public Services Board partners include: Coleg Cambria, Natural Resources Wales, Public Health Wales, 
North Wales Police, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, Wales Probation, Flintshire Local Voluntary 
Council, North Wales Fire & Rescue Service, Coleg Cambria, Glyndwr University and Welsh Government.

The Council has also set a number of priorities for itself as an individual partner organisation. Setting priorities 
helps us focus our attention and resources on the things that matter most; these priorities are echoed in the 
Council’s business plans. We are legally required to set priorities known as Improvement Objectives (under the 
Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009). We call these our Council Priorities.

In setting our Council Priorities we have to take a number of factors into account from Welsh Government 
policy, to the expectations of our key partners, to our legal responsibilities, and to the views of local people.

We then set our targets, and judge our performance against them by using a wide range of information both 
quantitative (performance judged by numbers) and qualitative (performance judged by feedback, the results of 
consultation etc).

To ensure that we know how well we are doing in meeting the expectations for our priorities we have a series 
of ‘measures’ which we keep under regular review. These performance measures are set out for each of our 
priorities page by page. They are detailed more fully in the supporting document ‘How we measure 
achievement’.  Both these e-documents are linked together by hyperlinks.

Each of our sub-priorities is described individually on the following pages. We provide information about:
 The impact - what difference will be made
 Why the priority is important in 2017/18
 The national policy issues which impact on delivery of the sub-priority
 What we will do
 How we will measure achievement
 What risks we need to manage
 What some of our language means

We will let you know how well we have performed against our outcomes in two ways:
1) regular reports to the Council’s Cabinet and Scrutiny committees, and
2) next year’s published Annual Performance Report for 2017/18.

1 The priorities of the Public Services Board are currently under review as part of the development of the County’s Well-
being Plan, to be published April 2018

Tudalen 104



Priorities for the 2017/18 Council Plan 

Priorities for 
the 2017-18 
Council Plan

Ambitious 
Council

Learning 
Council

Green 
Council

Connected 
Council

Serving 
Council

Supportive 
Council

 Appropriate and affordable 
homes

 Modern, efficient and adapted 
homes

 Protecting people from poverty
 Independent living
 Integrated community social and 

health services
 Safeguarding

 Business sector growth 
and regeneration

 High performing education

 Sustainable development & 
environmental management

 Safe and sustainable travel 
services 

 Resilient communities 

 Effective resource  
management

T
udalen 105



P a g e  6 | 38

Following the Plan – An Easy Guide

The previous page sets out the Council’s six priorities and the sub-priorities which support them, where we aim to make a 
positive impact in 2017/18.

Each standing priority is illustrated with a different colour. For example, Supportive Council is amber and Ambitious 
Council is dark pink. This colour coding should make the priorities easier to follow as the reader works through the 
document and also the supporting document ‘How we measure achievement’.

On the graphic illustration we have set out against each priority the impacts we aim to make. Under each impact we list 
the sub-priorities where action and achievement will help achieve the impact. A sub-priority is simply a specific programme 
of work on a given theme. Taken together, success in achieving the aims of a set of sub-priorities will deliver the ambition 
for the bigger, standing priority of the same theme.

Every organisation has to prioritise its attention and its resources to make an impact. The Council has selected a number 
of the sub-priorities for special attention in the 2017/18 Council year. Each of these selected sub-priorities then has a 
dedicated page to itself later in the document.

For example on page 24 you will see the priority for Learning Council.
This has 3 impacts: -

 Providing high quality learning opportunities, and learning environments for learners of all ages.
 Supporting children and younger people to achieve their potential.
 Supporting learners from 3 to 18 years of age to aspire to high levels of educational attainment and 

achievement.

This impact has one sub-priority selected for attention in 2017/18. The reason for selection is explained on the dedicated 
page (pages 24): -
 

 High Performing Education

What’s changed for 2017/18?

The Council Plan is now based on 6 new themes which are detailed as priorities.  The impact statements are our Well-
being objectives which outline our commitment to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.   

Tudalen 106



P a g e  7 | 38

Regulation, Audit and Inspection

As a public organisation the Council is regularly inspected to examine and challenge its performance and effectiveness. This 
work is mainly undertaken by a number of appointed bodies including Wales Audit Office (WAO), Estyn and the Care and 
Social Services Inspectorate (CSSIW).

The Council received a favourable Corporate Assessment from the Wales Audit Office in 2015 and has sustained a good 
level of progress and achievement in subsequent reviews and Annual Improvement Reports.  

CSSIW’s performance review of Social Services (June 2017) notes sustained progress in meeting the requirements of the 
Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014, with positive comments regarding the development of the Information, 
Advice & Assistance Service and the Early Help Hub.

CSSIW’s focus themes for last year were carers and adult safeguarding; implementation of the new safeguarding thresholds 
and guidance will continue as a priority into next year.

Other Audit / Regulatory Activity

The Council prepares an annual summary of all external audit and regulatory activity.  The last one was produced in May 
2017 and considered by the Council’s Audit Committee.

How Consultation Informs our Plan 

The priorities set for this Council Plan (and the former Improvement Plans) were, from the outset, based on a wide range 
of previous consultations in service areas with both partners and representative groups (e.g. community safety, anti-
poverty, education, economic development) and, in some cases, service users directly (e.g. housing). 

There has been no single intensive consultation exercise on the Plan itself, by local choice, given this background. Elected 
members, on behalf of the communities they represent, have contributed to setting the priorities of the Council and used 
their representative role to test the relevance of the Plan against local public opinion. This has been facilitated through the 
sharing of the draft plan with all elected members and through its presentation at Scrutiny Committees covering all service 
areas. Feedback has been used to develop this final version of the Plan. In addition, elected members have been consulted 
on the targets and milestones to be used to measure achievement of the Plan and ensure there is sufficient pace and 
ambition.

Consultation on all parts of the Plan is continuous with stakeholders and Welsh Government. The Council remains open to 
feedback on the plan and amending it at any time following receipt of feedback as well as through new service based 
consultations or local and national policy issues.

Tudalen 107



P a g e  8 | 38

Council Plan and ‘How we measure achievement’

These 2 documents are linked, with the ‘measuring achievement’ supporting document providing greater detail about 
the target performance and milestones we have set ourselves.  The documents are hyperlinked at the relevant pages, or 
this table can be used as a guide.

Council Plan 
Page

Numbers

Priority Sub-Priority Impact Corresponding page 
numbers in 'How 

we measure 
achievement'

9 - 10 Supportive 
Council

Appropriate and Affordable Homes Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality council housing of all tenures. 2 - 3

11 - 12 Modern, Efficient and Adapted Homes Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality housing of all tenures 4 - 6

13 - 14 Protecting people from poverty Protecting people from poverty by maximising their income and employability 7 - 11

15 - 16 Independent Living Making early interventions to support healthy and independent living

Sustaining a local market of high quality and affordable service provision for 
those who are highly dependent on care support

12 - 13

17 - 18 Integrated Community Social & Health 
Services

Enabling more people to live independently and well at home

Giving equal opportunity to all to fulfil their lives 14 - 16

Providing joined-up services with public and third sector partners which 
support quality of life in communities and for individuals and families

19 - 20 Safeguarding Protecting people from the risk of any form of abuse

Making communities safe places by working with partners to prevent crime, 
repeat crime and anti-social behaviour

17 - 20

21 - 23 Ambitious 
Council

Business Sector Growth and 
Regeneration

Sustaining economic growth through local and regional business development,
employment and training sites

Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites and transport 
services, widening access to employment and training sites

21 - 23

Creating a supply of diverse and quality training and employment opportunities

24 - 27 Learning 
Council

High Performing Education Providing high quality learning opportunities, and learning environments for 
learners of all ages

Supporting children and younger people to achieve their potential 24 - 28

Supporting learners from 3 to 18 years of age to aspire to high levels of 
educational attainment and achievement

28 - 29 Green 
Council

Sustainable Development & 
Environmental Management

Enhancing the natural environment and promoting access to open and green 
space

Reducing energy consumption and using and developing alternative/renewable 
energy production

29 - 32

Maximising the recovery and recycling of waste

30 - 31 Safe and sustainable travel services Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites, and transport 
services, widening access to employment and training sites

33 - 35

32 - 34 Connected 
Council 

Resilient Communities Supporting local communities to be resilient and self-supporting

Committing to resilient service models to sustain local public services 36 - 40

Widening digital access to public services

35 - 37 Serving 
Council

Effective Resource Management Continuing to be a high performing and innovative public sector organisation 
with social values 41 - 45

Providing high quality, accessible, responsive and cost effective public services

Tudalen 108



P a g e  9 | 38

Priority: Supportive Council
Sub-Priority: Appropriate and Affordable Homes

Impact: Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality housing of all tenures.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Prevent homelessness
 Meet the diverse housing and accommodation needs of the local population
 Develop more opportunities for people to access affordable rent and low cost home ownership
 Build the maximum number of Council houses possible as part of the housing supply solution
 Meet the Welsh Government target for all social housing to be brought up to the Welsh Housing Quality 

Standard (WHQS).

National Policy Issues:
 Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016
 Local Authorities to be able to access grant funding to support new build affordable and social housing
 Sufficiency of resourcing to fulfil the duties of the Wales Housing Act
 Capital limits on borrowing for councils to build new houses. 
 Maintaining the funding of Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) so that the council can meet the WHQS by 

2020 
 Maintaining current rent policy so that the council can achieve WHQS by 2020. 

What we will do in 2017/18:

1. Provide new social and affordable homes.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Delivery of HRA and NEW Homes Business Plans by: -

 Building 79 new Council and 62 new affordable homes through the SHARP programme
 Increasing the number of properties managed by NEW Homes to 144 in 2017/18
 Delivering options for new, innovative low rent housing schemes for under 35’s.

2. Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) investment plan targets achieved. 
Achievement will be measured through:
 Completing WHQS work schemes in line with the housing asset management strategy.

3. Develop solutions to the increasing frequency of unauthorised gypsy and traveller encampments 
Achievement will be measured through:
 Agreed options appraisal identifying a range of measures to address this.  

Tudalen 109



P a g e  10 | 38

Risks to manage: 
 Homelessness will remain a growing area of demand due to the current economic climate
 The supply of affordable housing will continue to be the insufficient to meet community needs
 Department for Works and Pension’s Welfare Reform Programme, including Universal Credit full 

service implementation which would place increasing demand on the Council for affordable and social 
housing

 Land supply for council housing construction
 Capital borrowing limits for council housing.

What we mean by:
WHQS: Welsh Government’s physical quality standard for modern social housing.
NEW Homes: North East Wales Homes and Property Management provide a service to increase housing 
options available to local residents.
HRA: Housing Revenue Account
Welfare Reform Programme: A strategy to manage the impact and implementation of welfare reforms in 
terms of employment, financial inclusion, and integrated support for the most disadvantaged. 

Tudalen 110



P a g e  11 | 38

Priority: Supportive Council
Sub-Priority: Modern, Efficient and Adapted Homes
Impact: Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality housing of all tenures.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Meet the needs of vulnerable groups including the need for adapted housing, Extra Care, Learning 

Disability and transitional social care beds/units
 Improve housing quality in owner occupied and private rented sectors
 Reduce the number of empty properties in the County
 Provide good quality housing for residents and maximise funding to improve homes.

National Policy Issues:
 Practical implementation of Welsh Government’s Rent Smart guidelines across the private rented 

sector in Flintshire
 Influencing the direction of national funding priorities for housing regeneration
 Funding levels needed to address poor housing quality in private rented and owner occupied sectors.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Improve standards within the private rented sector.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Working proactively with landlords and tenants to improve the quality of private rented 

sector properties
 Ensuring landlords and letting agents comply with the Rent Smart code of practice.

2. Deliver the council’s housing growth needs.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Increasing the number of new affordable homes agreed through the planning system by 50 
during 2017/18

 Delivering social and affordable homes through Welsh Government funding programmes 
 Increasing the number of new homes created as a result of bringing empty properties back 

into use.

3. Meeting the housing needs of vulnerable groups.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Reducing the average number of calendar days taken to deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant
 Increasing the number of Extra Care homes:

o Constructing Flint Extra Care (Llys Raddington) providing 70 new units
o Confirming and agreeing plans for Holywell Extra Care providing 55 new units

 Working strategically to address housing needs of adults with learning disabilities and other 
vulnerable individuals.

 
Risks to manage: 

 Customer expectations for the timeliness of adaptations undertaken through disabled facilities grants 
may not be met due to competing demands on resources

 Availability of sufficient funding to resource key priorities.

Tudalen 111



P a g e  12 | 38

What we mean by:
SHARP: Strategic Housing and Regeneration Programme – programme to build 500 new council and affordable 
homes over the next four years.
Rent Smart: Service to process registrations and grant licenses to landlords and agents who are required to 
comply with the Housing (Wales) Act 2014.
Transitional Social Care: Transition from inpatient hospital and community or care homes.
Extra Care homes: Development of high quality apartments for rent to meet varying needs of support, some of 
which are specifically adapted for older people with memory loss or living with dementia.
Social Housing Grant (SHG): funds housing schemes that meet local needs and priorities as identified by local 
authorities including providing housing for rent or low cost home ownership through new build or the use of 
existing buildings.

Tudalen 112



P a g e  13 | 38

Priority: Supportive Council
Sub-Priority: Protecting people from poverty (shaking hands symbol)
Impact: Protecting people from poverty by maximising their income and employability

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Support people to manage the ongoing impact of Welfare Reform
 Help people claim the benefits they are entitled to
 Help people manage their financial commitments
 Reduce the risk of poverty amongst Flintshire households
 Reduce the impact of rises in fuel cost
 Help people access affordable credit
 Help people to manage their income, and provide support to access employment training.

National Policy Issues:
 Sustainability of funding for fuel poverty measures
 European Social Fund (ESF) Programmes affecting delivery of local targets
 Welfare Reform Act 2016
 Welsh Government approach to regeneration programmes.

 
What we will do in 2017/18:

1. Support Flintshire residents to better manage their financial commitments.
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Assisting people with Welfare Reform changes through the effective application of the 
Council’s Discretionary Housing Payment Policy

 Providing advice and support services to help people manage their income, including 
supporting people to access affordable credit and local Credit Unions

 Timely processing of Housing Benefit claims
 Assisting Flintshire residents to claim additional Social Security and Tax Credits to which they 

are entitled.

2. Manage local impact of the full service Universal Credit (UC) roll out.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Achieving the Homeless prevention target 
 Delivering the UC Operational board action plan
 Delivering Personal Budgeting and Digital Support Services.

3. Develop and deliver programmes that improve employability and help people to gain employment. 
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Developing an employability proposal as part of the Regional Economic Growth Bid to seek 
long term investment via a simple and cost effective programme of support

 Developing an enhanced careers and guidance service for North Wales to match young 
people to the labour market

 Increasing the number of local people who, following attendance on a programme report 
they are closer to work or becoming ready to enter work.

Tudalen 113



P a g e  14 | 38

4. Develop and deliver programmes to improve domestic energy efficiency to reduce Co2 emissions and fuel 
poverty. 

Achievement will be measured through: 
 Reducing the overall annual fuel bill for residents
 Providing advice and support to residents to enable them to switch to a lower cost energy 

tariff
 Increasing the number of private sector and Council homes receiving energy efficiency 

measures 
 Securing Welsh Government ARBED3 Programme Funding by March 2018.

5. Develop a strategy to address food poverty. 
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Developing programmes in partnership with the social and third sector to work towards 
addressing food poverty

 Undertaking feasibility work for the development of a food-based social enterprise by 
December 2017. 

6. Assist residents of Flintshire to access affordable credit
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Develop effective partnerships with local Credit Unions to enable residents to access banking 
services and affordable credit.

Risks to manage: 
 Universal Credit Full Service roll out - negative impact upon FCC services 
 Demand for advice and support services will not be met
 Debt levels will rise if tenants are unable to afford to pay their rent or council tax
 The local economy will suffer if residents have less income to spend
 Residents do not take up the energy efficiency measures available
 Available funding for energy efficiency measures falls short of public demand.

What we mean by:
Welfare Reform: A range of measures introduced by Central Government to reform the Welfare Benefits 
system.
Discretionary Housing Policy: Aims to provide a fair and consistent approach to help customers who require 
further financial assistance with their housing costs.
Universal Credit Full Service roll out: a new way of paying benefits on a monthly basis; now being expanded to 
cover all claimants.
Regional Economic Growth Bid:  The proposals for economic growth in North Wales produced by local 
government, business leaders and the further and higher education sectors.
Credit Unions: Regulated financial cooperative which and subject to broadly the same scrutiny by the Financial 
Conduct Authority as any other bank or building society.  Credit Unions are also part of the Government backed 
Financial Service to provide loans and saving schemes.
ARBED 3 Programme: A programme to support our commitment to reducing climate change, help eradicate 
fuel poverty, and boost economic development and regeneration.

Tudalen 114



P a g e  15 | 38

Priority: Supportive Council
Sub-Priority: Independent Living

Impacts:  1)    Making early interventions to support healthy and independent living.
2)    Sustaining a local market of high quality and affordable service provision for those who are 

highly dependent on care support.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Help people to live independently as they get older
 Support people with dementia
 Develop a model of support for persons with a disability which enables independent living
 Support families to support each other to live independently
 Ensure the sustainability of social care models.

National Policy Issues:
 Implementation of the Social Services & Well-being Act (Wales) 2014
 Registration and Inspection Act
 Living wage issues for care providers
 Care market fragility
 Insufficient national funding to meet escalating social care costs
 Aging population locally and nationally
 Welfare Reform Act 2016.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Ensure care provision within Flintshire enables people to live well and have a good quality of life. 

Achievement will be measured through:
 Agreeing the business model to increase direct provision of residential care and sustain 

domiciliary care roles to support the wider market
 Supporting care home providers to ensure service sustainability and delivering progress for 

providers
 Delivering dementia awareness training to the care homes workforce
 Working with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) to develop an action plan to 

support the quality and breadth of nursing provision
 Delivering a strategy for independent sector domiciliary care agencies to support service 

sustainability.

2. Support greater independence for individuals with a frailty and / or disability, including those at risk of 
isolation.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Adults who are satisfied with their care and support
 Implementation of a joint Community Resource Team (CRT) with BCUHB which is able to 

offer advice and support through the Single Point of Access (SPOA)
 Ensuring that the workforce are equipped to provide person centred care in line with the 

requirements of the Social Services and Well-being Act (Wales) 2014.

Tudalen 115



P a g e  16 | 38

3. Improve outcomes for looked after children.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Supporting children in stable, local placements
 Strengthening partnership working with BCUHB to ensure timely access to health 

assessments including CAMHS.

Risks to manage: 
 Delivery of social care is insufficient to meet increasing demand
 Demand outstrips supply for residential and nursing care home bed availability.

What we mean by:
Registration and Inspection Act: Registration process to ensure all social workers and social care workers are 
suitable for work in social care.
Welfare Reform Act 2016: A range of measures introduced by Central Government to reform the Welfare 
Benefits system.
CAMHS: Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services – NHS – Provision of mental health services for children, 
generally until school leaving age in the UK.

Tudalen 116



P a g e  17 | 38

Priority: Supportive Council
Sub-Priority: Integrated Community Social & Health Services (shaking hands symbol)
Impacts:  1)    Enabling more people to live independently and well at home.

2) Giving equal opportunity to all to fulfil their lives.
3) Providing joined-up services with public and third sector partners which support quality of life 

in communities and for individuals and families.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Work with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) to develop Health and Social Care models 

for the future
 Avoid unnecessary admissions to hospital and support early and successful discharges
 Co-ordinate the provision of support for service users more effectively with BCUHB and other providers
 Work together with BCUHB to support people with dementia within the local community
 Work with the Public Services Board to identify and engage families early, who are at greater risk of 

escalating needs.

National Policy Issues: 
 National trend for increasing demand on Children’s Services
 National focus on supporting integrated approaches between health and social care 
 NHS Service pressures and capacity
 Parity of funding between local authorities and NHS funded provision.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Ensure that effective services to support carers are in place as part of collaborative social and health 

services.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Increasing the number of carers identified through the Single Point of Access (SPOA) 
 Increasing the number of Carers that feel supported
 Evidencing improved outcomes for carers
 Developing the Carers’ Action Plan.

2. Further develop the use of Integrated Care Fund (ICF) to support effective discharge from hospital and 
ensure a smoother transition between Health and Social Care services. 

Achievement will be measured through:
 Creating essential additional services such as Step Up/Step Down beds providing choice when 

leaving hospital
 Maintaining the rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons.

3. Establish an Early Help Hub, involving all statutory partners and the third sector.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Establishing the Early Help Hub to provide effective and timely support to families
 Reducing referrals that result in “no further action”.

Tudalen 117



P a g e  18 | 38

4. Further develop dementia awareness across the county.
Achievement will be measured through:
 The number of dementia friendly cafes in Flintshire
 Increasing number of dementia friendly communities in Flintshire.

Risks to manage: 
 Annual allocation of ICF - Short term funding may undermine medium term service delivery.
 Early Help Hub cannot deliver effective outcomes.

What we mean by: 
Integrated Care Fund (ICF): Funding from Welsh Government being used to support older people to maintain 
their independence and remain in their own home for as long as possible.
Looked After Children: Children who are being looked after by their local authority, including with foster 
parents, at home with their parents under the supervision of social services, in residential children's homes or 
in other residential settings like schools or secure units.
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS): NHS-provided mental health services for children, 
generally until school-leaving age, in the UK.
Early Help Hub: The newly developed multi-agency Hub in Flintshire.  The Hub provides a collective response to 
support families with greater needs to build their resilience and wellbeing.
Step Up/Step Down beds: Step-down beds are used for people who are not well enough to move from hospital 
straight to their home, but don’t need to be in an acute hospital bed.  Step-down beds are usually provided by 
care homes, and provide care for the interim period until the person is well enough to return home.  Similarly, 
these beds can be used as a “step up” for people who become ill enough to need care, but don’t need to be in 
an acute hospital environment.

Tudalen 118



P a g e  19 | 38

Priority: Supportive Council
Sub-Priority: Safeguarding (shaking hands symbol)
Impacts:  1)   Protecting people from the risk of any form of abuse.

2) Making communities safe places by working with partners to prevent crime, repeat crime and 
anti-social behaviour.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Have a Council wide approach to safeguard and protect vulnerable people
 Develop further awareness and support for the Council’s approach to safeguarding including the 

prevention of human trafficking, modern slavery and child sexual exploitation (CSE)
 Comply with the new codes of practice for Safeguarding within the Social Services and Well-being Act 

(Wales) 2014
 Ensure the wider council workforce are aware of the Council’s approach to Safeguarding
 Develop a consistent approach to regional collaboration for Community Safety
 Support achievement of the regional priorities set by the Police and Crime Commissioner. 

National Policy Issues: 
 Implementation of the Social Services and Well-being Act 2014
 Development of the National Safeguarding Board and structures
 Management of response to Child Sexual Exploitation
 Sustainability of short-term grant funded schemes.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Strengthen arrangements within all council portfolios to have clear responsibilities to address 

safeguarding.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Increasing referral rates from within Council services other than Social Services
 Completion of the online child and adult safeguarding module
 Council officers completing safeguarding awareness training
 Embedding processes and best practice across the council
 Reviewing corporate service policies and procedures to identify breadth and depth of 

safeguarding coverage
 Implement the safeguarding policy across all Council Services.

2. Ensure that our response rates to referrals remain within statutory targets.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Meeting statutory procedural targets for child and adult protection.

3. Preventative approach towards Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE).
Achievement will be measured through:

 Developing a corporate plan linked to regional work to combat CSE
 Cascading of North Wales Police (NWP) CSE videos to all portfolios.

Tudalen 119



P a g e  20 | 38

4. Identify and address the signs and symptoms of domestic abuse and sexual violence.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Delivering the level 1 training programme for all Council employees
 Implementing training for Council employees to meet the requirements of the Domestic 

Abuse and Sexual Violence (DASV) National Training Framework
 The number of incidents of Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence reported.

5. Strengthen regional community safety through collaboration and partnership arrangements.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Adopting and achieving the priorities of the North Wales Safer Communities Board Plan 
through formulation of a local delivery plan, which also includes locally identified priorities, 
and overseen by the Public Services Board.

Priorities of the North Wales Safer Communities Board include:
 Domestic Abuse
 Modern Slavery
 Organised Crime
 Sexual Abuse (Including Child Sexual Exploitation)
 Delivering Safer Neighbourhoods

6. Ensure we meet the requirements of the North Wales Contest Board.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Develop a plan to identify and monitor progress of the prevent duties as outlined within the 
Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015.

Risks to manage: 
 Rate of increase of adult safeguarding referrals will outstrip current resources
 DoLS assessment waiting list increases
 Knowledge and awareness of safeguarding not sufficiently developed in all portfolios
 Failure to implement training may impact on cases not being recognised at an early stage.

What we mean by:
Child sexual exploitation (CSE): a type of sexual abuse in which children are sexually exploited for money, 
power or status. Children or young people may be tricked into believing they're in a loving, consensual 
relationship. They might be invited to parties and given drugs and alcohol, and may also be groomed online.
Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014 (SSWB): An Act to reform social services law to make 
provision about improving well-being outcomes. 
Prevent Duty: Forms 1 of the 4 stands of the Government’s Counter Terrorism Strategy, known as ‘Contest’.  
The object of this strand is to prevent individuals from within communities becoming radicalised.  The Counter 
Terrorism and Security Act 2015 place statutory requirement on local authorities to meet what is known as 
‘The Prevent Duties’ necessitating the need for effective processes and mechanisms to prevent radicalisation. 
Police and Crime Commissioner: The North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner is the local governing body 
for policing in our area, and the role replaced North Wales Police Authority. The Commissioner has an 
overarching duty to secure an efficient and effective police force, which demonstrates value for money and, 
above all, cuts crime. 

Tudalen 120



P a g e  21 | 38

Priority: Ambitious Council
Sub-Priority: Business Sector Growth and Regeneration

Impacts:  1)   Sustaining economic growth through local and regional business development,
      employment and training sites.
2) Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites and transport services, widening 

access to employment and training sites
3) Creating a supply of diverse and quality training and employment opportunities.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Continue to grow the local and regional economy
 Secure infrastructure investment needed to facilitate growth both regionally and locally
 Continue to build upon the success of the advanced manufacturing sector in Flintshire
 Protect the economic viability of our town centres and rural areas providing focus on the wider 

economic growth approach and, housing and employment impact
 Work collaboratively to achieve key priorities for major infrastructure projects which will support 

economic growth projects
 Develop transport access solutions for our key employment sites
 Continue to support and grow our tourism sector as part of the North Wales tourism and cultural offer.

National Policy Issues: 
 Confirmed support for growth deals following the general election 
 Devolution of powers to support economic growth in North Wales: opportunity and possible threat if 

powers are insufficient and do not match those across the UK
 Infrastructure investment to create the platform for advancing economic growth 
 Uncertainty over Welsh Government approach to regeneration 
 Recognition of the potential impacts on the local and sub-regional economy of global trading patterns 

and workforce migration of the Brexit negotiations. 

What we will do in 2017/18: 
1. The Regional Economic Growth Deal will be submitted to UK and Welsh Governments this year and will 

set out the main priorities for economic development across North Wales.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Contributing to the development of a new governance framework for the North Wales Economic 

Ambition Board
 The success of the region in achieving a Regional Growth Deal Bid for Government Investment in 

the regional economy 
 Developing a strategy for delivery of the parts of the Regional Growth Deal which will directly 

benefit Flintshire
 Developing the Local Development Plan (LDP) economic strategy
 Supporting the development of the Wales Advanced Manufacturing Institute by Welsh 

Government with a successful planning application.

Tudalen 121



P a g e  22 | 38

2. Guide the development of the Deeside Enterprise Zone (DEZ) and Northern Gateway mixed use 
development site. Ensure that the developments maximise economic and social value for the County and 
that they deliver the commitments made in the Regional Economic Growth Deal.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Providing clear and responsive guidance to potential developers within the DEZ and Northern 

Gateway
 Seeking a revised strategic framework from the Northern Gateway developers
 Completing phase 1 enabling works by Welsh Government
 Securing Welsh Government agreement for phase 2 and / or phase 3 enabling works.

3. Develop long term strategic approach to Council’s economic estate and land.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Completing a review of the Council’s economic estate and land.

4. Expand the scale and quality of apprenticeships both regionally and locally and make best use of the  
Apprenticeship Training Levy (ATL) 

Achievement will be measured through: 
 Ensuring apprenticeships feature in the Regional Economic Growth Deal proposal.

5. Develop a new approach to supporting town centre vitality and regeneration that maximises their role as 
shop windows for the County and enables them to derive benefit from wider economic growth.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Developing and agreeing a multi-agency plan
 Identifying options to develop new land uses in town centres, especially for residential use.

6. Ensure that the development of regional and local transport strategy and initiatives maximises their 
potential for economic benefits, especially access to employment and tourism.

Achievement will be measured through: 
 Ensuring that transport infrastructure features in the Regional Economic Growth Deal proposal
 Implementing the Deeside Plan to co-ordinate transport and economic development 

programmes
 The performance of the local and sub-regional economy with public sector interventions in 

investment.

Tudalen 122



P a g e  23 | 38

Risks to manage:
 Infrastructure investment does not keep pace with needs and business is lost to the economy
 Support for businesses in Flintshire doesn’t meet their needs and fails to encourage investment
 The stability of the local and sub-regional economies
 The region having a sufficient voice at Welsh Government and UK Government levels to protect its 

interests.

What we mean by: 
Northern Powerhouse: A collaboration concerned with redressing the North-South economic imbalance, 
aiming to attract investment into northern cities and towns. 
LDP Strategy: Delivering sustainable development in the County from 2017 – 2030.
Regional Economic Growth Deal: The North Wales Economic Ambition Board proposal to UK and Welsh 
Governments to create new employment and housing.
Apprenticeship Tax Levy:  The Apprenticeship Levy is a UK-wide employment tax introduced by the UK 
Government that came into force on 6 April 2017. The Levy applies to all UK employers, and employers with an 
annual ‘pay bill’ of £3 million or more will have to pay the Levy.

Tudalen 123



P a g e  24 | 38

Priority: Learning Council
Sub-Priority: High Performing Education
Impacts:  1)   Providing high quality learning opportunities, and learning environments for 

            learners of all ages.
2) Supporting children and younger people to achieve their potential.
3) Supporting learners from 3 to 18 years of age to aspire to high levels of educational attainment 

and achievement. 

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Utilise resources effectively to achieve the best possible educational outcomes
 Support the national Welsh Government priorities to improve literacy and numeracy outcomes and 

reduce the impact of poverty on educational attainment
 Improve digital literacy and skills to deliver digital curriculum and enable access to modern employment 

and economic development opportunities
 Work collaboratively to develop national reforms to curriculum, assessment and professional 

development models
 Work effectively with partners across the region to secure efficiency and improved outcomes from 

educational improvement programmes
 Reduce barriers to engagement, ensure equality of access and participation opportunities  
 Make more efficient use of education resources through programmes of School Modernisation
 Engage young people more fully.

National Policy Issues:
 Sustainability of Welsh Government short term grant funding  
 Rationalisation of the provision, planning and accountability processes for education related specific 

grants
 Affordability of the 21st Century Schools programme  
 Simplification of the process for school place planning and provision
 Additional learning needs reforms
 Increase in national child care offer
 European funding schemes
 Capital provision for schools’ repair and maintenance
 Inadequate revenue funding for schools.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Develop Education and Integrated Youth Services by:
 Continuing to work with the Regional School Improvement Service (GwE) to: -

 Provide support and challenge to all schools to achieve the best possible educational outcomes for 
all learners;

 Identify and target support for those schools most in need;
 Develop the capacity of schools to respond to national initiatives and curriculum reforms;  
 Improve skills in digital literacy, literacy and numeracy.

Tudalen 124



P a g e  25 | 38

 Maintaining relative performance in Mathematics, English/Welsh first Language and Core Subject 
Indicators at Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3

 Improving outcomes in Foundation Phase 
 Improving outcomes in Key Stage 4
 Raising standards achieved by learners who are entitled to free school meals
 Developing strategies to support broader well-being needs of children and young people
 Improving attendance
 Developing an effective local approach to national inclusion reforms 
 Implementing proposed reforms for the portfolio Pupil Referral Unit including relocation onto a single 

site to improve quality provision 
 Developing a sustainable strategy for the Flintshire Music Service
 Embedding Welsh in the Education Strategic Plan
 Maintaining levels of 16 year olds in education, employment and training above benchmark position
 Further developing the Youth Engagement and Progression work programme for learners in danger of 

disengaging
 Create a vibrant Youth Council to provide meaningful input from Flintshire young people to our 

democratic process.
 Developing and implementing a plan for the next phase of Schools Modernisation, through the 21st 

Century School programme
 Maintaining a schedule of repairs and maintenance of school buildings.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Delivering and embedding the Families First Programme and Flintshire’s Integrated Youth 

Services Strategy “Delivering Together”
 Targeting vocational and employability skills
 Enhancing personal support, including coaching, mentoring and help with transition
 Realising the benefits of regional European Social Fund programmes
 Measuring reduction in first time entrance to the youth justice system 
 Improving the number of hours in education, training or employment that young people in the 

youth justice system can access
 Improving outcomes for targeted groups of vulnerable learners, e.g. Looked After Children and 

young people exiting the Youth Justice System.

 Create a vibrant Youth Council to provide meaningful input from Flintshire young people to our 
democratic process.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Creating a delivery plan for the launch of the young peoples’ council by October 2017.

 Developing and implementing a plan for the next phase of Schools Modernisation, through the 21st 
Century School programme

Achievement will be measured through:
 Completing key milestones in the Schools Modernisation programme. 

Tudalen 125



P a g e  26 | 38

 Maintaining a schedule of repairs and maintenance of school buildings
Achievement will be measured through:

 By maintaining an annual repairs and maintenance programme of school buildings through the 
Council’s Capital programme.

2. Enhance skills to improve employment opportunities by:
Achievement will be measured through:
 Working with the public, private and voluntary sectors to maximise the number of apprenticeships, 

traineeships and work experience opportunities
 Increasing training and apprenticeship opportunities through the Futureworks Flintshire 

Apprenticeship Academy and major capital programmes
 Strengthening and cultivating attractive routes into education for the workforce  
 Embedding regional skills strategy for Science, Technology, English and Maths (STEM)
 Securing schools’ active participation in events and activities to promote the development of young 

people’s work-related skills.

3. Implementing the Welsh Government pilot of the 30 hour childcare offer by:
Achievement will be measured through:
 Implementation of the Childcare Pilot project plan from October 2017
 The number of registered settings and the numbers of children accessing the offer.

4. Families First Collaborative Programme
Achievement will be measured through:
 Implementation of a Collaborative Families First strategy from 2017 – 2020
 The number of people accessing the offer.

Risks to manage: 
 Those schools who do not recognise their need for improvement and external support
 Leadership capacity does not match school needs
 Impact of Additional Learning Needs reforms 
 Local employers and learning providers do not work closely enough to identify and meet the skills based 

needs of the future
 Sustainability of funding streams.  
 Numbers of school places not matching the changing demographics
 Limited funding to address the backlog of known repair and maintenance works in Education & Youth 

assets.

Tudalen 126



P a g e  27 | 38

What we mean by:
Regional School Improvement Service (GwE): School Effectiveness and Improvement Service for North Wales, 
works alongside and on behalf of the Local Authorities to develop excellent schools across the region.
European Social Fund (ESF) Programmes: To increase the employability of local people (aged 25 and over) who 
have complex barriers to employment. 
Core Subject Indicator: Learners achieve the expected level in Mathematics, English or Welsh 1st language and 
Science.
21st Century Schools: A national programme of funding to improve school buildings and environments.
School Modernisation: The process by which the Local Authority ensures there are a sufficient number of high 
quality school places, of the right type in the right locations
Youth Justice Service: Aims to prevent children and young people under 18 from offending or re-offending.
Childcare Offer:  Welsh Government initiative to offer working parents of 3-4 year olds 30 hours of funded 
early education and childcare per week (up to 48 weeks of the year).

Tudalen 127



P a g e  28 | 38

Priority: Green Council
Sub-Priority: Sustainable Development & Environmental Management (shaking hands symbol)
Impacts:  1)    Enhancing the natural environment and promoting access to open and green space.

2) Reducing energy consumption and using and developing alternative/renewable energy 
production. 

3) Maximising the recovery and recycling of waste.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 

 Address the requirements of the sustainable development principles of the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act and Environment Bill

 Balance the need for sustainable development with the protection of the natural environment
 Continue to reduce our carbon emissions to meet Welsh Government targets and play our part in helping 

to address the consequences of climate change.

National Issues:
 Reduction of the Single Environment Grant whilst delivering the priority area of natural resource 

management
 Reliance on external funding for large scale developments
 Government cap on financial support for solar farms
 Capacity and funding to address flood risks.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Improve, protect and enhance the built environment.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Adoption of a Local Heritage Strategy.

 
2. Manage our natural environment and accessible green-space networks to deliver health, well-being and 

resilience goals.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Reviewing the rights of way improvement plan
 Delivering projects set out within the ESD grant application. 

3. Maximise the potential of the Council’s estate and assets for energy efficiency and renewable energy 
production, reducing the reliance on fossil fuels.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Delivery of the renewable energy plan for the Council’s estates and assets which was adopted in 

2015
 Increasing usage of environmentally efficient vehicles
 Reducing our carbon footprint across our Council buildings (non housing).

Tudalen 128



P a g e  29 | 38

4. Maximise the recovery and recycling of waste with a view to reducing the reliance on landfill.
Achievement will be measured through: 
 Improving recycling performance
 Recycling rates per Household Recycling Centre (HRC)
 Modernisation of the HRC site network.

5. Strengthen regional air quality collaboration to help promote better health and well-being outcomes.
Achievement will be measured through: 
 Developing a regional strategic approach to the collation of air quality data.  

6. Identification of the Local Development Plan preferred strategy.
Achievement will be measured through: 
 Adoption of the Local Development Plan to support Sustainable Development & Environmental 

Management.

Risks to manage: 
 Reduction of the Single Environment Grant
 Limitations on suitable Council sites with sufficient area for larger scale renewables schemes and 

suitable connections to the electric grid
 Funding will not be secured for priority flood alleviation schemes
 Customer expectations around the delivery of flood alleviation schemes are not effectively managed
 Lack of holistic air quality data across the region leading to on cost for the Council to manage its own 

review.

What we mean by:
Well-being of Future Generations Act and Environment Bill: Welsh Government (WG) approaches to 
managing the country’s natural resources.
Single Environment Grant: A WG grant to support integrated delivery of natural resource management, waste 
and resource efficiency and local environmental quality.
LDP Strategy: Delivering sustainable development in the County from 2017 – 2030.
Local Heritage Strategy: To ensure that the distinct heritage of Flintshire County is fully appreciated and 
recognised, and enhanced for the overall benefit of the community.
ESD Grant (Environment and Sustainable Development):  A Welsh Government grant to support integrated 
delivery of natural resource management, waste & resource efficiency and local environmental quality.
Civic Amenity Site Network: A network of collection spaces at fixed locations to increase recycling and raise 
awareness of the positive impact of selective collection.
Single Air Quality Review and Assessment: A strategy which aims to protect people’s health and the 
environment under the provisions of the Environment Act 1995 

Tudalen 129



P a g e  30 | 38

Priority: Green Council
Sub-Priority: Safe and sustainable travel services 

Impact: Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites, and transport services, widening 
access to employment and training sites.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Enable people to access key services and link communities across Flintshire
 Minimise congestion and delays on our highway network
 Maximise the benefits of available funding
 Include local transport solutions in the regional Economic Growth Deal bid.

National Policy Issues:
 Uncertainty of future grant funding
 Rail franchise renewal
 Impact of major road and rail infrastructure decisions
 Reductions in bus subsidies
 Outcomes of regional Economic Growth Bid deal.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Access and use available grant funding to support Council priorities for accessing employment, health, 

leisure and education.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Successfully delivering projects and services through national grant funded schemes

o Local transport fund 
o Rural Communities and Development Fund
o Road Safety
o Safe Routes
o Bus Service Support Grant
o Active Travel integrated network map

 Development of sub-regional and Metro inter-modal transport projects.

2. Prioritise the Council’s road infrastructure for repairs and maintenance and implement programmes of 
work within available funding in order to improve the resilience, efficiency and reliability of the 
transport network. 
Achievement will be measured through:
 Monitoring the condition of the highway’s infrastructure
 Undertaking inspections to ensure reinstatements meet the required standards and raise the 

standard of works undertaken on Flintshire’s network
 Delivery of the Highways Asset Management Plan.

Tudalen 130



P a g e  31 | 38

3. Work closely with the communities to develop innovative and sustainable community based transport 
schemes.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Development of community based transport schemes within available funding
 Developing and supporting community based transport schemes to complement the core network 

of bus services. 

4. Deliver a compliant, safe and integrated transport service.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Increasing the number of financially compliant contracts
 Increasing the number of safety compliant checks
 Ensure safety compliant checks for transport services are maintained.

Risks to manage: 
 Sufficient funding to ensure our highways infrastructure remains safe and capable of supporting 

economic growth
 Sufficient funding will not be found to continue to provide subsidised bus services.
 Supply chain resilience
 Adverse weather conditions on the highway network
 Lack of community support for transport options.

What we mean by:
Infrastructure: Facilities, systems, sites and networks that are necessary for the County to function.
“Active Travel”: Walking or cycling as an alternative means to motorised transport for the purpose of making 
every day journeys.
Community Transport: Passenger transport schemes which are owned and operated by local community 
groups.
Commercial bus services: Following changes made in the 1980s, the majority of local bus services in Wales are 
commercially operated by bus companies.
Regional Economic Growth Deal bid: the North Wales Economic Ambition Board proposal to UK and Welsh 
Governments to create new employment and housing.

Tudalen 131



P a g e  32 | 38

Priority: Connected Council 
Sub-Priority: Resilient Communities (shaking hands symbol)
Impact:  1)   Supporting local communities to be resilient and self-supporting.

2) Committing to resilient service models to sustain local public services.
3) Widening digital access to public services.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Build on what has been completed in 2016/17 with support for local communities.  In year two this will 

concentrate on:

 Developing the community and social sectors to support local communities to be more self-
sufficient

 Creating alternative delivery models within the community and social sector to sustain valued 
public services

 Developing social enterprises, who are able to act for the benefit of local communities and create 
both employment and economic opportunities

 Realising social benefits in the community e.g. increasing volunteering and training opportunities 
for young people; keeping local money in the community.

 Ensuring our Armed Forces Community and their families are recognised for their commitment.

National Policy Issues:
 Lack of support programmes for the development of alternative delivery models
 Role of Town and Community Councils in cooperative working and local governance as detailed in the 

Local Government Bill 2015
 Strengthening of the social sector to be more commercial and less reliant on grant funding.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Build stronger social enterprises with the sector itself leading development of the sector.

Achievement will be measured through: 
 Develop a strategy to grow existing social enterprises.

2. Grow the capacity of the social enterprise sector and Alternative Delivery Models (ADMs) to become 
more self-sustaining.

 Achievement will be measured through: 
 Monitoring the level of efficiencies ADMs have supported
 Establishing two new social enterprises operating in Flintshire through the ADM and Community 

Asset Transfer Programme
 Monitoring community benefits delivered by Community Asset Transfers.

Tudalen 132



P a g e  33 | 38

3. Implement the Digital Strategy and resources to meet future customer needs.
Achievement will be measured through: 
 Development of an action plan to improve community access to digital services and to raise skill 

levels
 Review the Charter between Welsh Government and the Council for digital business to maximise 

the value of WG support to businesses in the County.

4. Ensuring and delivering community benefits.  
Achievement will be measured through: 
 Establishing a Community Benefits Board with an action plan
 Work with the third sector to increase its capacity to successfully bid for and undertake contracts 

on behalf of the Council
 Monitoring the percentage of community benefit clauses included in new procurement contracts.

5. Enabling the third sector to maximise their contribution.
Achievement will be measured through: 
 Increasing the number of volunteering placements.

6. Getting Flintshire active through partnership objectives via the Public Services Board.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Increasing participation in activities that contribute to physical and mental well-being including 

libraries, theatre and countryside
 Increasing community assets 
 Identity and equality of participation.

7. Ensure our Armed Forces Community and their families are not disadvantaged when accessing Council 
Services. 

Achievement will be measured through:
 Revising portfolio policies to reflect the ambitions of the Armed Forces Covenant
 Achieving Silver status for our Employee Recognition Scheme
 Optimising the value of the regional grant monies to support a 2 year programme.

Risks to manage: 
 The capacity and appetite of the community and social sectors
 The willingness of the workforce and Trade Unions to embrace change
 Market conditions which the new alternative delivery models face
 Limitations on public funding to subsidise alternative models
 Procurement regulations stifling our ability to develop local community and third sector markets
 Newly established Social Enterprises and Community Asset Transfers failing in their early stages of 

development.

Tudalen 133



P a g e  34 | 38

What we mean by:
Social Enterprise: Businesses with primarily social objectives whose surpluses are mainly reinvested for that 
purpose in the business or community.
Community Benefit Clauses: Benefits to local communities from major procurements e.g. training and 
employment opportunities, community facilities.
Alternative Delivery Models (ADMs): New approaches to service delivery designed to sustain important 
services and meet future need.
Community Asset Transfers (CAT): The leasehold transfer of a Flintshire County Council asset to an 
organisation with a social purpose who plans to use it for the benefit of the local community.

Tudalen 134



P a g e  35 | 38

Priority: Serving Council
Sub-Priority: Effective Resource Management
Impacts:  1)   Continuing to be a high performing and innovative public sector organisation with social values.

2) Providing high quality, accessible, responsive and cost effective public services.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Manage with reducing resources
 Continue to aim high despite reduced financial and people resources
 Make the best use of our capability and capacity in challenging times
 Have the right buildings in the right places for the right uses
 Make our money go further through smarter purchasing
 Achieve the highest possible standards of customer services.

National Policy Issues:
 Reduction in capital investment and resources
 Ongoing austerity policies
 Non-funding of new legislative and policy commitments.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Develop and implement a renewed five year financial plan that reflects anticipated funding, costs 

and efficiencies to support strategic decision making over the life of the new council.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Increasing achievement rate of the budgeted efficiency targets to 95%
 Revising our plan to meet the relevant funding gap for 2017-2022
 Matching our priorities with revenue and capital investment
 Ensure sustainable business plans for service portfolios
 Develop a range of operational financial performance indicators.

2. Through the People Strategy we aim to operate effectively as a smaller organisation.
Achievement will be measured through: 
 Improving attendance
 Increasing the number of managers and employees attending and accessing stress related / 

management programmes 
 Percentage of employees who have secured employment following completion of apprenticeship 

training 
 A single consolidated workforce plan and supporting action plan
 Attainment of attendance and appraisal targets.

Tudalen 135



P a g e  36 | 38

3. Maximise benefits from spending power through optimised purchasing efficiencies by exploiting 
technology and making efficient use of local, regional and national procurement arrangements. 

Achievement will be measured through: 
 % of goods, services and works procured through purchasing arrangements established by the 

National Procurement Service (NPS)
 % of Council spend with Welsh businesses
 % of Council spend with Flintshire businesses
 % of Council spend with businesses within the Mersey Dee Alliance (MDA).

4. Develop and deliver a programme of activity to support local businesses, increasing their capacity 
and competency to respond to Council contracts.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Development of a programme to support local businesses
 Developing and delivering training and support to improve the inclusion of community benefits in 

Council contracts 
 Developing a system to record and monitor Community Benefits centrally.

5. Delivery of key annualised objectives from the Digital Strategy and Customer Strategies. 
Achievement will be measured through:

 Increasing the number of services available online and via the Flintshire App
 Increasing the number of completed transactions using online services
 Responding to customer feedback ensuring information is accessed at first point of contact 

online
 Development of action plans to deliver the Digital Strategy 
 Deliver agreed actions from the Digital Strategy for 2017/18.

6. Delivery of key annual objectives from the Capital and Asset Management Strategy.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Critically challenging our current estate, continue with the programme of asset 
rationalisation, ensuring that assets retained are effective, efficient and sustainable to 
deliver services

 Identify and consider options available to fund capital expenditure that minimises the 
ongoing revenue implications of historic capital expenditure of new and existing 
investments

 Establishing effective arrangements for managing capital projects including assessment of 
outcomes and achievement of value for money.

Risks to manage: 
 The scale of the financial challenge
 The capacity and capability of the organisation to implement necessary changes.

Tudalen 136



P a g e  37 | 38

What we mean by:
Procurement Collaborations: Ways of purchasing goods and services within agreed terms and conditions.
NPS – National Procurement Service: Welsh Government sponsored organisation established to procure 
common and repetitive spend across public sector organisations in Wales. 
Flintshire App: ios and android application to enable contact with FCC and find out about available services
Community Benefits: Benefits to the local community through delivery of Alternative Delivery Models and 
procurement of services and works.

Tudalen 137



P a g e  38 | 38

Statement of Responsibility
On-going review about the Council’s priorities and this plan is available through our website where feedback 
forms are available for the public, our partners, our workforce and businesses. We would like to know what you 
think about our priorities and those for the future. We would value your feedback and hope that you can spend 
a few minutes to tell us what you think. 

In the meantime our contacts for any initial observations are: 

Corporate Business and Communications Team: 
Tel: 01352 701457 
Email: corporatebusiness@flintshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 138



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Council Plan 2017/2023

How achievement will be measured - 
Supporting milestones and measures 

T
udalen 139



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

2
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

Priority Sub-Priority Impact

Supportive 
Council

Appropriate & 
Affordable 

Homes
Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality housing of all tenures

What we will do in 2017/18:

1. Provide new social and affordable homes.
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Delivery of HRA and NEW Homes Business Plans.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
 Delivering options for new, innovative low rent housing schemes for under 35’s by March 2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
1 The numbers of new Council homes delivered through the SHARP 
programme 12 79 206

2The numbers of new affordable homes delivered through the SHARP 
programme 0 62 6

The number of properties managed by NEW Homes

Chief Officer – 
Community and 

Enterprise

61 144 179

1 Aspirational targets are based on current business plans which may be subject to change for 2018/19
2 The aspirational target of 6 for 2018/19 reflects delivery of properties where definitive proposals are in place

T
udalen 140



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

3
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

2. Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) investment plan targets achieved. 
Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

 Completing WHQS work schemes in line with the housing asset management strategy by March 2018.

3. Develop solutions to the increasing frequency of unauthorised gypsy and traveller encampments.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
 Agreed options appraisal identifying a range of measures to address this by March 2018.

T
udalen 141



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

4
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

Priority Sub-Priority Impact

Supportive 
Council

Modern, 
Efficient and 

Adapted 
Homes

Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality Council housing of all tenures

What we will do in 2017/18:

1. Improve standards within the private rented sector.
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Working proactively with landlords and tenants to improve the quality of private rented sector properties
 Ensuring landlords and letting agents comply with the Rent Smart code of practice.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17) 2017/18 Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
The percentage of landlords and letting agents compliant with the Rent 
Smart code of practice N/A 65% 70%

The number of landlords that have complied with improvement notices N/A 80% 85%

The number of tenants protected from unsuitable living conditions

Chief Officer – 
Planning and 
Environment

N/A 100% 100%

T
udalen 142



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

5
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

2. Deliver the Council’s housing growth needs.
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Increasing the number of new affordable homes agreed through the planning system by 50 during 2017/18
 Delivering social and affordable homes through Welsh Government funding programmes 
 Increasing the number of new homes created as a result of bringing empty properties back into use.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17) 2017/18 Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
The number of new affordable homes provided through the planning 
system 42 50 50

3 The number of additional affordable units provided through the SHG 
Programme 24 193 TBC

PAM/014 The number of new homes created as a result of bringing empty 
properties back into use

Chief Officer – 
Community 

and Enterprise

38 38 38

3 The Social Housing Grant funding for 2018/19 is not known therefore the aspirational target will remain to be confirmed

T
udalen 143



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

6
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

3. Meeting the housing needs of vulnerable groups. 
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Reducing the average number of calendar days taken to deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)
 Increasing the numbers of Extra Care homes and individual units:

o Constructing Flint Extra Care (Llys Raddington) providing 70 new units
o Confirming and agreeing plans for Holywell Extra Care providing 55 new units

 Working strategically to address housing needs of adults with learning disabilities and other vulnerable individuals. 

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
 Confirming and agreeing plans by March 2018 for Holywell Extra Care providing 55 new units 
 Develop a plan to address housing needs of adults with learning disabilities and other vulnerable individuals by March 2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17) 2017/18 Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target

PAM/015 Average number of calendar days taken to deliver a DFG 248 240 230
4 The number of Flint Extra Care (Llys Raddington) units 
created

Chief Officer – 
Community and 

Enterprise 0 70 70

The number of Extra Care units provided across Flintshire Chief Officer – Social 
Services 111 180 240

4 Aspirational target for the number of Flint Extra Care (Llys Raddington) units created is based on current business plans which may be subject to change for 2018/19

T
udalen 144



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

7
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

Priority Sub-Priority Impact
Supportive 

Council
Protecting People 

from Poverty Protecting people from poverty by maximising their income and employability

What we will do in 2017/18:

1. Support Flintshire residents to better manage their financial commitments.
Achievements will be measured through:

 Assisting people with Welfare Reform changes through the effective application of the Council’s Discretionary Housing Payment Policy
 Providing advice and support services to help people manage their income, including supporting people to access affordable credit and local 

Credit Unions
 Timely processing of Housing Benefit claims
 Assisting Flintshire residents to claim additional income to which they are entitled.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
 Develop a plan to assist people with Welfare Reform changes through the effective application of the Council’s Discretionary Housing Payment 

Policy 
 Providing support and guidance, though personal budgeting to help people manage their income, including support to access affordable credit 

and local Credit Unions.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target

Number of days to process new housing benefit claims 20 20 20

Number of days to process change of circumstances for housing benefit 8 8 8

The amount of additional income paid to Flintshire residents as a result 
of the anti-poverty work undertaken by the Council

Chief Officer – 
Community and 

Enterprise

£1.5m £1.5m £1.5m

T
udalen 145



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

8
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

2. Manage local impact of the full Universal Credit (UC) roll out.
Achievements will be measured through:

 Achieving the Homeless prevention target 
 Delivering the UC Operational board action plan
 Delivering Personal Budgeting and Digital Support Services.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Delivering the UC Operational board action plan.


Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
PAM/012 Percentage of households successfully prevented from 
becoming homeless 87% 89% 89%

5 The number of people on UC that have received personal budgeting 
support N/A 590 590

The number of people on UC that have received digital support

Chief Officer – 
Community and 

Enterprise

N/A 640 640

5 Aspiration targets dependent on continuation of funding and the number of people receiving Universal Credit

T
udalen 146



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

9
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

3. Develop and deliver programmes that improve employability and help people to gain employment.
Achievements will be measured through: 

 Developing an employability proposal as part of the Regional Economic Growth Bid to seek long term investment via a simple and cost 
effective programme of support

 Developing an enhanced careers and guidance service for North Wales to match young people to the labour market
 Increasing the number of local people who, following attendance on a programme report they are closer to work or becoming ready to enter 

work.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Developing an employability proposal as part of the Regional Economic Growth Bid to seek long term investment via a simple and cost 

effective programme of support by March 2018
 Develop a plan for an enhanced careers and guidance service for North Wales to match young people to the labour market by March 2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target

Number of people completing programmes commissioned by the 
Council which deliver job and training outcomes

Chief Officer – 
Community and 

Enterprise
323 400 500

T
udalen 147



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

10
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

4. Develop and deliver programmes to improve domestic efficiency to reduce Co2 emissions and fuel poverty.
Achievements will be measured through:

 Reducing the overall annual fuel bill for residents
 Providing advice and support to residents to enable them to switch to a lower cost energy tariff
 Increasing the number of private sector and Council homes receiving energy efficiency measures 
 Securing Welsh Government ARBED3 Programme Funding.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Secure Welsh Government ARBED 3 Programme Funding by March 2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
Annual reduction of domestic fuel bills for residents of Flintshire £288,000 £140,000 £250,000

The number of residents supported to lower their energy tariff N/A 150 200

The number of people receiving the warm home discount N/A 50 100

The number of people who receive a full healthy homes healthy people/ 
affordable warmth/HHSRS home visit and tailored advice N/A 500 1000

The number of private sector homes receiving efficiency measures 227 140 200

The number of Council homes receiving efficiency measures

Chief Officer – 
Community and 

Enterprise

650 300 600

5. Develop a strategy to address food poverty.

Achievements will be measured through:
 Developing programmes in partnership with the social and third sector to work towards addressing food poverty
 Undertaking feasibility work for the development of a food-based social enterprise.

Achievement Milestones will be measured through:
 Developing programmes in partnership with the social and third sector to work towards addressing food poverty by March 2018
 Undertaking feasibility work for the development of a food-based social enterprise by December 2017.

T
udalen 148



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

11
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

6. Assist residents of Flintshire to access affordable credit.

Achievements will be measured through:
 Develop effective partnerships with local Credit Unions to enable residents to access banking services and affordable credit.

Achievements Milestones will be measured through:
 Develop service level agreements with local Credit Unions to enable residents to access banking services and affordable credit by March 2018.

T
udalen 149



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

12
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

Priority Sub-Priority Impact

Supportive 
Council

Independent 
Living

 Making early interventions to support healthy and independent living
 Sustaining a local market of high quality and affordable service provision for those who are highly 

dependent on care support

1. Ensure care home provision within Flintshire enables people to live well and have a good quality of life.

Achievements will be measured through:
 Agreeing the business model to increase direct provision of residential care and sustain domiciliary care roles to support the wider market
 Supporting care home providers to ensure service sustainability and delivering Progress for Providers
 Delivering dementia awareness training to the care homes workforce
 Working with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) to develop an action plan to support the quality and breadth of nursing provision
 Delivering a strategy for independent sector domiciliary care agencies to support service sustainability.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Agreeing the business model to increase direct provision of residential care and sustain domiciliary care roles to support the wider market by 

March 2019
 Develop a plan to help support care home providers to ensure service sustainability by October 2017
 Working with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) to develop an action plan to support the quality and breadth of nursing provision 

by, September 2018
 Delivering a strategy for independent sector domiciliary care agencies to support service sustainability by October 2017.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
The number of care homes who have implemented the new Progress for 
Providers Programme N/A 20 25

The percentage of care homes registered on the programme that have 
achieved the bronze standard for Progress for Providers N/A 50% 75%

The percentage of care homes that have achieved bronze standard who 
have also achieved silver standard for Progress for Providers N/A 25% 35%

Sustaining existing care homes within Flintshire N/A 100% 100%

The percentage occupancy within Flintshire care homes

Chief Officer – Social 
Services

N/A 95% 95%

T
udalen 150



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

13
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

2. Support greater independence for individuals with a frailty and / or disability, including those at risk of isolation.

Achievements will be measured through:
 Adults who are satisfied with their care and support
 Implementation of a joint Community Resource Team (CRT) with BCUHB which is able to offer advice and support through the Single Point of 

Access (SPOA)
 Ensuring that the workforce are equipped to provide person centred care in line with the requirements of the Social Services and Well-being 

Act (Wales) 2014.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Implementation of a joint CRT with BCUHB which is able to offer advice and support through the SPOA by December 2017.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
PAM/024 Percentage of adults satisfied with their care and support 82% 85% 87%

The number of extra hours provided for advice and support through the 
Single Point of Access 40 47 57

The Percentage of employees trained in Person Centred Care in line 
with the Social Services and Well-being Act (Wales) 2014

Chief Officer – Social 
Services

80% 100% 100%

3. Improve outcomes for looked after children.
Achievements will be measured through:

 Supporting children in stable, local placements
 Strengthening partnership working with BCUHB to ensure timely access to health assessments including CAMHS.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
PAM/028 Percentage of child assessments completed in time 84% 84% 87%

PAM/029 Percentage of children in care who had to move 2 or more 
times 13% 10% 7%

Percentage of children assessed by CAMHS within 28 days by BCUHB

Chief Officer - Social 
Services

N/A 95% 97%

T
udalen 151



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

14
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

Priority Sub-Priority Impact

Supportive 
Council

Integrated 
community social 

and health 
services

 Enabling more people to live independently and well at home
 Giving equal opportunity to all to fulfil their lives
 Providing joined-up services with public and third sector partners which support quality of life in 

communities and for individuals and families

1. Ensure that effective services to support carers are in place as part of collaborative social and health services.
Achievements will be measured through:
 Increasing the number of carers identified through the Single Point of Access (SPOA) 
 Increasing the number of carers that feel supported
 Evidencing improved outcomes for carers
 Developing the Carers’ Action Plan.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Evidencing improved outcomes for carers by enabling them to continue with their caring role by March 2018
 Development of the regional Carer’s Action Plan by March 2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
Number of adult carers identified.  867 900 1000

PAM/026 Percentage of carers that feel supported
Chief Officer – Social 

Services 67% 75% 80%

T
udalen 152



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

15
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

2. Further develop the use of Integrated Care Fund (ICF) to support effective discharge from hospital and ensure a smoother transition 
between Health and Social Care services. 

Achievements will be measured through:
 Creating essential additional services such as Step Up/Step Down beds providing choice when leaving hospital
 Maintaining the rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Creating essential additional services such as Step Up/Step Down beds providing choice when leaving hospital by March 2020.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
PAM/025 Percentage of people kept in hospital while waiting for social 
care per 1,000 population aged 75+ 

Chief Officer – Social 
Services 1.78% 1.78% 1.78%

3. Establish an Early Help Hub, involving all statutory partners and the third sector. 
Achievements will be measured through:
 Establishing the Early Help Hub to provide effective and timely support to families
 Reducing referrals that result in “no further action”.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Establishment of the Early Help Hub to provide effective and timely support to families by October 2017.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target

Percentage of child protection referrals that result in “no further action”. Chief Officer – Social 
Services 37.6% 35% 30%

T
udalen 153



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

16
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

4. Further develop dementia awareness across the county.
Achievements will be measured through:
 The number of dementia cafes in Flintshire
 Increasing number of dementia friendly communities in Flintshire.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
The number of dementia cafes in Flintshire 3 6 6

The number of dementia friendly communities in Flintshire
Chief Officer – Social 

Services 2 3 4

T
udalen 154



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

17
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

Priority Sub-Priority Impact

Supportive 
Council Safeguarding

 Protecting people from the risk of any form of abuse
 Making communities safe places by working with partners to prevent crime, repeat crime and anti-

social behaviour

1. Strengthen arrangements within all council portfolios to have clear responsibilities to address safeguarding.
Achievements will be measured through:
 Increasing referral rates from within Council services other than Social Services.
 Completion of the online child and adult safeguarding module
 Council officers completing safeguarding awareness training
 Embedding processes and best practice across the council
 Reviewing corporate service policies and procedures to identify breadth and depth of safeguarding coverage
 Implement the safeguarding policy across all Council Services.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
 Embedding processes and best practice across the Council by March 2018
 Reviewing corporate service policies and procedures to identify breadth and depth of safeguarding coverage by September 2017
 Implement safeguarding policy across all Council Services by September 2017
 Ensure all contracts include appropriate obligations to promote safeguarding best practice by March 2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
Increased referral rates from services other than Social Services.  3 30 30

The number of officers who have completed the specialist ‘AFTA 
Thought’ safeguarding awareness training. 

Chief Officer – Social 
Services 0 350 700

T
udalen 155



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

18
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

2. Ensure that our response rates to referrals remain within statutory targets.
Achievements will be measured through
 Meeting statutory procedural targets for child and adult protection.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
Percentage of adult protection enquiries completed within 7 days 74% 78% 80%

Percentage of initial child protection conferences due in the year and 
held within timescales 74% 95% 95%

Percentage of reviews of children on the child protection register due in 
the year and held within timescales

Chief Officer – Social 
Services

98% 98% 98%

3. Preventative approach towards Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE).
Achievements will be measured through:
 Developing a corporate plan linked to regional work to combat CSE
 Cascading of North Wales Police CSE videos to all portfolios.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Develop a corporate plan linked to regional work to combat CSE by October 2017
 Raising awareness of CSE for senior managers through Change Exchange.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
The percentage of portfolio senior management teams that have viewed 
the North Wales Police CSE information videos Chief Officer – Social 

Services N/A 100% 100%

Further measures will be adopted for 2018/19 with partner agencies following development of a plan to combat CSE by October 2017. 

T
udalen 156



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

19
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

4. Identify and address the signs and symptoms of domestic abuse and sexual violence.
Achievements will be measured through:
 Delivery of the level 1 training programme for all Council employees
 Implementing training for Council employees to meet the requirements of the Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (DASV) National Training 

Framework.
 The number of incidents of Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence reported.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
The Percentage of employees who have completed the level 1 e-learning 
training package to meet the requirements of the Domestic Abuse and 
Sexual Violence National Training Framework

N/A 25% 50%

6 Number of reported incidents of Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 1502 N/A N/A

Number of Domestic Abuse incidents reported to North Wales Police 1101 N/A N/A

Number of incidents of Sexual Assault reported to North Wales Police

Chief Officer – 
Planning and 
Environment

401 N/A N/A

To support the forthcoming Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse & Sexual Violence Strategy which is expected to be in place by March 2018 
Welsh Government are intending to publish a set of national indicators across all public services.

5. Strengthen regional community safety through collaboration and partnership arrangements.
Achievements will be measured through:
 Adopting and achieving of the priorities of the North Wales Safer Communities’ Board Plan through; formulation of a local delivery plan, which also 

includes locally identified priorities, and overseen by the Public Services Board by March 2018.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
 Development of a local delivery plan, which also includes locally identified priorities, and overseen by the Public Services Board by March 2018.

6 Trend analysis will be monitored throughout the year against reported incidents of Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence  

T
udalen 157



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

20
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

6. Ensure we meet the requirements of the North Wales Contest Board.
Achievements will be measured through:
 Develop a plan to identify and monitor progress of the prevent duties as outlined within the Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Develop a plan to identify and monitor progress of the prevent duties as outlined within the Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015 by December 

2017.

T
udalen 158



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

21
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

Priority Sub-Priority Impact

Ambitious 
Council

Business Sector 
Growth and 

Regeneration

 Sustaining economic growth through local and regional business development, employment and 
training sites

 Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites and transport services, widening access 
to employment and training sites

 Creating a supply of diverse and quality training and employment opportunities

What we will do in 2017/18:

1. The Regional Economic Growth Deal will be submitted to UK and Welsh Governments this year and will set out the main priorities for 
economic development across North Wales.

Achievements will be measured through:
 Contributing to the development of a new governance framework for the North Wales Economic Ambition Board 
 The success of the region in achieving a Regional Growth Deal Bid for Government Investment in the regional economy
 Developing a strategy for delivery of the parts of the Regional Growth Deal which will directly benefit Flintshire
 Developing the Local Development Plan (LDP) economic strategy
 Supporting the development of the Wales Advanced Manufacturing Institute by Welsh Government with a successful planning application.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Contributing to the development of a new governance framework for the North Wales Economic Ambition Board by October 2017
 Securing a Regional Growth Deal Bid for Government Investment in the regional economy by March 2018
 Developing a strategy for delivery of the parts of the Regional Growth Deal which will directly benefit Flintshire  by October 2017
 Developing the Local Development Plan (LDP) economic strategy by October 2017
 Supporting the development of the Wales Advanced Manufacturing Institute by Welsh Government with a successful planning application by March 

2018.

T
udalen 159



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

22
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

2. Guide the development of the Deeside Enterprise Zone (DEZ) and Northern Gateway mixed use development site. Ensure that 
developments maximise economic and social value for the County and that they deliver the commitments made in the Regional Economic 
Growth Deal.

Achievements will be measured through:
 Providing clear and responsive guidance to potential developers within the DEZ and Northern Gateway
 Seeking a revised strategic framework from the Northern Gateway developers
 Completing phase 1 enabling works by Welsh Government
 Securing Welsh Government agreement for phase 2 and / or phase 3 enabling works.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Providing clear and responsive guidance to potential developers within the DEZ and Northern Gateway
 Seeking a revised strategic framework from the Northern Gateway developers by March 2018 
 Completing phase 1 enabling works by Welsh Government by April 2018
 Securing Welsh Government agreement for phase 2 and / or phase 3 enabling works by December 2018.

3. Develop long term strategic approach to Council’s economic estate and land.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Completing a review of the Council’s economic estate and land.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Review of the Council’s economic estate and land by March 2018.

4. Expand the scale and quality of apprenticeships both regionally and locally, and make the best use of the Apprenticeship Training Levy 
(ATL).

Achievement will be measured through:
 Ensuring apprenticeships feature in the Regional Economic Growth Deal proposal.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Ensuring apprenticeships feature in the Regional Economic Growth Deal proposal by July 2017.

 

T
udalen 160



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

23
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

5. Develop a new approach to supporting town centre vitality and regeneration that maximises their role as shop windows for the County 
and enables them to derive benefit from wider economic growth.

Achievements will be measured through:
 Developing and agreeing a multi-agency plan
 Identifying options to develop new land uses in town centres, especially for residential use.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Developing and agreeing a multi-agency plan by March 2018
 Identifying options to develop new land uses in town centres, especially for residential use by December 2018.

6. Ensure that the development of regional and local transport strategy initiatives maximise the potential for economic benefits, especially 
access to employment and tourism.

Achievements will be measured through:
 Ensuring that transport infrastructure features in the Regional Economic Growth Deal proposal
 Implementing the Deeside Plan to co-ordinate transport and economic development programmes
 The performance of the local and sub-regional economy with public sector interventions in investment.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Ensuring that transport infrastructure features in the Regional Economic Growth Deal proposal by July 2018
 Implementing the Deeside Plan to co-ordinate transport and economic development programmes by December 2017.

 
Measures are to be adopted by all partner councils as part of the Regional Economic Growth Deal Bid between November and March 2018

T
udalen 161



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

24
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

Priority Sub-Priority Impact

Learning 
Council

High Performing 
Education

 Providing high quality learning opportunities, and learning environments for learners of all ages
 Supporting children and younger people to achieve their potential
 Supporting learners from 3 to 18 years of age to aspire to high levels of educational attainment and 

achievement

What we will do in 2017/18:

1. Develop Education and Integrated Youth Services.
 Continuing to work with the Regional School Improvement Service (GwE) to: -

 Provide support and challenge to all schools to achieve the best possible educational outcomes for all learners;
 Identify and target support for those schools most in need;
 Develop the capacity of schools to respond to national initiatives and curriculum reforms;  
 Improve skills in digital literacy, literacy and numeracy

 Maintaining relative performance in Mathematics, English/Welsh first Language and Core Subject Indicators at Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3
 Improving outcomes in Foundation Phase 
 Improving outcomes in Key Stage 4
 Raising standards achieved by learners who are entitled to free school meals
 Developing strategies to support broader well-being needs of children and young people
 Improving attendance
 Developing an effective local approach to national inclusion reforms 
 Implementing proposed reforms for the portfolio Pupil Referral Unit including relocation onto a single site to improve quality provision 
 Developing a sustainable strategy for the Flintshire Music Service
 Embedding Welsh in the Education Strategic Plan
 Maintaining levels of 16 year olds in education, employment and training above benchmark position
 Further developing the Youth Engagement and Progression work programme for learners in danger of disengaging
 Create a vibrant Youth Council to provide meaningful input from Flintshire young people to our democratic process.
 Developing and implementing a plan for the next phase of Schools Modernisation, through the 21st Century School programme
 Maintaining a schedule of repairs and maintenance of school buildings

T
udalen 162



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

25
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

Achievement will be measured through:
 The number of learners achieving or exceeding the expected outcome levels at key assessment points eg age 7,11,14 and 16
 Delivering the portfolio’s Education Improvement & Modernisation Strategy,  GwE Business Plan and Welsh in Education Strategic Plan to achieve 

key milestones
 Delivering and embedding the Families First Programme and Flintshire’s Integrated Youth Services Strategy “Delivering Together”
 Targeting vocational and employability skills
 Enhancing personal support, including coaching, mentoring and help with transition
 Realising the benefits of regional European Social Fund programmes
 Measuring reduction in first time entrance to the youth justice system 
 Improving outcomes for targeted groups of vulnerable learners, e.g. Looked After Children and young people exiting the Youth Justice System
 Create a vibrant Youth Council to provide meaningful input from Flintshire young people to our democratic process.
 Developing and implementing a plan for the next phase of Schools Modernisation, through the 21st Century School programme
 Improving the number of hours in education, training or employment that young people in the youth justice system can access; and
 Maintaining a schedule of repairs and maintenance of school buildings.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Delivering the portfolio’s Education Improvement & Modernisation Strategy
 Delivering and embedding the Families First Programme and Flintshire’s Integrated Youth Services Strategy “Delivering Together” by March 2018
 Targeting vocational and employability skills by March 2018
 Enhancing personal support, including coaching, mentoring and help with transition by March 2018
 Realising the benefits of regional European Social Fund programmes by March 2018
 Create a delivery plan for the launch of the young peoples’ council by October 2017
 Completing key milestones in the Schools Modernisation programme by March 2018
 Maintain an annual repairs and maintenance programme of school buildings through the Council’s Capital programme.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
PAM/003 Percentage of pupils achieving the expected outcome at the 
end of the Foundation Phase (FPOI) 86.9% 89.9% 90.8%

Percentage of pupils who receive free school meals, achieving the 
expected outcome at the end of the Foundation Phase (FPOI) 71.5% 78.7% 67.8%

PAM/004 Percentage of pupils achieving the expected outcome at the 
end of key stage 2. (CSI) 90.1% 91.3% 93.1%

Percentage of pupils who receive free school meals, achieving the 
expected outcome at the end of key stage 2. (CSI) 82.3% 74.7% 75.2%

T
udalen 163



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

26
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

PAM/005 Percentage of pupils achieving the expected outcome at the 
end of key stage 3. (CSI) 88.4% 90.9% 93.3%

Percentage of pupils who receive free school meals achieving the 
expected outcome at the end of key stage 3. 76.2% 80.2% 82.1%

PAM/006 Percentage of pupils achieving the expected outcome at the 
end of key stage 4. Level 2 inclusive threshold 5 GCSE A* - C incl E/W 
and Maths

82.6% 85.1% 86.0%

Percentage of pupils who receive free school meals achieving the 
expected outcome at the end of key stage 4. Level 2 inclusive threshold 
5 GCSE A* - C incl E/W and Maths

33.1% 38.6% 42.5%

PAM/007 Percentage of pupil attendance in primary schools 94.7% 95.3% 95.4%

PAM/008 Percentage of pupil attendance in secondary schools 94.3% 94.9% 95%

PAM/009 Percentage of year 11 leavers not in education, training, or 
employment. 1.1% 1.1% 1.1%

Percentage reduction in first time entrance to the youth justice system 

Chief Officer – 
Education and Youth

12% 15% 20%

The percentage of young people under 16 years old in the youth justice 
system offered education, training or employment. 71% 80% 90%

The percentage of young people aged 16 – 18 in the youth justice 
system offered 16 hours of education, training or employment 58% 60% 80%

The percentage of year 13 learners who complete level three courses in 
Maths within Flintshire Schools 27% 29% 30%

The percentage of year 13 learners who complete level three courses in 
Science within Flintshire Schools 16% 18% 20%

The percentage of attendance across the portfolio PRU 64% 70% 75%

Further measures will be included for 2018/19 following a review of attendance across the portfolio of the Pupil Referral Unit by March 2018

T
udalen 164



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

27
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

2. Enhance skills to improve employment opportunities.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Working with the public, private and voluntary sectors to maximise the number of apprenticeships, traineeships and work experience opportunities
 Increasing training and apprenticeship opportunities through the Futureworks Flintshire Apprenticeship Academy and major capital programmes
 Strengthening and cultivating attractive routes into education for the workforce 
 Embedding regional skills strategy for Science, Technology, English and Maths (STEM).
 Securing schools’ active participation in events and activities to promote the development of young people’s work-related skills.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Develop a plan to Increase training and apprenticeship opportunities through the Futureworks Flintshire Apprenticeship Academy and major capital 

programmes by March 2018 
 Develop a plan to strengthening and cultivate attractive routes into education for the workforce by March 2018
 Embedding regional skills strategy for Science, Technology, English and Maths (STEM) by March 2018
 Develop a plan to secure schools’ active participation in events and activities to promote the development of young people’s work-related skills by 

March 2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
The number of training opportunities created through major capital 
programmes 32 9 9

The number of apprenticeships started during 2017/18 through major 
capital programmes

Chief Officer – 
Community and 

Enterprise 15 10 8

T
udalen 165



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

28
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

3. Implementing the Welsh Government pilot of the 30 hour childcare offer.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Implementation of the Childcare Pilot project plan
 The number of registered settings and the numbers of children accessing the offer.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Implementation of the Childcare Pilot project plan from October 2017.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
The number of registered settings to deliver the Childcare offer N/A 122 128

The number of children accessing the Childcare offer
Chief Officer – 

Education and Youth N/A 748 785

4. Families First Collaborative Programme.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Implementation of a Collaborative Families First strategy from 2017 - 2020
 Number of people accessing the ‘offer’.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Develop a fully commissioned collaborative Families First Programme for 2017 – 2020 by March 2018
 Implementation of commissioned plan for delivery of the Families First Programme by March 2018. 

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target

The number of people accessing the offer Chief Officer – 
Education and Youth 7700 6200 6500

T
udalen 166



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

29
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

Priority Sub-Priority Impact

Green 
Council

Sustainable 
Development and 

Environmental 
Management

 Enhancing the natural environment and promoting access to open and green space
 Reducing energy consumption and using and developing alternative/renewable energy production
 Maximising the recovery and recycling of waste

 

1. Improve, protect and enhance the built environment.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Adoption of a Local Heritage Strategy.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Adoption of a Local Heritage Strategy by March 2018.

Measures will be included for 2018/19 following adoption of the Local Heritage Strategy by March 2018

2. Manage our natural environment and accessible green-space networks to deliver health, well-being and resilience goals.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Reviewing rights of way improvement plan
 Delivering projects set out within the ESD grant application. 

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Reviewing rights of way improvement plan – draft plan available for consultation by February 2018
 Delivering projects set out within the ESD grant application including flood defence, biodiversity duty and green-space enhancement by March 

2018.

Measures will be adopted and included for 2018/19 following a review of the rights of way improvement plan and, delivery of projects set out within the 
ESD grant application by March 2018.

T
udalen 167



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

30
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

3. Maximise the potential of the Council’s assets for energy efficiency and renewable estate and renewable energy production, reducing the 
reliance on fossil fuels.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Delivery of the renewable energy plan for the Council’s estates and assets which was adopted in 2015
 Increasing usage of environmentally efficient vehicles
 Reducing our carbon footprint across our Council buildings (non housing).

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Delivery of Phase 2 of the renewable energy action plan (10 year plan adopted in 2015).

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
Percentage of environmentally efficient front line operational vehicles to 
Euro 6 standard. N/A 80% 100%

Number of street furniture and street light units replaced with LED 
lighting. N/A 6000 6000

Reduce our carbon footprint across our Council buildings (non housing)

Chief Officer Street 
Scene and 

Transportation

3.69% 4% 4%

T
udalen 168



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

31
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

4. Maximise the recovery and recycling of waste with a view to reducing the reliance on landfill.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Improving recycling performance
 Recycling rates per Household Recycling Centre (HRC)
 Modernisation of the HRC site network.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Delivery of the Modernisation Programme of the HRC network by March 2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
PAM/030 Percentage of waste reused, recycled or composted 68.13% 68% 68%

Average recycling rate across all HRC sites

Chief Officer Street 
Scene and 

Transportation 77% 80% 90%

5. Strengthen regional air quality collaboration to help promote better health and well-being outcomes.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Developing a regional strategic approach to the collation of air quality data.  

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Developing a regional strategic approach to the collation of air quality data by March 2018.

Measures are to be adopted for 2018/19 by all partner councils as part of the development plan for a regional approach to the collation of air quality data by 
March 2018 

T
udalen 169



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

32
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

6. Identification of the Local Development Plan preferred strategy
Achievement will be measured through:
 Adoption of the Local Development Plan to support Sustainable Development & Environmental Management.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Adoption of the Local Development Strategy to support Sustainable Development and Environmental Management by March 2018.

Measures will be developed for 2018/19 following adoption of the Local Development Strategy by March 2018

T
udalen 170



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

33
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

Priority Sub-Priority Impact

Green 
Council

Safe and 
Sustainable 

Travel Services

 Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites, and transport services, widening access to 
employment and training sites

1. Access and use available grant funding to support Council priorities for accessing employment, health, leisure and education
Achievement will be measured through:
 Successfully delivering projects and services through national grant funded schemes

o  Local transport fund 
o  Rural Communities and Development Fund
o  Road Safety
o  Safe Routes
o  Bus Service Support Grant
o  Active Travel integrated network map

 Development of sub-regional and Metro inter-modal transport projects.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Submission of funding bids to Welsh Government by January 2018
 Delivering of projects and services that have received successful funding by March 2018 
 Development of sub-regional and Metro inter-modal transport projects by March 2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target

7 The number of projects and services delivered through national grant 
funded schemes

Chief Officer Street 
Scene and 

Transportation
N/A 6 TBC

7 The aspirational target is dependent on the level of national grant funding which is not yet known

T
udalen 171



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

34
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

2. Prioritise the Council’s road infrastructure for repairs and maintenance and implement programmes of work within available funding in 
order to improve the resilience, efficiency and reliability of the transport network. 

Achievement will be measured through:
 Monitoring the condition of the highways infrastructure
 Undertaking inspections to ensure reinstatements meet the required standards and raise the standard of works undertaken on Flintshire’s network
 Delivery of the Highways Asset Management Plan.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Delivery of the highways asset management plan by March 2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
PAM/020 Percentage of A roads in overall poor condition 1.5% 5% 5%

PAM/021 Percentage of B roads in overall poor condition 1.3% 5% 5%

PAM/022 Percentage of C roads in overall poor condition 5.0% 7% 7%

Percentage of inspections undertaken to ensure reinstatements meet 
the required standards

Chief Officer Street 
Scene and 

Transportation
14.25% 14% 14%

3. Work closely with the communities to develop innovative and sustainable community based transport schemes.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Development of community transport schemes within available funding
 Developing and supporting community based transport scheme strategies to compliment the core network of bus services. 

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Developing and supporting community based transport scheme strategies to complement the core network of bus services.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target

Percentage of community based transport schemes developed against 
plan

Chief Officer Street 
Scene and 

Transportation
1 5 5

T
udalen 172



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

35
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

4. Deliver a compliant, safe and integrated transport service.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Increasing the number of financially compliant contracts
 Increasing the number of safety compliant checks
 Ensure safety compliant checks for transport services are maintained.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Development of a robust procedure for safety compliant checks for transport services by December 2017.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
Percentage of contracts awarded that are financially compliant N/A 100% 100%

The percentage of safety compliant checks delivered

Chief Officer Street 
Scene and 

Transportation N/A 100% 100%T
udalen 173



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

36
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

Priority Sub-Priority Impact

Connected 
Council

Resilient 
Communities

 Supporting local communities to be resilient and self-supporting
 Committing to resilient service models to sustain local public services
 Widening digital access to public services

1. Build stronger social enterprises with the sector itself leading development of the sector.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Develop a strategy to grow existing social enterprises.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Develop a range of tools such as community shares that enable existing social enterprises to grow and develop by March 2018. 

Measures are to be adopted for 2018/19 following development of a strategy to support existing social enterprises by March 2018

T
udalen 174



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

37
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

2. Grow the capacity of the social enterprise sector and Alternative Delivery Models (ADMs) to become more self-sustaining.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Monitoring the level of efficiencies ADMs have supported
 Establishing two new social enterprises operating in Flintshire through the ADM and Community Asset Transfer Programme
 Monitoring community benefits delivered by Community Asset Transfers.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Establishing two new social enterprises of a significant scale operating in Flintshire through the ADM and Community Asset Transfer Programme by 

December 2017
 Reporting of community benefits delivered by Community Asset Transfers by March 2018
 Establishing programmes for adults with learning disabilities into secure paid employment by March 2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
The monetary value of efficiency supported by ADMs N/A £0.5M £1M

The number of primary school meals provided each financial year 
through the ADM Newydd Catering and Cleaning 5350 5403 5511

The number of secondary school meals provided each financial year 
through the ADM Newydd Catering and Cleaning 5029 5129 5232

Number of leisure centres and libraries sustained through the community 
benefits society  11 11 11

The number of key community asset transfers sustained by new social 
enterprises, Connah’s Quay Swimming Pool, Holywell Leisure Centre, 
Mynydd Isa Community Centre and Library

Chief Officer – 
Organisational 

Change

3 3 3

Community Benefits delivered by ADMs and CATs to be reported on each year.

T
udalen 175



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

38
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

3. Implement the Digital Strategy and resources to meet future customer needs.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Development of an action plan to improve community access to digital services and to raise skill levels
 Review the Charter between Welsh Government and the Council for digital business to maximise the value of WG support to businesses in the 

County.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Development of an action plan to improve community access to digital services and to raise skill levels by March 2018
 Review the Charter between Welsh Government and the Council for digital business to maximise the value of WG support to businesses in the 

County by March 2018.
 

Measures are to be adopted for 2018/19 following development of the action plan to improve community access to digital services and a review of the 
Charter between WG and the Council by March 2018

4. Ensuring and delivering community benefits.  
Achievement will be measured through:
 Establishing a Community Benefits Board with an action plan
 Work with the third sector to increase its capacity to successfully bid for and undertake contracts on behalf of the Council. 
 Monitoring the percentage of community benefit clauses included in new procurement contracts.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Establishing a Community Benefits Board with an action plan by December 2017
 Creation of guidance/handbook on appropriate Community Benefits to include in contracts based on the nature of the contract and  the value by 

March 2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
Percentage of community benefit clauses in new procurement contracts 
above £1M 100% 100% 100%

Percentage of community benefit clauses in new procurement contracts 
under £1M N/A 100% 100%

Let two contracts that are targeted for third sector/social enterprises; 
Housing Voids and Household Recycling Centres

Chief Officer – 
Organisational 

Change

0 2 2

T
udalen 176



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

39
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

5. Enabling the third sector to maximise their contribution.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Increasing the number of volunteering placements.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target

Number of volunteering placements created
Chief Officer – 
Organisational 

Change
548 548 548

6. Getting Flintshire active through partnership objectives via the Public Services Board. 
Achievement will be measured through:
 Increasing participation in activities that contribute to physical and mental well-being including libraries, theatre and countryside
 Increasing community assets
 Identity and equality of participation.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Report on the sports and arts development work that has taken place to increase participation by individuals and communities that have lower 

levels of engagement within sports and arts activity by March 2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
PAM/016 Number of visits to libraries per 1000 population 3935 4014 4094

PAM/017 Number of visits to leisure centres per 1000 population 8740 7296 7296

Number of visits to the theatre 167,000 175,000 180,000

The number of leisure and cultural assets that are cooperatively 
supported by a range of partners ensuring they remain accessible to 
their local communities 

Chief Officer – 
Organisational 

Change
2 11 11

T
udalen 177



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

40
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

7. Ensure our Armed Forces Community and their families are not disadvantaged when accessing Council Services. 
Achievement will be measured through:
 Revising portfolio policies to reflect the ambitions of the Armed Forces Covenant
 Achieving Silver status for our Employee Recognition Scheme
 Optimising the value of the regional grant monies to support a 2 year programme.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Revising portfolio policies to reflect the ambitions of the Armed Forces Covenant by March 2018
 Achieving Silver status for our Employee Recognition Scheme by March 2018
 Optimising the value of the regional grant monies to support the Armed Forces Community by March 2018.

Measures are to be adopted for 2018/19 following revised and updated policies to reflect the ambitions of the Armed Forces Covenant by March 2018T
udalen 178



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

41
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

Priority Sub-Priority Impact

Serving 
Council

Efficient 
Resource 

Management

 Continuing to be a high performing and innovative public sector organisation with social values
 Providing high quality, accessible, responsive and cost effective public services

1. Develop and implement a renewed five year financial plan that reflects anticipated funding, costs and efficiencies to support strategic 
decision making over the life of the new council.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Increasing achievement rate of the budgeted efficiency targets to 95%
 Revising our plan to meet the relevant funding gap for 2017-2022
 Matching our priorities with revenue and capital investment
 Ensure sustainable business plans for service portfolios
 Develop a range of operational financial performance indicators.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Revising our plan to meet the relevant funding gap for 2017-2022 by March 2018
 Matching our priorities with revenue and capital investment by March 2018
 Ensure sustainable business plans for service portfolios by March 2018
 Develop a range of operational financial performance indicators by March 2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
8 The amount of efficiency targets achieved £9,557,000 £8,433,000 TBC

The percentage of planned efficiencies achieved 91% 95% 100%

The percentage variance between the revenue budget out-turn and the 
budget set

Chief Executive

-0.81% 0.49% 0%

8 The aspirational target will be a minimum of 95% of the agreed figure for 2018/19

T
udalen 179



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

42
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

2. Through the People Strategy we aim to operate effectively as a smaller organisation.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Improving attendance 
 Increasing the number of managers and employees attending and accessing stress related / management programmes
 Percentage of employees who have secured employment following completion of apprenticeship training
 A single consolidated workforce plan and supporting action plan
 Attainment of appraisal targets.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Development of a single consolidated workforce plan and supporting action plans by March 2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
PAM/001 The number of working days per full time equivalent (FTE) 
local authority employees lost due to sickness absence 9.82 9 8.5

Percentage of Managers completing stress related programmes N/A 25% 50%

Percentage of employees completing stress related programmes N/A 25% 50%

Percentage of apprentices securing employment with Flintshire Council 60% 65% 70%

Percentage of eligible employees receiving an annual appraisal

Chief Executive

65% 100% 100%

T
udalen 180



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

43
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

3. Maximise benefits from spending power through optimised purchasing efficiencies by exploiting technology and making efficient use of 
local, regional and national procurement arrangements. 

Achievement will be measured through:
 % of goods, services and works procured through purchasing arrangements established by the National Procurement Service (NPS)
 % of Council spend with Welsh businesses
 % of Council spend with Flintshire businesses
 % of Council spend with businesses within the Merseyside Dee Alliance (MDA).

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
The percentage of goods, services and works procured through 
purchasing arrangements established by the National Procurement 
Service (NPS)

N/A 8% 10%

The percentage of Council spend with Welsh businesses 48% 50% 52%

The percentage of Council spend with Flintshire businesses 26% 28% 30%

Percentage of Council spend with businesses within the regional MDA

Chief Officer - 
Governance

32% 32% 34%

4. Develop and deliver a programme of activity to support local businesses, increasing their capacity and competency to respond to Council 
contracts.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Development of a programme to support local businesses
 Developing and delivering training and support to improve the inclusion of community benefits in Council contracts
 Developing a system to record and monitor Community Benefits centrally.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Develop a programme to support local businesses by November 2017
 Develop and deliver training and support to improve the inclusion of community benefits in Council contracts by January 2018
 Develop a system to record and monitor Community Benefits centrally by January 2018.

Measures are to be adopted by the Council for 2018/19 following development of the Community Benefits and other support programmes. 

T
udalen 181



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

44
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

5. Delivery of key annualised objectives from the Digital Strategy and Customer Strategies. 

Achievement will be measured through:
 Increasing the number of services available online and via the Flintshire App
 Increasing the number of completed transactions using online services
 Responding to customer feedback ensuring information is accessed at first point of contact online
 Development of action plans to deliver the Digital Strategy 
 Deliver agreed actions from the Digital Strategy for 2017/18.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Develop a plan to improve the take-up of online service by March 2018
 Development of action plans to deliver the Digital Strategy by March 2018
 Deliver agreed actions from the Digital Strategy for 2017/18.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
The number of services available online and via the Flintshire App 124 149 179

The number of completed transactions using online services

Chief Officer – 
Community and 

Enterprise 26,350 31,620 37,950

T
udalen 182



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

45
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

6. Delivery of key annualised objectives from the Capital and Asset Management Strategy. 

Achievement will be measured through:
 Continuation with the programme of asset rationalisation, ensuring that assets retained are effective, efficient and sustainable to deliver services
 Identify and consider options available to fund capital expenditure that minimises ongoing revenue implications of new and existing investments
 Establish effective arrangements for managing capital projects including assessment of outcomes and achievement of value for money.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Critically challenge our current estate, continue with the programme of asset rationalisation, ensuring that assets retained are effective, efficient 

and sustainable to deliver services by March 2018
 Identify and consider options available to fund capital expenditure that minimises the ongoing revenue implications of historic capital expenditure of  

new and existing investments by March 2018
 Establish effective arrangements for managing capital projects including assessment of outcomes and achievement of value for money by March 

2018.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
The percentage of major capital projects which are completed on time 100% 100% 100%

The percentage of major capital projects which are completed within 
budget

Chief Officer – 
Organisational 

Change 100% 100% 100%

Measures are to be adopted for 2018/19 following a review of our current estate and options available to fund capital expenditure by March 2018

T
udalen 183



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn bw
rpasol



CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Thursday, 21st September 2017

Report Subject Procurement Strategy Action Plan

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management and Assets

Report Author Chief Officer (Governance) 

Type of Report Strategic

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In November 2016 Cabinet approved a joint procurement strategy with Denbighshire 
County Council.  It contained the following high level outcomes 

1. Flintshire County Council achieves value for money from the goods, services and 
works it procures

2. Flintshire County Council improves the contribution its procurement activity has 
on the local economy especially social enterprise

An action plan has been prepared to show how those outcomes will be delivered.  
The action plan also includes the measures that will be used to track progress.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To recommend the action plan and the measures that will be publicly 
reported to Cabinet for adoption.

Tudalen 185

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 8



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE ACTION PLAN

1.01 The Council spends £150m per year on buying goods and services.  The 
Procurement Strategy, which was approved in November 2016, sets out 
how the Council intends to use that purchasing power to support its wider 
policy aims.  The strategy includes the following 2 high level outcomes 

1. Flintshire County Council achieves value for money from the goods, 
services and works it procures

2. Flintshire County Council improves the contribution its procurement 
activity has on the local economy especially social enterprise

These outcomes underpin and support the following key aims in the Council 
Plan:

Priority: Connected Council
Sub-Priority: Developing and Inspiring Resilient Communities
Impact: 1) Supporting local communities to be resilient and self-
supporting.
4. Ensuring and delivering community benefits.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Establishing a Community Benefits Board with an action plan
 Commissioning of two Council contracts with specific community 

benefits that provides the third sector with a competitive edge
 Monitoring the percentage of community benefit clauses included in new 

procurement contracts; and

Priority: Serving Council
Sub-Priority: Improving Resource Management
Impacts: 1) Continuing to be a high performing and innovative public 
sector organisation with social values.
2) Providing high quality, accessible, responsive and cost effective 
public services.
What we will do in 2017/18:
3. Maximise benefits from spending power through optimised purchasing 
efficiencies by exploiting technology and making efficient use of local, 
regional and national procurement arrangements.
Achievement will be measured through:
 % of goods, services and works procured through purchasing 

arrangements established by the National Procurement Service (NPS)
 % of Council spend with Welsh businesses
 % of Council spend with Flintshire businesses.
4. Develop and deliver a programme of activity to support local businesses, 
increasing their capacity and competency to respond to Council contracts.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Development of a programme to support local businesses
 Developing and delivering training and support to improve the inclusion 

of community benefits in Council contracts
 Developing a system to record and monitor Community Benefits 

Tudalen 186



centrally.

1.02 The Strategy does not expand on how these outcomes are to be achieved, 
and that further level of detail is provided by the action plan.   The Business 
Plan (attached at Appendix A) lists not only the steps that will be taken to 
deliver the outcomes but also sets out the measures that will be used to 
track progress. 

The planned actions fall into a number of broad categories
1) work to promote the use community benefits in contracts such as work to 
make it easier to decide what benefits to seek.
2) actions to improve the ability of local businesses and social enterprise to 
bid for council contracts; and
3) process improvements to ensure that the end to end electronic 
procurement system functions in the optimal way thereby making it easier 
for both officers and suppliers to use.

Members will be pleased to note that a policy and procedure on the use of 
community benefit clauses will be brought forward for approval well in 
advance of the target date of December 2017.

1.03 The action plan is very detailed and includes activities and measures that 
will be used for performance management.  Consequently not all measures 
are appropriate for public reporting.  It is proposed that the following 
measures are publicly reported:

Measures

1) Total potential savings through procurement
2) % of orders completed wholly electronically
3) % of spend with businesses in Mersey Dee Alliance area
4) % of contracts below £1m value with community benefit clauses 

Actions

5) Programme of activity increasing capacity of local businesses and the 
third sector/social enterprise to bid for council contracts

6) Structuring contracts to provide opportunities for local businesses and 
the third sector/social enterprise

7) Improve inclusion of community benefit clauses in contracts
8) Increase the number of contracts are jointly procured with DCC 

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 The Procurement Service has the necessary level of resource to carry out 
the actions in the Action Plan.  

Tudalen 187



3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 The views of this committee will be verbally reported to Cabinet.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 The purpose of the Action Plan is to help define how the Council will achieve 
its wider policy aims through directing its purchasing power. By carefully 
structuring contract specifications and invitations to quote/tender it will be 
possible for the Council to spend its money in a way that supports its 
community and social enterprise.  The use of community benefits in 
particular will help to reduce social inequality and improve community 
resilience.

Every individual procurement exercise will still need to be compliant with the 
relevant contract procedure rules and legislation, and all of the aims of the 
strategy nor proposed actions are compatible with both.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix A – Procurement Business Plan 

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 http://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CI
d=391&MId=3854&Ver=4&LLL=0

Contact Officer: Gareth Owens, Chief Officer Governance
Telephone: 01352 702344
E-mail: Gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk 

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Community Benefit Clauses - Benefits to local communities from major 
procurements e.g. training and employment opportunities, community 
facilities. This incorporates social value by taking wider impacts and benefits 
into account other than price.

Mersey Dee Alliance - The partnership between the public sector in North 
East Wales and North West England to “work together on common strategic 
interests to ensure a sustainable future for the area and facilitate a coherent 
approach to social, economic and environmental issues.” (MDA)

Tudalen 188

http://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=391&MId=3854&Ver=4&LLL=0
http://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=391&MId=3854&Ver=4&LLL=0
mailto:Gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk


Outcome 1A Denbighshire: The council achieves value for money from the goods, works and services it procures

Measures Excellence
Target

Intervention
Target

% of goods, services and works procured through purchasing arrangements established by the NPS 10% 5%

% of goods, services and works procured through non-NPS framework agreements

Total potential savings at tender award stage (Contract Estimated budget -v- Contract Award value)*

Total potential savings at contract end stage (Contract Award value -v- Actual Contract Spend)*

% of contracts over £25k for goods and services where a Commissioning for has been completed*

% of contracts over £250k for works where a Commissioning for has been completed*

% of contracts over £25k for goods and services where a Wellbeing Impact Assessment has been completed* 100% 90%

% of contracts over £250k for works where a Wellbeing Impact Assessment has been completed* 100% 90%

% of contracts over £25k for goods and services where a tenders exercise is undertaken but no award is made*

% of contracts over £250k for works where a tenders exercise is undertaken but no award is made*

% of contracts over £25k where the contract award amount is no more that the estimated budget*

% of contracts over £25k where the final contract cost is no more than the contract award amount*

% of contracts over £25k where the final contract cost is no more than the contract award amount*

% of Contracts over £25k with a signed or sealed contract within 6 weeks of the contract award* 95% 90%

% of officer assessing the service provided by the CPS as 'ok' or better 85% 75%

% of officers attending procurement training assessing the training as 'ok' or better 85% 75%

T
udalen 189



% of Middle Management Team assessing their procurement knowledge as 'ok' or better 85% 75%

% of invoices that have had an upfront purchase order (PO)

DEVELOP SET OF MEASURES FOR CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

* as measured through procurement projects entered into the Proactis Portal.  This may not include all procurement activity, as some projects initiated prior to the new 
CPR’s coming into force on 1 April 2016 may not be in the system.

GLOSSARY
NPS – National Procurement Service – a Welsh Government sponsored organisation established to procure common and repetitive spend across public sector 
organisations in Wales.
Commissioning Form – document required to be completed by officers undertaking procurement activity which outlines the rationale and approach to the proposed 
activity.
Wellbeing Impact Assessment Tool – web-based tool developed by Denbighshire County Council to provide documented evidence of how the Council has considered its 
obligations under the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015
CPS – Collaborative Procurement Service – the central team of procurement officer that support and advise services in relation to procurement activity across both 
Denbighshire and Flintshire County Councils.
Proactis – the council’s adopted electronic procurement system, though which all contracts over £10,000 should be recorded and managed.

T
udalen 190



Outcome 1B Flintshire: The council achieves value for money from the goods, works and services it procures

Measures Target

% of goods, services and works procured through purchasing arrangements established by the NPS 10%

% of goods, services and works procured through non-NPS framework agreements

Total potential savings at tender award stage (Contract Estimated budget -v- Contract Award value)*

Total potential savings at contract end stage (Contract Award value -v- Actual Contract Spend)*

% of contracts over £25k for goods and services where a Commissioning for has been completed*

% of contracts over £250k for works where a Commissioning for has been completed*

% of contracts over £25k for goods and services where a Wellbeing Impact Assessment has been completed*

% of contracts over £250k for works where a Wellbeing Impact Assessment has been completed*

% of contracts over £25k for goods and services where a tenders exercise is undertaken but no award is made*

% of contracts over £250k for works where a tenders exercise is undertaken but no award is made*

% of contracts over £25k where the contract award amount is no more that the estimated budget*

% of contracts over £25k where the final contract cost is no more than the contract award amount*

% of contracts over £25k where the final contract cost is no more than the contract award amount*

% of Contracts over £25k with a signed or sealed contract within 6 weeks of the contract award*

% of officer assessing the service provided by the CPS as 'ok' or better 85%

T
udalen 191



% of officers attending procurement training assessing the training as as 'ok' or better 80%

% of Middle Management Team assessing their procurement knowledge as 'ok' or better

% of invoices that have had an upfront purchase order (PO) 90%

DEVELOP SET OF MEASURES FOR CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

* as measured through procurement projects entered into the Proactis Portal.  This may not include all procurement activity, as some projects initiated prior to the new 
CPR’s coming into force on 1 November 2016 may not be in the system.

T
udalen 192



Outcome 1 : The council achieves value for money from the goods, works and services it procures

Activities Responsibility Timescale

Provide E-Procurement System 'Sourcing' (Proactis) Information Sessions for all Departments not yet using the system Systems Officer March 2018

Provide updated training on Proactis Portal V6 to Officers currently using V5 (V6 due for release end of Q1) Systems Officer July 2017

Provide E-Procurement System 'Contract Management'  (Proactis) Training to all Officers managing contracts Business Partner 
(Strategic) Ongoing

Create a E-procurement System 'Quick Guides' to enable officers to become self-sufficient in the using the system Systems Officer July 2017

Review Proactis Portal user activity and user permission settings to ensure those officers set up on the system are using it and have access to 
appropriate modules of the system Systems Officer June 2017

Identify Proactis 'Super Users' for each service and provide appropriate level of training and for the super users Systems Officer March 2018

Set up Proactis User E-mail Group to communicate system and procedural updates to users Systems Officer June 2017

Explore possibility of monthly 'Drop In' Sessions for additional Portal training for officers.  Each session focusing on an area which has been 
highlighted as a problem area for users.  Systems Officer September 2017

Review and update all Project and Contract Templates in  the Proactis Portal and ensure that both DCC & FCC templates are the same Business Partner 
(Strategic) September 2017

Review, update and maintain details of all Frameworks used to ensure correct information is held on the Proatis Portal Systems Officer December 2017

Develop a customer feedback system for suppliers who have provided goods, services or works to assess quality of the management of the 
contract Systems Officer March 2018

Map out additional report requirements and develop procurement report templates that could be provided to HoS/Chief Officers, detailing key 
procurement indicators and some basic analysis that could be provided to services on a regular basis Systems Officer March 2018

Explore 'Single Registration' for suppliers so they do not have to register on multiple systems e.g. Proactis, Sell2Wales etc. Systems Officer December 2018

Work with service areas to identify training needs, and work with the Strategic Business Partner to develop and implement appropriate training.
Business 
Partners 

(Categories)
Ongoing

Develop, publish and implement an annual procurement training programme and associated guidance documents (including continuation of 
CPR/beginners guide to procurement, and community benefits)'

Business Partner 
(Strategic) Ongoing

T
udalen 193



Develop CPS Intranet page and communication with other departments within the Authority. Systems Officer September 2017

Work with services to develop a programme of future procurement projects and identify opportunities for collaborative procurement locally, 
regionally and nationally

Business 
Partners 

(Categories)
Ongoing

Work with services to identify where approved lists are still being used, and subsequently develop and deliver appropriate alternative 
arrangements

Business 
Partners 

(Categories)
March 2018

T
udalen 194



Outcome 2A Denbighshire:  The council improves the contribution its procurement activity has on the local economy

Measures Excellence
Target

Intervention
Target

% of council spend with Denbighshire businesses 35% 25%

% of council spend with North Wales businesses

% of council spend with Welsh business 60% 40%

% of council spend with businesses in the Mersey/Dee Alliance area

% of suppliers assessing the council as ‘ok’ or better at contract end in supplier satisfaction surveys*

% of offers to the market with at least one Denbighshire based business invited to tender at the Low value threshold (£10,001 - £25,000)*

% of offers to the market with at least one Denbighshire based business invited to tender at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 – OJEU)*

% of offers to the market with at least one Denbighshire based business invited to tender at the High value threshold (OJEU)*

% of offers to the market with at least one Denbighshire based business bidding at the Low value threshold (£10,001 - £25,000)*

% of offers to the market with at least one Denbighshire based business bidding at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 – OJEU)*

% of offers to the market with at least one Denbighshire based business bidding at the High value threshold (OJEU)*

% of bids received from Denbighshire based business as a proportion of the total bids received at the Low value threshold (£10,001 - £25,000)*

% of bids received from Denbighshire based business as a proportion of the total bids received at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 – OJEU)

% of bids received from Denbighshire based business as a proportion of the total bids received at the High value threshold (OJEU)

% of successful bids from Denbighshire based business as a proportion of the total number of successful bids at the Low value threshold (£10,001 - 
£25,000)*

T
udalen 195



% of successful bids from Denbighshire based business as a proportion of the total number of successful bids at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 – 
OJEU)*

% of successful bids from Denbighshire based business as a proportion of the total number of successful bids at the High value threshold (OJEU)*

% of contracts awarded in the financial year over £1,000,000 with Community Benefits included in contract document* 100% 70%

% of contracts awarded in the financial year under £1,000,000 with Community Benefits included in contract document* 10% 0%

* as measured through procurement projects entered into the Proactis Portal.  This may not include all procurement activity, as some projects initiated prior to the new 
CPR’s coming into force on 1 April 2016 may not be in the system.

T
udalen 196



Outcome 2B Flintshire:  The council improves the contribution its procurement activity has on the local economy

Measures Target

% of council spend with Flintshire businesses 30%

% of council spend with North Wales businesses

% of council spend with Welsh business 50%

% of council spend with businesses in the Mersey/Dee Alliance area

% of suppliers assessing the council as ‘ok’ or better at contract end in supplier satisfaction surveys*

% of offers to the market with at least one Flintshire based business invited to tender at the Low value threshold (£10,001 - £25,000)*

% of offers to the market with at least one Flintshire based business invited to tender at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 – OJEU)*

% of offers to the market with at least one Flintshire based business invited to tender at the High value threshold (OJEU)*

% of offers to the market with at least one Flintshire based business bidding at the Low value threshold (£10,001 - £25,000)*

% of offers to the market with at least one Flintshire based business bidding at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 – OJEU)*

% of offers to the market with at least one Flintshire based business bidding at the High value threshold (OJEU)*

% of bids received from Flintshire based business as a proportion of the total bids received at the Low value threshold (£10,001 - £25,000)*

% of bids received from Flintshire based business as a proportion of the total bids received at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 – OJEU)

% of bids received from Flintshire based business as a proportion of the total bids received at the High value threshold (OJEU)

% of successful bids from Flintshire based business as a proportion of the total number of successful bids at the Low value threshold (£10,001 - £25,000)*

T
udalen 197



% of successful bids from Flintshire based business as a proportion of the total number of successful bids at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 – 
OJEU)*

% of successful bids from Flintshire based business as a proportion of the total number of successful bids at the High value threshold (OJEU)*

% of contracts awarded in the financial year over £1,000,000 with Community Benefits included in contract document* 100%

% of contracts awarded in the financial year under £1,000,000 with Community Benefits included in contract document* 100%

* as measured through procurement projects entered into the Proactis Portal.  This may not include all procurement activity, as some projects initiated prior to the new 
CPR’s coming into force on 1 November 2016 may not be in the system.

T
udalen 198



Outcome 2 :  The council achieves value for money from the goods, services and works it procures
Service : Procurement

Activities Responsibility Timescale 

Develop and deliver a programme of activity to support local businesses, increasing their capacity and competency to respond to Council 
contracts

Business Partner 
(Strategic) March 2018

Work with service areas to ensure consideration is given to how procurement exercises/contracts can be structured to provide opportunities for 
local suppliers

Business 
Partners 

(Categories)
Ongoing

Work with service areas and Economic Development teams to identify existing or potential local suppliers who may benefit from additional support 
to increase their capacity and competency to respond to Council contracts

Business Partner 
(Strategic) Ongoing

Develop and deliver training and support to improve the inclusion of community benefits in Council contracts Business Partner 
(Strategic) December 2017

Develop a system to record and monitor Community Benefits centrally Systems Officer December 2017

Develop and deliver a new Print and Design Framework for Denbighshire & Flintshire, working closely with Economic Development teams to 
ensure local suppliers engage in meet the buyer events and the bidding process

Business 
Partners 

(Categories)
September 2017

Work with services to ensure current and potential suppliers are registered on Proactis and Sell2Wales
Business 
Partners 

(Categories)
Ongoing

Work with current e-procurement system provider to develop a robust system for both Buyer and Supplier which fulfils legal and audit 
requirements.  

Business Partner 
(Strategic) Ongoing

Ensure all our suppliers are of good financial standing by carrying out annual checks on all suppliers with whom DCC are engaged in Contracts 
with. 

Business 
Partners 

(Categories)
Ongoing

Maintain the corporate contracts and frameworks register and ensure that published information is current and correct. Systems Officer Ongoing 

T
udalen 199



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn bw
rpasol



CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Date of Meeting Thursday, 21 September 2017

Report Subject Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4 ) and 
Capital Programme Monitoring (Month 4)

Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance

Report Author Corporate Finance Manager

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the Revenue Budget 
Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4) Report and the Capital Programme 2017/18 (Month 
4) Report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the committee considers and comments on the Revenue Budget 
Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4) report. Any specific matters for attention will 
be noted and reported verbally to the Cabinet when it considers the report.

2 That the committee considers and comments on the Capital Programme 
2017/18 (Month 4) report. Any specific matters for attention will be noted 
and reported verbally to the Cabinet when it considers the report.

Tudalen 201

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 9



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING POSITION 
2017/18 (MONTH 4) AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2017/18 (MONTH 4)

1.01 The Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4) report will be presented 
to Cabinet on Tuesday 26 September 2017. A copy of the report is attached 
as Appendix A to this report.

1.02 The Capital Programme 2017/18 (Month 4) report will be presented to 
Cabinet on Tuesday 26 September 2017. A copy of the report is attached 
as Appendix B to this report.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 As set out in Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4) 
and in Appendix B; Capital Programme 2017/18 (Month 4).

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 None required.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 As set out in Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4) 
and in Appendix B; Capital Programme 2017/18 (Month 4).

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4).
Appendix B; Capital Programme 2017/18 (Month 4).

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None required.

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson, Finance Manager
Telephone: 01352 702287
E-mail: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 202



7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 (1) Revenue: a term used to describe the day to day costs of running 
Council services and income deriving from those services.  It also includes 
charges for the repayment of debt, including interest, and may include direct 
financing of capital expenditure.

7.02 (2) Budget: a statement expressing the Council’s policies and service levels 
in financial terms for a particular financial year.  In its broadest sense it 
includes both the revenue budget and capital programme and any 
authorised amendments to them.

7.03 (3) Capital Programme: The Council’s financial plan covering capital 
schemes and expenditure proposals for the current year and a number of 
future years. It also includes estimates of the capital resources available to 
finance the programme.

Tudalen 203



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Tudalen 205



Tudalen 206



Tudalen 207



Tudalen 208



Tudalen 209



Tudalen 210



Tudalen 211



Tudalen 212



Tudalen 213



Tudalen 214



Tudalen 215



Tudalen 216



Tudalen 217



Tudalen 218



Tudalen 219



Tudalen 220



Tudalen 221



Tudalen 222



Tudalen 223



Tudalen 224



Tudalen 225



Tudalen 226



Tudalen 227



Tudalen 228



Tudalen 229



Tudalen 230



Tudalen 231



Tudalen 232



Tudalen 233



Tudalen 234



Tudalen 235



Tudalen 236



Tudalen 237



Tudalen 238



Tudalen 239



Tudalen 240



Tudalen 241



Tudalen 242



Tudalen 243



Tudalen 244



Tudalen 245



Tudalen 246



Tudalen 247



Tudalen 248



Tudalen 249



Tudalen 250



Tudalen 251



Tudalen 252



Tudalen 253



Tudalen 254



Tudalen 255



Tudalen 256



Tudalen 257



Tudalen 258



Tudalen 259



Tudalen 260



Tudalen 261



Tudalen 262



Tudalen 263



Tudalen 264



 CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Thursday 21st September 2017

Report Subject Workforce Information Report – Quarter 1 2017/18

Portfolio Holder Cabinet Member for Corporate Management  

Report Author Senior Manager, Human Resources and Organisational 
Development

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To provide Members with an update for the first quarter for 2017/18. This report 
provides details of the following:

 Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE)
 Organisational Age Profile
 Employee Turnover and Stability (Including Redundancies and Early 

Retirements)
 Attendance 
 Performance Appraisals and Development
 Resource Management (Agency Workers)
 Equality and Diversity

The format of this report and the accompanying Workforce Information is intended 
to focus on organisational performance and trends, with the information being 
presented in a dashboard format. The dashboards are a visual presentation of 
data, showing the current status and historical trends of the Council’s performance 
against key performance indicators.

The report provides a brief narrative on the overall performance against a number 
of indicators. A more detailed explanation is provided on an exceptional basis 
where performance is falling below organisational performance indicators or where 
there has been a significant movement, either upwards or downwards, in the 
reported trends. The narrative will include an explanation for the movement in 
trend and details of any proposed actions to improve or maintain performance.

The performance information for the whole organisation is split to show Schools 
and Non-Schools data separately.  The Schools data is further broken down into 
Teaching and Non-Teaching.

Tudalen 265

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 10



RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Members comment on Workforce Information Report for quarter one 
2017/18 to 30 June 2017.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT

1.01 Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE)

The headcount and FTE figures for quarter one show an overall decrease 
of 214 FTE across the Council since April, Non-schools show a decrease 
of 207 FTE, and Schools show an overall decrease of 7 FTE. Within 
Schools, teaching staff show a decrease of 6 FTE whereas non-teaching 
staff decreased by 1 FTE. The significant reduction of FTE for quarter one 
is attributable to the transfer of Facilities Services to NEWydd Catering and 
Cleaning on 1 May 2017.
The headcount for Non-Schools is 3,034 and the headcount for Schools is 
to 3,277 equating to 6,311. However, the overall Flintshire County Council 
headcount is 6,274. The anomaly of 37 is in relation to employees who are 
employed in both Schools and Non-Schools positions.

1.02 Age Profiling

Age profiling the organisation, departments and teams is an important part 
of understanding the age demographics of our workforce and where we 
may need to focus attention.  Why do we use age profiling?

 to identify work areas with a high average age 
 to help plan for retirements and how we will recruit or retain staff 
 to highlight patterns and trends across our workforce 
 to assist workforce planning.

Understanding our age profile supports good workforce planning, enables 
the Council to provide a guide to the future number of potential retirements 
and succession plan by identifying any skill gaps that may arise. Without 
an analysis of age profile, no workable long term planning can be made.

1.03 Employee Turnover and Stability (Including Redundancies and Early 
Retirements)

The turnover percentage for the Council during quarter one is 7.14%. As 
explained under the Headcount and Full Time Equivalent section, the 
majority of this is attributable to the transfer of Facilities Services to 
NEWydd Catering and Cleaning on 1 May 2017.

Tudalen 266



1.04 Attendance

The FTE days lost for the Council during quarter one is 2.15. This is 
improvement when compared to the same period in 2016/17 which 
recorded 2.42 FTE days lost.  This is the second consecutive quarter we 
have seen an improvement in attendance, and builds upon the improved 
out-turn for 2016/17 which saw Flintshire ranked the 7th highest performer 
when benchmarked against other Welsh Local Authorities during 2016/17 
with a total of 9.82 days lost per FTE.

1.05 Performance Appraisals and Development

Performance Appraisals remain a high priority within the Council. 
Historically, appraisal completion levels have been reported on the basis of 
information (data) held in iTrent.  A fundamental review of the data for 
each portfolio identified the requirement to establish and apply an agreed 
set of eligibility criteria so that future reporting is both meaningful and 
consistent across the Council.

The following exemptions for inclusion in this performance indicator were 
agreed last year, as follows:

 Schools based employees
 Relief/casual workers 
 Employees on long term sick leave
 Employees on maternity leave or undertaking a career break
 Employees in their first 6 months of employment (new starters)
 Employees working a period of notice (leavers)
 Employees whose appraising manager is/has been absent for a 

prolonged period
 Employees of Clwyd Theatre Cymru
 Employees engaged on a fixed term contract of less than 12 

months duration

The revised annual target for completion of appraisals is 100% of eligible 
employee, and as at 30 June 2017, the recorded completion rate on iTrent 
against eligible employees was 66%. The details of those appraisals 
scheduled to take place over the next few months and those recently 
completed will be reported later in the year.

1.06 Resource Management (Agency Workers)

The total agency spend for quarter one is £572,000, which exceeds our 
target of £550,000. The largest agency spend is within Social Services 
(£208,000), and the second largest spend was within Streetscene and 
Transportation (£170,000). Social Services and, Streetscene and 
Transportation are responsible for 66% of the overall agency spend for 
quarter one.

Overall, there were 93 active agency placements on 30 June 2017.

At the time of running the report 54 placements exceeded the 12 week 
Agency Worker Regulations threshold, the majority of placements, 27  

Tudalen 267



were within Streetscene and Transportation, 15 in Community and 
Enterprise, 10 in Social Services, 1 in Planning and Environment, and 1 in 
Education and Youth.

The Council’s consolidated agency contract arrangements via a Managed 
Agency Solution (hosted by Matrix) is due for renewal in the coming 
months.  A fundamental review is underway to establish the most effective 
method of using what has traditionally been a complementary workforce 
taking into account changes in legislation and working practices to ensure 
value for money and visibility of alternative, off-contract arrangements.

1.07 Equality and Diversity Workforce Monitoring

Workforce diversity monitoring is an important means of demonstrating, 
implementing and promoting equality of opportunity.

Ongoing promotion and monitoring is carried out to gather information on 
the diversity of our workforce including potential recruits as well as existing 
employees. The Council collects diversity information based on current UK 
equality legislation which aims to prevent discrimination on grounds of age, 
disability, gender, race, sexual orientation, religion and other protected 
characteristics.  Information gathered can if analysed regularly, help us to 
identify barriers that prevent access to employment and career 
development for certain groups of people, and to develop solutions, such 
as positive action plans or alternative policies and practices.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 None arising directly from this report.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 None as the dashboard report appended to this report details existing 
actual out-turns in the various measures. 

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 None arising directly from this report.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix One: Dashboard – Workforce Information Report Q1 2017/18

Tudalen 268



6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 Contact Officer: Sharon Carney, Senior Manager, Human Resources and 
Organisational Development.
Telephone: 01352 702139
E-mail: sharon_carney@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Headcount and FTE
This will provide information on the current levels of the Council’s 
workforce.

Age Profiling
The purpose of providing the Organisational Age Profile is to enable the 
Council to provide a guide to the future number of potential retirements 
and succession plan by identifying any skill gaps that may arise. Without 
an analysis of age profile, no workable long term planning can be made.

Employee Turnover and Stability (Including Redundancies and Early 
Retirements)
This information will provide the awareness of trends in turnover rates 
within the Council for potential measure to be put in place for high turnover 
rates, if applicable.
 
Attendance 
Attendance remains a high priority in the Council and will provide detailed 
information on the areas for improvement for absence/attendance. Stage 1 
and Stage 2 capability hearings are the formal stages of the Attendance 
Management policy where sanctions including dismissal take place.

Performance Appraisals and Development
Reporting on performance appraisals and development will enable more 
effective monitoring of potential training needs for future planning.

Resource Management
This information will include the usage of agency workers within the 
Council.

Equality and Diversity Workforce Monitoring
Information will be provided to inform what measures, if any, need to be 
implemented to prevent inequalities within the Council.

Tudalen 269

mailto:sharon_carney@flintshire.gov.uk


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



CORPORATE DASHBOARD 
REPORTS 

(FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL)

2017/18 - QUARTER 1
(APRIL - JUNE)

1

T
udalen 271



Table of Contents

1. Flintshire County Council Cumulative Totals................................................................4

2. Non - Schools
2.1. Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE)...................................................5
2.2. Age Profile...................................................................................................6
2.3. Attendance..................................................................................................9
2.4. Turnover and Stability................................................................................10
2.5. Equality and Diversity.................................................................................11
2.6. Resource Management (Agency)................................................................12

3. Schools
3.1. Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE)

3.1.1. Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE) - Schools...................13
3.1.2. Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE) - Teaching.................14
3.1.3. Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE) - Non-Teaching.........15

2

T
udalen 272



Table of Contents Cont...

3.2. Age Profile
3.2.1. Age Profile - Schools...................................................................16
3.2.2. Age Profile - Teaching.................................................................17
3.2.3. Age Profile - Non-Teaching.........................................................18

3.3 Attendance
3.3.1. Attendance - Schools..................................................................19
3.3.2. Attendance - Teaching................................................................20
3.3.3. Attendance - Non-Teaching........................................................21

3.4 Turnover and Stability
3.4.1. Turnover and Stability - Schools..................................................22
3.4.2. Turnover and Stability - Teaching................................................23
3.4.3. Turnover and Stability - Non-Teaching........................................24

3.5 Equality and Diversity
3.5.1. Equality and Diversity - Schools..................................................25
3.5.2. Equality and Diversity - Teaching................................................26
3.5.3. Equality and Diversity - Non-Teaching........................................27

3

T
udalen 273



2017/18 DASHBOARD
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CUMULATIVE TOTALS

TOTAL HEADCOUNT

6,274
TOTAL FTE

4,827

LEAVERS / TURNOVER

461/7.14%

DAYS LOST PER FTE 2017/18

2.15
TARGET 2017/18 AT Q1

2.25

AGENCY SPEND 2017/18

572,000
TARGET 2017/18 AT Q1

550,000

4

T
udalen 274



TOTAL HEADCOUNT TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT

QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - NON SCHOOLS

3,034 2,547

HEADCOUNT AND FTE - 12 MONTH TREND

Decrease of  
418 people
(-13.77%)

Decrease of 
207 FTE
(-8.13%)

01/04/2017
3,452

30/06/2017
3,034

01/04/2017
2,754

30/06/2017
2,547

3536 3509
3432 3422

3479 3479 3472 3482 3483 3452

3050 3034

2748 2736 2746 2738 2783 2779 2775 2772 2780 2754

2555 2547

2500

2700

2900

3100

3300

3500

3700

Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17

Headcount

FTE

5

T
udalen 275



QUARTER 1 2017-18 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - NON-SCHOOLS

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

25 - 34 35 - 44 45 - 49 50 - 54 55 - 59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70 - 75 75 and
over

4

6

9
10

11

1 1
0 0

Chief Executives

0

10
20

30

40

50

60

70

80

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
75

75
and
Over

23

69 73
63

53 56

38

13
4 0

Community and Enterprise

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
74

75
and
Over

8

34

60

42
52

38

17

2 2 2

Education and Youth

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
74

75
and
Over

6

20

32

25
20

12 11

2 0 0

Governance

6

T
udalen 276



QUARTER 1 2017-18 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - NON-SCHOOLS

0

2

4

6

8

10

16 - 24 25 - 34 35 - 44 45 - 49 50 - 54 55 - 59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70 - 74 75 and
Over

0 0

8

5
6

9
10

3

0 0

Organisational Change 2

0

20

40

60

80

100

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
74

75
and
Over

50

88

59
43 45 46

35

13
6 1

Organisational Change 1

0

10

20

30

40

50

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
74

75
and
Over

18
25

41

24
28 28

8
3 0 0

People and Resources

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
74

75
and
Over

4

17

56

26 25 27
19

2 0 1

Planning and Environment

7

T
udalen 277



QUARTER 1 2017-18 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - NON-SCHOOLS

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
74

75
and
Over

25

80
88

67

92

76

56

18
10

4

Streetscene and Transportation

0

50

100

150

200

250

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
74

75
and
Over

42

140

224

152 160
142

73

25
2 1

Social Services

8

T
udalen 278



DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/06/2017

30/06/2017
2.15

30/06/2016
2.81

Improvement of 0.66

QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
ATTENDANCE - NON-SCHOOLS

2.15

TOP 4 REASONS
1. STRESS, DEPRESSION, ANXIETY
2.  MUSCULOSKELETAL
3.  STOMACH, LIVER, VOMITING
4.  INFECTIONS

0.32

2.46
2.88

0.33

1.57

0.78

1.99
1.65

2.74
2.11

0
0.5

1
1.5

2
2.5

3
3.5

Portfolio Days Lost

Target FTE (Days Lost)

FTE DAYS LOST BY PORTFOLIO

9

T
udalen 279



LEAVERS - Q1 LEAVERS - 2017/18

QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
TURNOVER AND STABILITY - NON SCHOOLS

407 407

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

1 3 3 2 0 23
63

5 3 7 3 3

291

LEAVER REASON - Q1

10

T
udalen 280



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - NON-SCHOOLS

63.22%

36.78% Female

Male

GENDER BREAKDOWN (%)

MALE
1,116
(36.78%)

FEMALE
1,918
(63.22%)

GENDER BREAKDOWN

11

2,112

911
BME

White

Not Stated

ETHNICITY
ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN

BME - 11

WHITE - 2,112

NOT STATED - 911

9 9 14

1,194

1,733

4 71 Bisexual - 9

Gay Man - 9

Gay Woman/Lesbian - 14

Heterosexual/Straight - 1,194

Not Stated - 1,733

Other - 4

Prefer Not To Say - 71

SEXUAL ORIENTATION

11

T
udalen 281



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT - AGENCY

0

20

40

0-12 weeks 13-26 weeks 27-52 weeks 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years 3 - 4 years 4 - 5 years 5+ years

39
27

12 12
3 0 0 0

Agency Tenure Management Q1

Placements as
at 30/06/2017

0.00%

6.38%

0.39% 0.78% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.56% 1.35%

10.12%

0.00%
2.00%
4.00%
6.00%
8.00%

10.00%
12.00%

Chief Executives Community and
Enterpirse

Education and
Youth

Governance Organisational
Change 1

(Community)

Organisational
Change 2

(Alternative
Service Models)

People and
Resources

Planning and
Environment

Social Services Streetscene and
Transportation

Agency/Headcount Pecentage by Portolio Q1

12

T
udalen 282



TOTAL HEADCOUNT

30/06/2017
3,277

01/04/2017
3,291

Decrease of  
14 people
(-0.43%)

01/04/2017
2,287

TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT

Decrease of 
7 FTE

(-0.31%)

30/06/2017
2,280

QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - SCHOOLS

3,277 2,280

HEADCOUNT AND FTE - 12 MONTH TREND

3275 3262 3279 3291 3287 3286 3288 3287 3289 3277 3278 3277

2284 2272 2296 2314 2313 2314 2287 2287 2287 2287 2281 2280

2000

2200

2400

2600

2800

3000

3200

3400

3600

Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17

Headcount

FTE

13

T
udalen 283



TOTAL HEADCOUNT

30/06/2017
1,385

01/04/2017
1,390

Decrease of  
5 people
(-0.36%)

01/04/2016
1,271

TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT

Decrease of  
6 FTE

(-0.47%)

30/06/2017
1,265

QUARTER 1 2017/17 DASHBOARD
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

1,385 1,265

HEADCOUNT AND FTE - 12 MONTH TREND

1381 1372 1379 1382 1385 1387 1391 1392 1393 1390 1386 1385

1258 1249 1260 1266 1270 1272 1278 1276 1277 1271 1267 1265

1200

1250

1300

1350

1400

1450

1500

Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17

Headcount

FTE

14

T
udalen 284



TOTAL HEADCOUNT

30/06/2017
1,892

01/04/2017
1,901

Decrease of  
9 people
(-0.48%)

01/04/2017
1,016

TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT

Decrease of  
1 FTE

(0.10%)

30/06/2017
1,015

QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

1,892 1,015

HEADCOUNT AND FTE - 12 MONTH TREND

1894 1890 1900 1909 1902 1899 1897 1895 1897 1887 1892 1892

1026 1023 1036 1048 1043 1042 1009 1011 1014 1016 1014 1015
900

1100

1300

1500

1700

1900

2100

2300

2500

Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17

Headcount

FTE

15

T
udalen 285



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - SCHOOLS

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

16 - 24 25 - 34 35 - 44 45 - 49 50 - 54 55 - 59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70 - 74 75 and
Over

104

591

853

531 518

369

227

50 29 5

16

T
udalen 286



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

16 - 24 25 - 34 35 - 44 45 - 49 50 - 54 55 - 59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70 - 74 75 and
Over

33

397

467

187

144
111

46

4 2 0

17

T
udalen 287



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

16 - 24 25 - 34 35 - 44 45 - 49 50 - 54 55 - 59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70 - 74 75 and
Over

71

194

386

344

374

258

181

46
27

5

18

T
udalen 288



DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/06/17

30/06/2017
1.57

30/06/2016
1.93

Improvement of 0.36 

QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
ATTENDANCE - SCHOOLS

1.57

TOP 4 REASONS
1. STRESS, DEPRESSION, ANXIETY
2.  INFECTIONS
3.  MUSCOSKELETAL
4.  STOMACH, LIVER, VOMITING

FTE DAYS LOST BY SCHOOL TYPE

1.58 1.46

2.41

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

Primary
Schools

Secondary
Schools

Special Schools

School Type Days Lost

Target FTE (Days Lost)

19

T
udalen 289



DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/06/17

30/06/2017
1.12

30/06/2016
1.71

Improvement 0.59

QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
ATTENDANCE - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

1.12

TOP 4 REASONS
1. STRESS, DEPRESSION, ANXIETY
2.  INFECTIONS
3.  MUSCULOSKELETAL
4.  STOMACH, LIVER, VOMITING

FTE DAYS LOST BY SCHOOL TYPE

1.11 1.14
0.80

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

Primary
Schools

Secondary
Schools

Special Schools

School Type Days Lost

Target FTE (Days Lost)

20

T
udalen 290



DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/06/17

30/06/2017
2.14

30/06/2016
2.22

Improvement of 0.08 

QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
ATTENDANCE - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

2.14

TOP 4 REASONS
1. STRESS, DEPRESSION, ANXIETY
2.  INFECTIONS
3.  MUSCULOSKELETAL
4.  STOMACH, LIVER, VOMITING

FTE DAYS LOST BY SCHOOL TYPE

2.08 2.05

2.97

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

Primary
Schools

Secondary
Schools

Special Schools

School Type Days Lost

Target FTE (Days Lost)

21

T
udalen 291



LEAVERS - Q1 LEAVERS - 2017/18

QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
TURNOVER AND STABILITY - SCHOOLS

54 54

0

10

20

30

40

2 0 0 0 2
7

33

0 0 1
5

1 3

LEAVER REASON - Q1

22

T
udalen 292



LEAVERS - Q1 LEAVERS - 2017/18

QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
TURNOVER AND STABILITY - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

15 15

0
0.5

1
1.5

2
2.5

3
3.5

4
4.5

5

0 0 0
1

0

6 6

0 0
1 1

0

LEAVER REASON - Q1

23

T
udalen 293



LEAVERS - Q1 LEAVERS - 2017/18

QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
TURNOVER AND STABILITY - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

39 39

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

2 0 0 1 0 1

27

0 0
4

0 1 3

LEAVER REASON - Q1

24

T
udalen 294



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - SCHOOLS

84.50%

15.50%

Female

Male

GENDER BREAKDOWN (%)

MALE
508

(15.50%)

FEMALE
2,769
(84.50%)

GENDER BREAKDOWN

8

1678
1591

BME

White

Not Stated

ETHNICITY
ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN (%)

BME - 8

WHITE - 1,678

NOT STATED - 1,591

1
4 1

643

2,594

2 32
Bisexual - 1

Gay Man - 4

Gay Woman/Lesbian - 1

Heterosexual/Straight - 643

Not Stated - 2,594

Other - 2

Prefer Not To Say - 32

SEXUAL ORIENTATION

25

T
udalen 295



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

74.46%

25.54%
Female

Male

GENDER BREAKDOWN (%)

MALE
355

(25.64%)

FEMALE
1,035
(74.46%)

GENDER BREAKDOWN

2

695
693

BME

White

Not Stated

ETHNICITY
ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN (%)

BME - 2

WHITE - 695

NOT STATED - 693

3

234

1,140

1
11 Gay Man - 3

Heterosexual/Straight - 234

Not Stated - 1,140

Other - 1

Prefer Not To Say - 11

SEXUAL ORIENTATION

26

T
udalen 296



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

91.89%

8.11%

Female

Male

GENDER BREAKDOWN (%)

MALE
153
(8.11%)

FEMALE
1,734
(91.89%)

GENDER BREAKDOWN

6

983
898

BME

White

Not Stated

ETHNICITY
ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN (%)

BME - 6

WHITE - 983

NOT STATED - 898

1
1 1

409

1,454

1 21 Bisexual - 1

Gay Man - 1

Gay Woman/Lesbian - 1

Heterosexual/Straight - 409

Not Stated - 1,454

Other - 1

Prefer Not To Say - 21

SEXUAL ORIENTATION

27

T
udalen 297



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn bw
rpasol



CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Thursday  21st September 2017

Report Subject Forward Work Programme

Cabinet Member Not applicable

Report Author Democratic Services Manager

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the 
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members.  By 
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to 
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues.  A copy of the Forward Work 
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been 
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward 
Work Programme for the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and 
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Democratic Services  Manager, in consultation with the Chair of 
the Committee be authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme 
between meetings, as the need arises. 

Tudalen 299

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 11



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number 
of sources.  Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can 
be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council 
or Chief Officers.  Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet 
Work Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of 
significance’ to be applied.  This can be achieved by asking a range of 
questions as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
2. Is it an area of major change or risk?
3. Are there issues of concern in performance?
4. Is there new Government guidance of legislation?
5. Is it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 None as a result of this report.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 None as a result of this report.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 – Draft Forward Work Programme

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None.

Contact Officer: Robert Robins
Democratic Services Manager

Telephone: 01352 702320
E-mail: robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 300

mailto:robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk


7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of 
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Tudalen 301



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2017/18

Page 1 of 3

DATE ISSUE O&S FOCUS / PURPOSE REPORT FROM 

Thursday 19th 
October 2017
10.00 a.m.

Emergency Planning Annual report

Flintshire Public Service Board and 
Strategic Partnership Performance 
Update

Community Endowment fund
Workforce Quarterly Report 

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18

Forward Work Programme

Assurance 

To provide  assurance and  an overview of the Flintshire 
Public Services Board (PSB) following the introduction of the 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the 
work of the Board to date

Colin Evans from the Community Foundation to present the 
Annual progress report

Monthly Monitoring 

Approval & Development

Neil Culff

Karen Armstrong

Karen Armstong

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins
Thursday 16th 
November 
2017
10.00 a.m.

Fire & Rescue Service Budget 
Consultation 

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18

Forward Work Programme

Consultation

Monthly Budget Monitoring.

Approval & Development

Robert Robins

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins
Early 
December

Budget Consultation Meeting To review, scrutinise and comment on the budget  proposals 
for 2018/19.

T
udalen 303



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2017/18

Page 2 of 3

Thursday 14th 
December 
2017
10.00 a.m.

Quarter 2 Council Plan 2017/18 
Monitoring Report 

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017 / 18

Forward Work Programme

The committee is invited to consider  the reports, highlight 
and monitor poor performance and feedback details of any 
challenge to the Cabinet

Monthly Monitoring 

Approval and development

Karen Armstrong

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins
Thursday 18th 
January 2018
10.00 a.m.

Workforce Information Report – 
Quarter 2 2017/18

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017 / 18

Forward Work Programme

Monitoring:to provide Members with an update for the second 
quarter for 2017/18

Monthly Monitoring

Approval & Development

Sharon Carney /
Andy Adams

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

Late January Budget Consultation Meeting To review, scrutinise and comment on the Budge proposals

Thursday 15th 
February 2018
10.00 a.m.

Workforce Information Report – 
Quarter 3 2017/18

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017 / 18

Forward Work Programme

Monitoring and an update for the third quarter for 2017/18.

Monthly Monitoring 

Approval & Development

Sharon Carney /
Andy Adams

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

T
udalen 304



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2017/18

Page 3 of 3

The previous Corporate Resources O&SC had resolved at its January 2017 meeting to invite Ms Alwen Williams, the Wales director of BT 
to attend a meeting and provide an update on the provision of broadband in the County. Ms Williams had previously attended a meeting of 
the committee in April 2016. 

Thursday 15th 
March 2018
10.00 a.m.

Quarter 3 Council Plan 2017/18 
Monitoring Report 

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017 / 18

Forward Work Programme

That the Committee is invited to consider the Quarter 3 
Council Plan Monitoring Reports, highlight and monitor poor 
performance and feedback details of any challenge to the 
Cabinet.

Monthly Monitoring

Approval & Development

Karen Armstrong

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

Thursday 19th 
April 2018
10.00 am

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017 / 18

Forward work programme

Monthly Monitoring

Approval and development

Sara Dulson

Robert RobinsT
udalen 305



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn bw
rpasol


	Rhaglen
	3 Cofnodion
	4 Adroddiad Blynyddol Partneriaeth Diogelwch Cymunedol (mae'r cyfarfod hwn wedi ei ddynodi'n gyfarfod Pwyllgor Craffu Trosedd ac Anhrefn Statudol)
	Enc. 1 Safer Communities Board Plan

	5 Adroddiad Gwelliant Blynyddol Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru
	Enc. 1 - Annual Improvement Report 2016/17
	Enc. 2 - Executive response

	6 Adroddiadau astudiaeth Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru
	Enc. 1 - Corporate Assessment follow-up
	Enc. 3 - Review of the effectiveness of the efficiency savings programme
	Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme – Flintshire County Council
	Summary
	Proposals for improvement
	Arrangements for planning and monitoring efficiency savings are effective, but arrangements for evaluating non-financial impact and for sharing post-project learning are under-developed
	The Council has effective arrangements for planning and monitoring the financial impact of its efficiency savings programme
	Arrangements for evaluating the non-financial impact of efficiency initiatives are not systematic, but are being strengthened
	Arrangements for capturing and sharing post-project learning are under-developed



	Enc. 4 - Executive response

	7 Cynllun y Cyngor 2017 - 23
	Appendix 1: Council Plan 2017-18
	Appendix 2: How achievements will be measured

	8 Cynllun Gweithredu Strategaeth Gaffael
	Appendix 1 - Procurement Business Plan

	9 Monitro Cyllideb Refeniw 2017/18 (Mis 4) a Rhaglen Gyfalaf 2017/18 (Mis 4)
	Enc. 1 - Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4)
	Enc. 2 - Capital Programme Monitoring (Month 4)

	10 Adroddiad Gwybodaeth am y Gweithlu - Chwarter 1
	Enc. 2 - Dashboard report for Q1 2017-18
	Dashboard_Workforce Information Q1 17-18
	Dashboard_Workforce Information Q1 17-18
	Dashboard_Workforce Information Q1 17-18
	Dashboard Cover Sheet Q1 -  FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
	Dashboard - TABLE OF CONTENTS 1
	Dashboard - TABLE OF CONTENTS 2
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q1 - NON-SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q1 - NON SCHOOLS PART 1
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q1 - NON SCHOOLS PART 2
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q1 - NON SCHOOLS PART 3
	Dashboard - Attendance Q1 - NON SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q1 - NON-SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q1 - NON-SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE 1 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q1 - SCHOOLS - TEACHING
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q1 - SCHOOLS - NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q1 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q1 - SCHOOLS - TEACHING
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q1 - SCHOOLS - NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Attendance Q1 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Attendance Q1 - SCHOOLS TEACHING
	Dashboard - Attendance Q1 - SCHOOLS NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q1 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q1 - SCHOOLS TEACHING
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q1 - SCHOOLS NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q1 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q1 - SCHOOLS TEACHING
	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q1 - SCHOOLS NON TEACHING

	Dashboard - Resource Management_Agency - Q1

	Dashboard - Total Figures (Schools and Non-Schools) - Q1

	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q1 - SCHOOLS - NON TEACHING


	11 Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol
	Enc. 1 for Forward Work Programme (Corporate Resources)




